United City of Yorkuville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, Hlinois 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
www.yorkville.il.us

SPECIAL PLAN COMMISSION MEETING

AGENDA
Wednesday, April 20, 2016
Yorkville City Hall Council Chambers
800 Game Farm Road

Meeting Called to Order: 7:00 p.m.
Roll Call:
Previous meeting minutes: February 10, 2016

Citizen’s Comments

Public Hearings

1. PC 2016-05 BBB Farms LLC, petitioner, has filed an application with the United City of
Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting rezoning approval from R-2, Single-Family
Traditional Residence District to A-1, Agricultural District. The real property is located on
Fox Road, between Pavilion Road and Ford Drive in Yorkville, Illinois.

2. PC 2016-06 The United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, petitioner, is proposing
a text amendment to Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses in the Zoning Ordinance to
identify Commercial school, trade school as special uses in the M-1 Limited Manufacturing
and M-2 General Manufacturing districts and proposing a text amendment to Chapter 2:
Rules and Definitions in the Zoning Ordinance to redefine the definition of trade school to
“A school established to provide for the teaching of academic, industrial, clerical,
managerial, artistic skills, or alternative education. This definition applies to schools that are
owned and operated privately for profit or non profit and that may offer a complete education
curriculum.” This text amendment will provide regulations for the establishment and
operation of such uses in these zoning districts.

3. PC 2016-07 Terry Richards, petitioner, has filed an application with the United City of
Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting to amend a special use approved for a public
storage facility pursuant to Chapter 6, Table 10.06.03 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance.
The amendments to the special use include relocation of the buildings on the property,
increasing the number of buildings on the property and increasing the landscape materials, all
as shown on a new site plan for the development of the property. The real property is located
at 147 Commercial Drive in Yorkville, Illinois.

4. PC 2016-08 Tairi Grace, petitioner, has filed an application with the United City of
Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting special use permit approval for a
Commercial/Trade School for a private, non-profit school with an emphasis on holistic health
education within the M-1, Limited Manufacturing District pursuant to Chapter 6, Table


http://www.yorkville.il.us/

10.06.02 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance. The real property is located at 319 E. Van
Emmon Road, in Yorkville, Illinois.

Old Business

New Business

1. PC 2016-05 BBB Farms LLC, petitioner, has filed an application with the United City of
Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting rezoning approval from R-2, Single-Family
Traditional Residence District to A-1, Agricultural District. The real property is located on
Fox Road, between Pavilion Road and Ford Drive in Yorkville, Illinois.

- Action Item
Rezoning

2. PC 2016-06 The United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, petitioner, is proposing
a text amendment to Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses in the Zoning Ordinance to
identify Commercial school, trade school as special uses in the M-1 Limited Manufacturing
and M-2 General Manufacturing districts and proposing a text amendment to Chapter 2:
Rules and Definitions in the Zoning Ordinance to redefine the definition of trade school to
“A school established to provide for the teaching of academic, industrial, clerical,
managerial, artistic skills, or alternative education. This definition applies to schools that are
owned and operated privately for profit or non profit and that may offer a complete education
curriculum.” This text amendment will provide regulations for the establishment and
operation of such uses in these zoning districts.

- Action Item
Text Amendment

3. PC 2016-07 Terry Richards, petitioner, has filed an application with the United City of
Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting to amend a special use approved for a public
storage facility pursuant to Chapter 6, Table 10.06.03 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance.
The amendments to the special use include relocation of the buildings on the property,
increasing the number of buildings on the property and increasing the landscape materials, all
as shown on a new site plan for the development of the property. The real property is located
at 147 Commercial Drive in Yorkville, Illinois.

- Action Item
Special Use

4. PC 2016-08 Tairi Grace, petitioner, has filed an application with the United City of
Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting special use permit approval for a
Commercial/Trade School for a private, non-profit school with an emphasis on holistic health
education within the M-1, Limited Manufacturing District pursuant to Chapter 6, Table
10.06.02 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance. The real property is located at 319 E. Van
Emmon Road, in Yorkville, Illinois.

- Action Item

Special Use
Additional Business
1. City Council Action Updates
The following items were presented to the City Council on February 23, 2016.



a. PC 2016-02 The Law Office Corporation, petitioner, has filed
applications with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois,
requesting special use permit approval for a proposed tavern — nightclub
or lounge in an existing building zoned within the B-2 Retail Commerce
Business District pursuant to Chapter 6, Table 10.06.03 of the Yorkville
Zoning Ordinance. The real property is located at 226 South Bridge Street
in Yorkville, Illinois.

b. PC 2016-03 Unified Faith in Christ Church, petitioner, has filed an
application with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois,
requesting special use permit approval for a Small Religious Institution
that is defined in Section 10-2-3 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance as
having less than 400 seats and 8,000 square feet of floor area in an
existing building zoned within the M-1, Limited Manufacturing District
pursuant to Chapter 6, Table 10.06.02 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance.
The real property is located at 210 Beaver Street, Unit A in Yorkville,
Ilinois.

Adjournment



DRAFT

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

PLAN COMMISSION

City Council Chambers
Wednesday, February 10, 2016 7:00pm

Meeting Called to Order
Chairman Randy Harker called the meeting to order at 7:00pm.

Roll Call

Roll call was taken and a quorum was established.

Deb Horaz-yes, Chuck Galmarini-yes, Reagan Goins-yes, Charles Kraupner-yes, Richard
Vinyard-yes, Randy Harker-yes

Absent: Michael Crouch

City Staff
Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director

Mr. Chris Heinen, City Planner
Lynn Dubajic, Economic Development Consultant

Other Guests

Chris Vitosh, Court Reporter Anna Jaruszewski

Jeff Jaruszewski Thomas Nelson, Unified Faith in Christ Church
Rich Hazlett, Bridge St. Plaza Stacy Hazlett, Bridge Street Plaza

Boyd Ingemunson, The Law Office Corp.
Pastor Will Shore, Unified Faith in Christ Church

Previous Meeting Minutes January 13, 2016

Ms. Goins moved and Mr. Kraupner seconded a motion for approval as presented.

Roll call: Horaz-yes, Galmarini-yes, Goins-yes, Kraupner-yes, Vinyard-yes, Harker-yes
Passed 6-0.

Citizen’s Comments None

Public Hearings

At approximately 7:01pm, Ms. Horaz moved to enter into the Public Hearings and Ms.
Goins seconded. Chairman Harker explained the proceedings for the Hearings and
swore in those who would give testimony. Mr. Kraupner moved and Ms. Goins
seconded the motion to open PC 2016-02 and PC 2016-03.

Roll call for motions: Goins-yes, Kraupner-yes, Vinyard-yes, Horaz-yes, Galmarini-yes,
Harker-yes. Passed 6-0.
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1. PC 2016-02 The Law Office Corporation, petitioner, has filed applications with
the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting special use
permit approval for a proposed tavern - nightclub or lounge in an existing
building zoned within the B-2 Retail Commerce Business District pursuant to
Chaper 6, Table 10.06.03 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance. The real property is
located at 226 South Bridge Street in Yorkville, Illinois.

2. PC 2016-03 Unified Faith in Christ Church, petitioner, has filed an application
with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting special use
permit approval for a Small Religious Institution that is defined in Section 10-2-3
of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance as having less than 400 seats and 8,000 square
feet of floor area in an existing building zoned within the M-1 Limited
Manufacturing District pursuant to Chapter 6, Table 10.06.02 of the Yorkville
Zoning Ordinance. The real property is located at 210 Beaver Street, Unit A in
Yorkville, Illinois.

(See Court Reporter's Transcript for a record of the proceedings)
Also to be included in the official record are the Findings of Fact written response from
the applicant for PC 2016-02.

At approximately 7:27pm a motion to close the Hearings was made by Ms. Horaz and
seconded by Mr. Galmarini.

Roll call: Galmarini-yes, Goins-yes, Kraupner-yes, Vinyard-yes, Horaz-yes, Harker-yes.
Passed 6-0.

Old Business None

New Business

1. PC 2016-02 The Law Office Corporation (see #1 above)

The Findings of Fact were reviewed and the petitioner's written responses will be entered
into the official record. There was no further discussion.

Action Item

Special Use
A motion was then made by Commissioner Vinyard for approval of the petition as
follows: In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on February
10, 2016 and discussion of the Findings of Fact, the Plan Commission recommends
approval to the City Council a request for Special Use authorization for the operation of a
proposed bar/tavern with live music within an existing building zoned in the B-2 General
Business District located at 226 South Bridge Street. Commissioner Kraupner seconded
the motion.
Roll call: Kraupner-yes, Vinyard-yes, Horaz-yes, Galmarini-yes, Goins-yes, Harker-yes
Passed 6-0

2. PC 2016-03 Unified Faith in Christ church (See #2 above)
It was noted the parking had been addressed. Chairman Harker referred to a comment
made in the Public Hearing regarding the church being involved in the community. He
said the Food Pantry is nearby and is a great opportunity for the church. The
Commission then considered the Findings of Fact.
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Action Item

Special use
A motion to approve the petition was made by Ms. Goins as follows: In consideration of
testimony presented during a Public Hearing on February 10, 2016 and discussions
conducted at that meeting, the Plan Commission recommends approval to the City
Council a request for Special Use approval for a Small Religious Institution that is
defined in Section 10-2-3 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance as having less than 400
seats and 8,000 square feet of floor area in an existing building zoned within the M-1,
Limited Manufacturing District pursuant to Chapter 6, Table 10.06.02 of the Yorkville
Zoning Ordinance located at 210 Beaver Street, Unit A, subject to staff recommendations
and conditions in a memo dated February 3, 2016. The motion was seconded by Mr.
Kraupner.
Roll call: Vinyard-yes, Horaz-present, Galmarini-yes, Goins-yes, Kraupner-yes, Harker-
yes. Passed 5 yes and 1 present.

Additional Business

1. City Council Action Updates

a. PC 2015-16

Mr. Heinen reported the GC Housing/senior development request for rezoning proceeded
to City Council and was tabled until February 23.

b. PC 2015-17
There was no further City Council comment on the petition requesting a Special Use for a
landscape company in Kendall County.

2. Year in Review 2015
Ms. Noble said about 14 applications were filed in 2015 with only about 5 coming to the
Plan Commission.

She also had 2 items for discussion. At the February 9" City Council meeting, there was
a Plan Commission revision. She said 2 members have resigned and the ordinance was
amended to require only 7 members. She also announced that Mr. Galmarini will be
resigning after this meeting. There was also discussion about combining the ZBA and
Plan Commission. The State only requires one of these bodies (which serve different
functions) to make recommendations. It was noted that Oswego is also combining their
boards.

Ms. Noble said the difference between ZBA and Plan Commission is that some actions at
ZBA are final. Plan Commission has the ability to review land use plans and other plans
requiring special uses, text amendments, etc.

If the boards are combined, it is likely the Plan Commission would only be advisory. Ms.
Horaz asked how the 2 Boards would be combined. An ordinance would be needed to
abolish the ZBA and the Plan Commission responsibilities would have to be revised and
an amendment to the muncipal code would be needed. Combining the two would also be
a cost savings to the City. Ms. Noble asked Commissioners to email comments if they
desire.
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In other 2015 items for review, Ms. Noble said there were four text amendments to the
zoning ordinance.

The Comp Plan should be done by summer and the Plan Commission will review the
final draft and make formal recommendations. There will be changes to the Zoning
Ordinance included in the plan.

Commissioner Horaz asked about projects the Plan Commission has approved. One of
these was Heartland Meadows which has not yet had the final plat recorded. It is thought
it's due to the pending completion of another project to free up capital. Another project
approved by this Commission was the Dunkin Donuts on the south side. The nearby Car
Care service business had to sign off on the development agreement, however, the
business has been since sold and the new owners are not communicating with the
developer/Dunkin Donuts. The City will be assisting in this matter since construction
must be started by March 1% to receive sales tax rebates according to the agreement.

Adjournment
There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at 7:49pm on a motion by
Mr. Kraupner and second by Ms. Horaz. Voice vote approval.

Transcribed by
Marlys Young, Minute Taker
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UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

YORKVILLE, ILLINOIS

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING

800 Game Farm Road

Yorkville, Illinois

Wednesday, February 10, 2016

7:00 p.m.

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail. com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

24

PRESENT:

Mr.

Mr.

Ms.

Ms.

Mr.

Mr.

Randy Harker, Chairman,
Charles Kraupner,
Deborah Horaz,

Reagan Flavin Goins,
Richard Vinyard,

Chuck Galmarini.

ALSO PRESENT:

Ms.

Krysti Noble, Community Development

Director,

Mr.

Ms .

Chris Heinen, City Planner,

Marlys Young, Minute Taker.

815.
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(The following
proceedings were had in
public hearing:)

CHATRMAN HARKER: Now going into the
public hearing section, can I get a motion to
open the public hearing portion of the meeting?

MS. HORAZ: Motion.

MS. GOINS: Second.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Awesome. All right.
Tonight's public hearings, there are two items to
be heard.

The purpose of this hearing is to
invite testimony from members of the public
regarding the proposed requests that are being
considered before the Commission tonight.

Public testimony from persons
present who wish to speak may be in favor or
against the request or have gquestions for the
petitioners regarding the requests being heard.

All those people who would like to
testify tonight, please speak clearly, one at a
time, state your name, who you represent, if
anyone, and you are asked to sign in at the

podium if you haven't already.

Vitosh Reporting Service
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Those who wish to speak at tonight's
hearing, please stand, raise your right hand and
repeat after me.

(The witnesses were
thereupon duly sworn.)
CHAIRMAN HARKER: So the way we're going
to hear the -- go through the public hearings --
start with the first one here.

The order that we're going to take
the testimony here is we're going to hear from
the petitioner first and then everybody that's in
favor of that request, those who are opposing the
request, and then any guestions from the Plan
Commission.

May I have a motion to open the
public hearing on petition number PC -- Actually
we're going to do -—- I'm going to do both, I'm
just going to open both of them at the same time
here, so can I get a -- may I get a motion to
open the public hearing on petition numbers
PC 2016-02, which is the Law Office Corporation,
petitioner, has filed application with the United
City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois,

requesting special use permit approval for a
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proposed tavern, nightclub or lounge in an
existing building zoned within B-2 Retail
Commerce Business District pursuant to
Chapter 6, Table 10.06.03, of the Yorkville
Zoning Ordinance.

The real property is located at
226 South Bridge Street in Yorkville, Illinois.

The second is PC 2016-03, Unified
Faith in Christ Church, petitioner, has filed an
application with the United City of Yorkville,
Kendall County, Illinois, requesting special use
permit approval for a Small Religious Institution
that is defined in Section 10-2-3 of the
Yorkville Zoning Ordinance as having less than
400 seats and 8,000 square feet of floor area in
an existing building zoned within the M~-1 Limited
Manufacturing District pursuant to Chapter 6,
Table 10.06.02 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance.

The real property is located at
210 Beaver Street, Unit A, in Yorkville,
ITllinois.

Okay.

MS. NOBLE: Motion?

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Yeah, can we get a

Vitosh Reporting Service
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motion to --
MR. KRAUPNER: So moved.
MR. VINYARD: Second.
CHAIRMAN HARKER: Awesome. Can I get a
roll call on the motion, please?
MS. YOUNG: Goins.
MS. GOINS: Yes.
MS. YOUNG: Kraupner.
MR. KRAUPNER: Yes.
MS. YOUNG: Mr. Vinyard.
MR. VINYARD: Yes.
MS. YOUNG: Horaz.
MS. HORAZ: Yes.
MS. YOUNG: Mr. Galmarini.
MR. GALMARINTI: Yes.
MS. YOUNG: Harker.
CHAIRMAN HARKER: Yes.
So let's start with PC 2016-02, the
Law Office Corporation.
BOYD INGEMUNSON,
having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:
MR. INGEMUNSON: Thanks for hearing me

tonight. Thanks for your attendance here on
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behalf of citizen comments on my petition. I
won't be long.

The reason we are here 1is we are
required to apply for a special use because the
business we are opening 1s not going to be
actually preparing food in our location.

We decided with the space
constraints that we had, we felt it better to
utilize some of the existing businesses in
downtown to be able to provide food for our
establishment, so we're working with Rowdy's and
we'll probably have some sort of arrangement with
Rosati's that they can deliver pizzas into the
establishment, but since we're not preparing food
on site, technically it's special use under the
existing zoning ordinance, so, hence, the process
of the special use and the public hearing.

A little bit of background. The
building that we are in the process of developing
was =-- has been in our family for about 35 years.
It was our law practice up until fall of 2013
when the 47 expansion kind of destroyed all the
sidewalks in front of all the businesses down

there, so we actually had interest in a building
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next to the courthouse and our long-term plan was
eventually move our practice to that location,
which is a lot more conducive for our practice
anyway, so we did that. The building was vacant.

As you might know, I'm involved with
the Summer Solstice Festival, which we've done a
lot of music with -- a lot of work with
independent music and craft beer in the local
area.

I saw this as an opportunity to
utilize that space to have a year-round facility
to showcase both craft beer and also to work with
a lot of independent music to build an attraction
that's going to attract musicians from all across
the country that would like to come to Yorkville
and play, hopefully build up a following where
we'll attract a lot of people from outside the
community to come into Yorkville, and hopefully
stand as a -- with the existing businesses to
really start building up the downtown.

We feel that the project has a lot
of merit. We'd ask that you approve the special
use.

I can answer any questions that
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anyone has regarding the project or any gquestions
that -- Staff did a really good job in their
report addressing any of the legal issues that
are involved with the special use.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Okay. Thank you very
much.

MR. INGEMUNSON: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Okay. Just real
quick, sir --

MR. INGEMUNSON: Sure.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: -- Jjust state your
name for the record.

MR. INGEMUNSON: Oh, I've got to write

in.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: State your name real
gquick.

MR. INGEMUNSCN: Boyd Ingemunson. I've
got to sign in here real gquick, too. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Okay. Anybody present
that would like to speak in favor of this
request?

(No response.)
CHAIRMAN HARKER: Seeing none, anybody

here that would like to speak opposed to this
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request?
Come on up here.
STACIE HAZLETT,
having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MS. HAZLETT: Stacie Hazlett on behalf
of Bridge Street Plaza at 101 South Bridge
Street.

Our concerns are when we asked about
the intended use, it was supposed to be an
upscale, I don't know, microbrewery type of an
establishment, but then there was the disclaimer
that of course that relies on the type of
clientele that comes.

Now, from our perspective as
business owners, if we want a high class
establishment, we're not going to say well, that
depends on who wants to come into our
establishment. We're going to set rules and
regulations such that we maintain the level of
clientele as we want to have.

Beyond that, I've come to previous
meetings, where the public happens to be absent

from this time, and I'd like to call into the
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record those meetings where they didn't want the
noise that would be coming from additional public
venues, where we have additional parking issues,
where we have additional noise issues, that the
water -- 1f we have music venues, that that's
going to be bouncing off of the river, and what
time is the music going to stop playing because
the residents want to sleep.

As you recall, these were all issues
at previous Council meetings and I think that
they need to be seriously considered.

Beyond the fact that this is Jjust a
liquor establishment, how many Yorkville liquor
licenses do we want to establish for just the
primary purpose of serving alcohol?

Most of the establishments existing
in Yorkville already have a multi-purpose; they
serve gasoline or they provide food pantry or --
not pantry, food service or —-- whether it's
grocery store or you're eating in there.

It seems dangerous to have a liquor
license for an establishment that only offers
alcohol and perhaps might make a relationship

with Rowdy's or might make a relationship with
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Rosati's, which isn't established at this point.

Not to mention that people probably
shouldn't be drinking without some like -- how
long should they be drinking in an establishment
without taking a break and having something else
to offer besides alcohol.

It just doesn't seem prudent based
on the other objections of -- that have been
raised at past meetings. Thank you.

CHATRMAN HARKER: Thank you.

MS. NOBLE: Staff report has a lot of
information in regards to the standards such as
parking and traffic, noise, and adequate
utilities and other establishments that have
ligquor licenses.

This is not the Liquor Commission,
so tonight we're only considering special use;
there will be another process for the liquor
licensing portion of it.

This is the only property that is
seeking a special use just to serve alcohol at
the moment and that's why it is a special use in
our zoning ordinance, so that we can have this

public forum to address it.
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As far as parking, the required
parking for the former law office use was three
parking spaces for the entire establishment,
which they met with their on-street parking prior
to the widening of 47.

With the current use, they would be
required to have four parking spaces. That is
accommodated with the common city parking lot
behind the development. There's also another
city lot down the street, and our zoning
ordinance allows that parking can be within
1,000 feet of a use to consider it as available
parking, so it meets that standard.

Let's see. So there is 20 parking
stalls on the parking -- the established parking
on the southeast corner of South Main Street and
Van Emmon, and then their on-street parking on
Van Emmon as well as parking in the rear, so they
adequately meet the parking requirement.

As far as noise, the noise
ordinance, which is in Section 4 of the Municipal
Code which deals with the police section, uses of
commercial in nature have a maximum decibel level

of 70 during the day, and daytime hours are
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7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m., and then no more than 55

decibels at any receiving residential land during
the nighttime, between 10:01 and 6:59.

So the nearest residentially zoned
and occupied property to this building is located
about 350 feet away to the east at the southwest
corner of East Van Emmon and Heustis Street.

The city is, however, in the process
of reviewing and possibly revising our noise
ordinance to take into consideration not only
sound, but migration.

We've had other issues at other
establishments in regard to that, and if those
regulations are revised at any time, the proposed
business owner -- the proposed business would be
required to meet those requirements, and they
stated to us that they were more than willing and
capable of meeting those requirements.

The proposed use is consistent with
our Comprehensive Plan, which is a commercial
land use in nature, and as far as other
establishments, I've listed all the
establishments that have liquor licenses and

serve liquor in some capacity within the city.
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Right now we have one, two, three,
four, five, six, seven, eight, nine, nine that
have a Class A or Class A-1, R-1, C, B, G, and K,
which have all different designations depending
on what type of alcohol they're selling, packaged
or whatever.

All of them meet the zoning
reguirement in either a restaurant, another type
of land use, so not strictly a tavern, which this
establishment is requesting, so they did not go
through this process.

As far as the clientele of the
establishment, zoning does not regulate that. We
regulate, and my department particularly, is the
form of the building, make sure that it's safe to
inhabit, that it meets all the code criteria, and
that it's an appropriate land use, so in regards
to clientele, that's not the role of this
committee.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Excellent. Thank you.

Anybody else —-- Anybody up here on
the Commission have any dquestions for the
petitioner?

MR. GALMARINI: I do. So three -- three
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main questions, right? The first one talks in
particular about, of course, the clientele.

First of all I want you to
understand I am all in favor of new businesses
coming in, and say but I understand your concern,
so I'd like to understand your marketing plan.

What's your target audience and how
are you going to do that, right? That's what I
would like to understand, which segment of your
demographic are you going for.

MR. INGEMUNSON: Well, I'm really
targeting probably 30 to 70-year olds, the same
type of kind of market that we're targeting with
the music that we present at our festival.

That tends to be the demographic
that lives in this area, and that's the one that
I am targeting first and foremost, 1is the local
community.

I think that there is -- especially
in the suburbs there is really not any sort of
offering for the type of music we're going to
provide.

I'm not interested in having metal

bands or hip hop or anything like that. I mean,
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it's Americana music, it's usually -- mainly easy
listening.

I want to go to a place with friends
that I am friends with, and people that I target
as consumers are the people that kind of would I
guess fall along the lines of my I guess likes
and dislikes, so that's who I would be marketing
towards.

MR. GALMARINTI: Sure. So I think
probably we need to make sure we have a good
understanding of what your marketing plan is,
right?

I understand what your assimilation
group is and what you're trying to do there, but
let me understand. I heard the word
microbrewery.

Are you trying to make a
microbrewery --

MR. INGEMUNSON: Well, I think that --

MR. GALMARINI: -— or are you going to
just serve wine --

MR. INGEMUNSON: That's a misconception
that --

MR. GALMARINTI: -— or serve hard
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alcohol?

MR. INGEMUNSON: That's a misconception
that starts when newspapers report the wrong
thing.

I never represented to anyone that
we were going to do a brewery in that
establishment. Ever.

The Beacon News as we know sometimes
doesn't necessarily get the facts correct, and
they reported that incorrectly, so I -- that's
been never represented that I was going to do
that type of use there, there is not enough room
in there to house a brewery, so, I mean, we've --
we've taken -- we deconstructed the existing law
office, I am utilizing a lot of the same decor
from the existing law office into the new
development and the build out.

It's going to be --— I mean, if it's
a place that I'm going to put my reputation on,
it's going to be geared towards middle income to
upper middle income people.

MR. GALMARINTI: Okay.

MR. INGEMUNSON: I can guarantee you

that.
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MR. GALMARINI: Okay. The second part
of my question has to do with your proposed
arrangement with the downtown restaurants, right,
which A, are local businesses. I like that. I
like seeing cooperation with other local
businesses.

But my guestion is are you going to
inventory some of that food on-site or is it all
going to be ordered and brought in as the
customers order it?

MR. INGEMUNSON: Typically what we're
probably going to do is similar to -- if you've
been up to World of Beers up in Naperville, they
have menus there that people can order food in
and they just order literally to the
establishment and say deliver the food here.
That's one option.

Rowdy's being in close proximity,
we've already discussed with them having an
actual menu on-site, with a limited —-- not their
full menu, but a limited amount of offerings,
that would be easy to eat, finger food, nothing
that would take utensils or anything else, where

they could package it in some sort of package and
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just run it up the street.

How we convey those orders from the
customer through Rowdy's, we have not actually
figured out all the logistics of that yet, but I
mean, that's what we're talking about now.

MR. GALMARINI: But there is a pending
agreement in place with Rowdy's?

MR. INGEMUNSON: Ch, yeah. I mean,
they're definitely more than happy to provide
that for us and we are more than happy to have
them provide it for us. I mean, they —-- they
definitely want to do it and we want them to do
it.

MR. GALMARINI: Okay. I mean, I'm just
concerned because I really want to make sure that
there i1s food available to people.

MR. INGEMUNSON: And I plan on -- I'm a
big fan of having -- kind of a throwback of
having peanuts around, where people can throw
peanuts on the floor. That's something you can
do easily.

And I agree, I want -- as a business
owner, I think having food be available, whether

they order it or it could be bought off the
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street, definitely 1is an attraction for people.

People don't go out typically just
to go out and drink. People tend to go out, they
have some food.

Now, our shows that we're going to
be offering, people will go and they will have
dinner across the street or they'll have dinner
down at Rowdy's and they may come to our place
after they have dinner, too, and so I don't
necessarily see it as a place people are just
going to come and skip dinner, and that's -- I
don't typically see that people that we are
targeting are going to be that irresponsible.

MR. GALMARINI: Okay. And then my final
guestion is around your entertainment, right? Is
your entertainment venue going to be -- you've
already said the type of music.

Is i1t going to be inside or are you
planning to use any of the outside?

MR. INGEMUNSON: No, no, it's all
indoors. I mean, the only thing that we would
consider possibly doing on a very limited basis,
but it's very, very early stages, but in

conjunction with our Summer Solstice Festival, we
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obviocusly are working with all the business
owners to provide outdoor entertainment as well
as indoor entertainment in all the establishments
downtown.

I thought in the long run
potentially of having some outdoor entertainment
around our business, but that's very, very early
stages.

I mean, we're not planning on doing
that this year at all, it would be something that
would be down the road, and that would be
something that clearly would be a different issue
that would have to be worked out with the city
independently.

MR. GALMARINTI: Okay. Sorry, one
follow-up. It's like four. I lied.

I'm looking at the picture; the main
entrance to the venue will be off of Bridge
Street or off of Van Emmon?

MR. INGEMUNSON: Van Emmon.

MR. GALMARINI: Okay.

MR. INGEMUNSON: It's kind of
interesting because --

MR. GALMARINI: Yeah, that's a little
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risky there.

MR. INGEMUNSON: Well, yeah. I mean,
the state widens the road and literally four and
a half feet from my stoop is a speeding semi with
no guardrail. It's rather dangerous to even
utilize that, yeah.

MR. GALMARINI: I know I looked at --

that's what I was looking at, the pictures of --

MR. INGEMUNSON: No, I do not -- That is
going to be an emergency exit only. I mean, it's
very dangerous there. I keep everyone off of --

and I think that's the trend for most of the
businesses on the east side and the west side, is
to utilize the east side of the buildings.

MR. GALMARINTI: Thank you. I don't have
any more questions.

MR. INGEMUNSON: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Anybody else?

MR. KRAUPNER: Yeah. Just out of
curiosity, you've got your layout here of what
you're looking at putting in.

Where is the music? Where is the —--
Is there a stage?

MR. INGEMUNSON: The stage 1s on the
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Route 47 -- on the far wall.

MR. KRAUPNER: It's along the back
wall —--

MR. INGEMUNSON: Yeah.

MR. KRAUPNER: -- where your emergency
door will be?

MR. INGEMUNSON: Yep.

MR. KRAUPNER: Okay. All right. It
wasn't clear in the picture. Thanks.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Any further qguestions?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Thank you.

MR. INGEMUNSON: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: All right. Moving on
to the next public hearing here, which is PC
2016-03, Unified Faith in Christ Church.

PASTOR WILL SHORE,
having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

PASTOR SHORE: Good evening. I am
Pastor Will Shore of Unified Faith in Christ
Church. What we are proposing is to —- 1is the
location of 210 Beaver Street to be zoned for

special use.
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I know probably the question is why
there and why Yorkville, those type of questions,
and the reason we -- we came upon this location
is our church currently is in Downers Grove and
we share that with another church building, and
after numerous years of doing that, we finally
made a decision that we needed to have a place
of our own, an opportunity to really serve in
the community, to be able to establish
ministries within the church such as Sunday
school classes and so forth, and our congregation
is a little bit strange, it's scattered all over
the place.

We have people as far as DeKalb
traveling to Downers Grove and from other -- some
of the other surrounding communities, and this
seemed to be a little bit more centralized for
our congregation to gather.

The facility, when we came upon --
when we came upon it, at first look from the
outside we thought it's simply a warehouse, but
once we entered the unit, you would probably see
from the floor plan that the unit is set up more

with offices.
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There is one room, a larger room,
not guite the size of this, that would be a
gathering place for worship, but because of the
classrooms, it was ideal for us to be able to
hold our Sunday school classes, to have a little
kid's zone for children to be able to play, we
could set up a nursery and so forth.

It is actually an ideal setup for us
as a church, and it would allow us to get settled
into a community where we can really participate,
and one of the things I want to tell you about
our church is one, we are a benevolent church,
and we are a church that does like to get
involved in the community.

Come Christmas you'll find us at the
local Aldi's buying groceries for unsuspecting
shoppers. We like to do things, picnics and so
forth. Now, it obviously isn't a place for
picnics, but you have parks where we can gather
and do things of that nature.

So this place was just simply ideal
as far as location, setup and even the cost with
it. We are a small congregation, so cost

obviously was a consideration, too, so if you
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have any questions whatsoever, I'd be more than
happy to answer those, any concerns.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: All right. Thank
you.

Is anybody present tonight that
would like to speak in favor of this request?
(No response.)

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Seeing none, anybody
here that would like to speak in opposition to
this request?

(No response.)

CHATRMAN HARKER: Seeing none, any
questions from the Plan Commissioners?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Seeing none, all

right. Thank you.

27

Can I have a motion to close out of

the public hearing portion of this -- tonight's
meeting?
M3. HORAZ: Motion.

MR. KRAUPNER: I'll second.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Can I get a roll call,

please?

MS. YOUNG: Galmarini.
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MR. GALMARINI: Yes.

MS. YOUNG:
MS. GOINS:
MS. YOUNG:

Goins.
Yes.

Kraupner.

MR. KRAUPNER: Yes.

MS. YOUNG:

Mr. Vinyard.

MR. VINYARD: Yes.

MS. YOUNG:
MS. HORAZ:
MS. YOUNG:

Horaz.

Yes.

Harker.

CHAIRMAN HARKER: Yes.

{Which were all the
proceedings had in the
public hearing portion
of the meeting.)

---00o0---
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.
COUNTY OF LASALLE )

I, Christine M. Vitosh, a Certified Shorthand
Reporter, do hereby certify that I transcribed
the proceedings had at the pubic hearing and that
the foregoing, Pages 1 through 29, inclusive, 1is
a true, correct and complete computer—-generated
transcript of the proceedings had at the time and
place aforesaid.

I further certify that my certificate annexed
hereto applies to the original transcript and
copies thereof, signed and certified under my
hand only. I assume no responsibility for the
accuracy of any reproduced copies not made under
my control or direction.

As certification thereof, I have hereunto set

my hand this 1lst day of March, A.D., 2016.

Christine M. Vitosh, CSR
Illinois CSR No. 084-002883
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Memorandum

To: Plan Commission
From: Chris Heinen, Planner
CC: Bart Olson, City Administrator

Krysti J. Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director
Date: March 30, 2016
Subject: Rezoning request of the Silver Fox development located on Fox
Road, between Pavilion Road and Ford Drive.

Background & Request:

The petitioner, BBB Farms LLC, petitioner, has filed an application with the United City
of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting rezoning approval from R-2, Single-Family
Traditional Residence District to A-1, Agricultural District. The real property is located on Fox
Road, between Pavilion Road and Ford Drive in Yorkville, Illinois.




The property was annexed pursuant to an
annexation agreement on August 8, 2006 to the City of
Yorkville by the Midwest Development group by
Ordinance 2006-69. The property was zoned R-2
Single Family Residence District and is known as the
Silver Fox Development. The Silver Fox subdivision
was approved for a 172-unit single-family residential
development. The original developer, Midwest
Development LLC, secured Concept Plan approval only
for the approximately 102 acre property but was never
granted Preliminary or Final Plat approval. The land
has remained undeveloped since that time. In March of
2015, an application for a special use for an air-
supported dome structure for indoor athletic recreation
was submitted to the City for review. The petitioner
has since withdrawn and was never formally approved
by City Councill. - EeE

The petitioner recently purchased the property |- == =" T
and is looking to maintain the agricultural use. As part | |
of the first amendment to the annexation agreement
dated May 26, 2015 by Ordinance 2015-28, the property was to repeal any and all cross
contingencies and obligations which are now valid against developable area and remain within
the R-2 zoning classification. Additionally, the current use, agricultural, shall be permitted to
continue as a legal non-conforming use. This legal non-conforming use status would expire on
August 7, 2026 and per the Zoning Ordinance, Section 10-15-4D, “any nonconforming use of
land where no enclosed building is involved, or where the only buildings employed are accessory
or incidental to such use, or where such use is maintained in connection with a conforming
building, shall be removed after a period of two (2) years.” This would require the petitioner to
apply for an extension every two years in order to maintain the agricultural use. It is the intent of
the petitioner to continue farming the property beyond the agreement time frame and is therefore
requesting the rezoning to Agriculture.

Comprehensive Plan:

The City’s Comprehensive Plan Update 2008 has
designated this  parcel primarily as  “Suburban
Neighborhood” which is intended primarily for single-
family detached residences. It is also designated as
“Park/Open Space” which is intended to preserve existing
public open spaces such as recreational areas (park lands),
existing privately held open space properties such as
cemeteries, while identifying environmentally sensitive
areas to establish appropriate locations for new designated
open spaces. It should be noted that a majority of the

rﬁ subdivisions planned for this area were

ot approved prior to the Comprehensive

ém:':::::::‘: e e, BT B | Plan being adopted in 2008. A majority
= T ST B e w0 | OF these uses within the Comp Plan
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mimicked what was approved for a site or the existing zoning at the time of approval.

As part of the proposed Comprehensive Plan Update concurrently being revised by The
Lakota Group, this area is intended to be designated as Estate/Conservation Residential. These
neighborhoods are intended to provide flexibility for residential design in areas of Yorkville that
can accommodate low density detached single family housing but also include sensitive
environmental and scenic features that should be retained and enhanced. Such neighborhoods
can be characterized by conventional development, such as detached housing on large lots, or
conservation design by clustering homes together that leave undeveloped green pace for
agriculture, preservation of historic and cultural resources, and open space for community use. In
conservation design, generally 40 to 60 percent of a development site is set aside in conservation
areas; therefore, homes may be built on smaller lots than in a conventional estate-type
subdivision. Suitable locations for Estate/Conservation Residential neighborhoods include areas
that serve as suitable transitions from Suburban Neighborhoods to agricultural zones, and places
of identifiable scenic views, tree masses and environmental features. It should be noted that the
update to the comp plan is currently being reviewed and has not been approved by City Council.
Additionally, recommendations from the proposed Comp Plan update will include filling in
existing subdivisions as a priority as the City has several years of inventory for single family
detached homes. Due to the amount of inventory within the city, staff feels that this property
would not develop within the next five to ten years and would remain agricultural in nature.

Existing Conditions:

As you can see by the aerial on Page 1 of this memo, the subject property and
surrounding properties are mainly agricultural in nature, with the exception of the Hoover Forest
Preserve and the Fox Glen Subdivision. The existing zoning and land use for properties
surrounding the subject property are as indicated below.

Zoning Land Use
North | Kendall County/Forest Preserve County Residences & Forest Preserve
East Kendall County Vacant/Farm Land
South | Kendall County Vacant/Farm Land
West Kendall County Farmstead/Farm Land

Amendment Criteria:

Section 10-4-10B of the City’s Zoning Ordinance establishes standards for proposed
amendment requests. Where the purpose and effect of the proposed amendment are to change
the zoning classification of a particular property, the plan commission shall make findings based
upon the evidence presented to it in each specific case with respect to the following matters:

The existing uses and zoning of nearby property.

2. The extent to which the property values are diminished by the particular zoning
restrictions.

3. The extent to which the destruction of property values of plaintiff promotes the health,
safety, morals or general welfare of the public.



4. The relative gain to the public as compared to the hardship imposed upon the individual
property owner.

5. The suitability of the subject property for the zoned purposes.

6. The length of time the property has been vacant as zoned considered in the context of
land development in the area in the vicinity of the subject property.

7. The community need for the purposed use.
8. The care to which the community has undertaken to plan its land use development.

The applicant has provided written responses to these amendment standards as part
of their application and requests inclusion of those responses into the public record.

Staff Comments:

This petition was discussed at the March 1, 2016 Economic Development Committee
meeting. There were no additional comments generated from this meeting. A recommendation
from the Plan Commission will be forwarded to the City Council for consideration at the April
26, 2016 regularly scheduled meeting.

Staff will be available to answer any question the Plan Commission may have at
Wednesday night’s meeting.

Proposed Motion for Rezoning:

In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on April 13, 2016 and
discussions conducted at that meeting, the Plan Commission recommends approval to the City
Council a request for rezoning approval from R-2, Single-Family Traditional Residence
District to A-1, Agricultural District. The real property is located on Fox Road, between
Pavilion Road and Ford Drive in Yorkville, Illinois, subject to staff recommendations and
conditions in a memo dated March 30, 2016, and further subject to {insert any additional
conditions of the Plan Commission}...

Attachments:

1. Copy of Petitioner’s Application

2. Ordinance 2006-69

3. Ordinance 2015-28

4. Section 10-15-4D of the Zoning Ordinance
5. Copy of Public Notice



FEB 16 2016

United City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, Illinois 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
Fax: 630-553-3436

APPLICATION FOR REZONING

An application for Map Amendment, or commonly referred to as “rezoning”, is a request to reclassity a property
from one zoning designation to within another zoning district. Requests for rezoning must not be merely
arbitrary, but has to have validity as to the appropriate zoning classification for the existing or proposed land
use in consideration of certain factors such as: the existing land use and zoning of the surrounding properties;
suitability of the land use within the current zoning district; the trend of development in the general area;
impact the proposed rezoning would have on traffic; the potential diminishment of property values due to the
rezoning; and the promotion of public health, safety, morals or general welfare of the public as a result of the

proposed rezoning.

This packet explains the process to successfully submit and complete an Application for Rezoning. It includes
a detailed description of the process and the actual application itself (Pages 6 to 12). Please type the required
information in the application on your computer. The application will need to be printed and signed by the
applicant. The only item that needs to be submitted to the city from this packet is the application. The rest of
the packet is to help guide you through the process unto completion.

For a complete explanation of what is legally required throughout the Rezoning Request process, please refer
to “Title 10, Chapter 14, Section 7 Amendments™ of the Yorkville, Illinois City Code.




Application Procedure

Procedure Flow Chart

Step 1
Submit Application, Fees, and All Pertinent Information to the
Community Development Department

!

Step 2
If Applicable
Plan Council Review
(Meets 2nd and 4th Thursday of the month)

\ 4

Step 3
Plan Commission Public Hearing
(Meets 2nd Wednesday of the Month)

\ 4

Step 4
City Council Public Hearing
(Meets 2nd and 4th Wednesday of the Month)




Application Procedure

Application Submittal
The following must be submitted to the Community Development Department:

« 2 original signed applications with legal description.

« 5 copies each of the application and exhibits, proposed drawings, location map, and site plan.
Large items must be folded to fit ina 10” x 13” envelope.

» Appropriate filing fee. (See attached Fee Sheet on page 5)

« 1 CD containing an electronic copy (pdf) of each of the signed application (complete with
exhibit), proposed drawings, location map, and site plan. A Microsoft Word document with the
legal description is required on the CD.

Within one (1) week of submittal, the Community Development Department will determine if the application
is complete or if additional information is needed. These materials must be submitted a minimum of 45 days
prior to the targeted Plan Commission meeting. An incomplete submittal could delay the scheduling of the

project.

Applicant will be responsible for payment of recording fees and public hearing costs, including written
transcripts of the public hearing and outside consultant costs (i.e. legal review, land planner, zoning coordinator,
environmental, etc.). The applicant will be required to establish a deposit account with the city to cover these
fees. The Petitioner Deposit Account/Acknowledgement of Financial Responsibility form is attached to this
document and must be submitted with the application.

Plan Council (If Applicable)

Applicant may present the proposed request to the Plan Council. The Plan Council meets on the 2nd and 4th
Thursday of the month. The members of the Council include the Community Development Director, City
Engineer, the Building Department Official, the Public Works Director, the Director of Parks and Recreation, a
Fire Department Representative, and a Police Department Representative. Upon recommendation by the Plan
Council, applicant will move forward to the Plan Commission hearing.

Plan Commission

Applicant will attend a public hearing conducted by the Plan Commission. The Plan Commission meets on
the 2nd Wednesday of the Month at 7:00pm. Notice will be placed in the Kendall County Record by the
United City of Yorkville. The applicant is responsible for sending certified public hearing notices to adjacent
property owners within 500 feet of the subject property no less than 15 days and no more than 30 days prior
to the public hearing date. Twenty Four (24) hours prior to the public hearing, a certified affidavit must be
filed by the applicant with the Community Development Department containing the names, addresses and
permanent parcel numbers of all parties that were notified. The Plan Commission will conduct a public hearing
on the request, take public comments, discuss the request, and make a recommendation to City Council. The
Certified Mailing Affidavit form is attached to this document and must be submitted prior to the scheduled Plan
Commission meeting.




Application Procedure

City Council

Applicant will attend the City Council meeting where the recommendation of the rezoning request will be
considered. The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Tuesdays of the month at 7:00pm. City Council will
make the final approval of the rezoning request.

Dormant Applications

The Community Development Director shall determine if an application meets or fails to meet the requirements
stated above. If the Director determines that the application is incomplete it will become dormant under these

circumstances:

»  The applicant has been notified of such deficiencies and has not responded or provided a time line for
completing the application within ninety (90) days from the time of notification.

«  The applicant has not responded in writing to a request for information or documentation from the
initial plan commission review within six (6) months from the date of that request.

The applicant has not responded to a request for legal or engineering deposit replenishment for city
incurred costs and fees within ninety (90) days from the date of the request.

If the Community Development Director has sent the required notice and the applicant has not withdrawn their
application or brought it into compliance, then the director shall terminate the application. After termination,
the application shall not be reconsidered except after the filing of a completely new application.

Withdrawal or termination of an application shall not affect the applicant’s responsibility for payment of any
costs and fees, or any other outstanding debt owed to the city. The balance of any funds deposited with the city
that is not needed to pay for costs and fees shall be returned to the applicant. (Ord. 2011-34, 7-26-2011)




United City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, Illinois 60560
Telephone:  630-553-4350

Fax: 630-553-7575
INVOICE & WORKSHEET
PETITION APPLICATION
CONTACT: DEVELOPMENT/ PROPERTY:
Craig Borneman Silver Fox Development
Acreage; 101 acres
Date: 2-12-16
Concept Plan Review: []Yes []1No $
Engineering Plan Review Deposit of $500 due
Amendment: |[]Yes [1No $
$500.00 Fee due for each: (Annexation) (Plan) (Plat) (PUD)
Annexation: [] Yes []No $
$250.00, plus $10/acre for each acre over 5.
# of acres: -5= x $10= +$250
Rezoning: [] Yes [1No $ 1,160
$200.00, plus $10/acre for each acre over 5.
# of acres: 101 -5=86 x$10= 960 +$200

If annexing and rezoning, charge only 1 per acre fee.
If rezoning to a PUD, charge PUD Development Fee- not Rezoning Fee.

Special Use: |[] Yes [1Neo $
$250.00, plus $10/acre for each acre over 5.
# of acres: -5= x $10= +$250

Zoning Variance: $85.00 []Yes [ ] No $

Outside Consultants deposit of $500.00 due

Preliminary Plan Fee: $500.00 []Yes [ No s
P.U.D. Fee: $500.00 (] Yes [ ] No $
Final Plat Fee: $500.00 []Yes [1Neo $
Engineering Plan Review Deposit: [ ] Yes [1Ne $

[ ] Less than 1 acre = $1,000 due

[ ] Over 1 acre and less than 10 acres = $2,500 due

[ ] Over 10 acres and less than 40 acres = $5,000 due

[ ] Over 40 acres and less than 100 acres = $10,000 due
[ ] Over 100 acres = $20,000 due

Outside Consultants Deposit: [ ] Yes []No 5 1,000
Legal, Land Planner, Zoning Coordinator, Environmental Services

Annexation, Subdivision, Rezoning, and Special Use:

| ] Less than 2 acres = $1,000 due

[ ] Over 2 acres and less than 10 acres = $2,500 due

[ ] Over 10 acres = $5,000 due

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: $ 2,160

Word/ O Dnive/ Dev. Dep. ARO/ Fee Sheet Wkst



Application For Re-Zoning

STAFF USE ONLY

Date of Submission

PC#

Development Name

Applicant Information

BBB Farms LLC

Name of Applicant(s)

Business Address | 12034 State Rt 71

Yorkville State ||llinois ZIP | 60560

City

Business Phone Business Fax

Business E-mail

Business Cell  |630-973-8685 cborneman@hotmail.com
Property Information

Name of Holder of Legal Title

BBB Farms LLC

If Legal Title is held by a Land Trust, list the names of all holders of any beneficial interest therein:

Property Street Address

101 acres on Fox Road Yorkville

Description of Property’s Physical Location

1&1/2 miles west of Rt 47 on Fox Road south of Fox Glen Subdivision

Current Zoning Classification

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Designation

Zoning and Land Use of Surrounding Parcels

North Yorkville: R-2; Kendall County R-3 & A1-SU
East Kendall County A-1; Yorkville R-2

South Kendall County A-1

West Kendall County A-1; Yorkville R-2

R2 One Family

Requested Zoning Classificaion

A-1 Agricultural

Suburban Neighborhood & Park/Open Space

Total Acreage

Kendall County Parcel Number(s) Within Proposed PUD

101

05-06-100-008

05-06-100-008

05-06-100-008

05-06-100-008

05-06-100-008

05-06-100-008

05-06-100-008

05-06-100-008

05-06-100-008

05-06-100-008

05-06-100-008

05-06-100-008




Application For Rezoning

Property Information

List all governmental entities or agencies required to receive notice under Illinois law:

N/A
Is the property within City limits? Yes (] No
Does a floodplain exist on the property? Yes No .

Additional Contact Information

Attorney

Name

Address
City State ZIP

Phone Fax

E-mail

Engineer

Name

Address

City State ZIP

Phone Fax

E-mail

Planner

Name

Address
City State ZIP

Phone Fax

E-mail




Application For Rezoning

Rezoning Standards

Please state the existing zoning classification(s) and uses of the property within the general area of the proposed
rezoned property:

The existing land uses and zoning surrounding the subject property are: single family residential
(Fox Glen Subdivision) and Kendall County Forest Preserve to the north; rural agricultural land in
unincorporated Kendall County and residentially zoned but undeveloped land to the east;
unincorporated agriculturally zoned farm land to the south; and unincorporated agriculturally
zoned farm land and residentially zoned but undeveloped land to the west.

Please state the trend of development, if any, in the general area of the property in question, including
changes, if any, which have taken place since the day the property in question was placed in its present zoning
classification:

The land use in general area of the subject property has remained primarily agriculture or open
space for several decades, with the exception of the Fox Glen subdivision located directly to the
north which was approved in --- by Kendall County. There was trend in the mid 2000's to rezone
the subject property and surrounding agricultural property to single-family planned unit
developments at the height of the housing boom. However, none of those developments were
constructed or final platted and the subject property and surrounding lands remained agricultural.

Please state the extent to which property values are diminished by the particular zoning restrictions:

Since the rezoning request will not alter the existing land use of the subject property, there should
be little, if any, change in property values of surrounding uses if the rezoning to agriculture is
approved.

Please state the extent to which the destruction of property values of plaintiff promotes the health, safety,
morals, and general welfare of the public:

As stated previously, there would be little, if any, destruction of property values as a result of the
proposed rezoning of the subject property to A-1 Agriculture, which is consistent with the current
land use. Therefore the effect on the public health, safety, morals and general welfare is neutral.




Application For Rezoning

Rezoning Standards

Please state the relative gain to the public as compared to the hardship imposed upon the individual property
owner:

The relative gain to the general public, if the rezoning were to be approved, is the continued use
of the subject property for agricultural purposes and provide for the protection, conservation and
utilization of natural resources until such time redevelopment is warranted.

Please state the suitability of the subject property for the zoned purposes:

The existing agricultural use is consistent with the proposed A-1 Agricultural District.

Please state the length of time the property has been vacant as zoned considered in the context of land
development in the area in the vicinity of the subject property:

The subject property was rezoned from A-1 Agricultural in 2006 as a 172-unit single-family
residential development zoned R-2. Since that time, the property has remained vacant and
continued to be utilized for agricultural proposes.

Please state the community need for the proposed land use:

The community need for the proposed agricultural land use remains the same as it did when
previously rezoned in 2006.




Application For Rezoning

Rezoning Standards

With respect to the subject property, please state the care with which the community has undertaken to plan its
land use development:

The subject property is designated as Suburban Neighborhood and Parks/Open Space in the
2008 Comprehensive Plan Update. The Suburban Neighborhood land use classification is
intended to be residential area primarily compromised of single-family detached residences. The
Parks/Open Space land use classification is intended to preserve existing public open spaces
such as recreational areas (park lands). The City is currently in the process of revising the 2008
Comprehensive Plan and the preliminary recommendation is to designate the subject property for
an agriculture land use.

Please state the impact that such reclassification will have upon traffic and traffic conditions on said routes; the
effect, if any, such reclassification and/or annexation would have upon existing accesses to said routes; and the
impact of additional accesses as requested by the petitioner upon traffic and traffic conditions and flow on said
routes (Ord. 1976-43, 11-4-1976):

Since the land use will remain the same, agriculture, under the proposed rezoning, there should
be no significant impact to traffic and traffic conditions surrounding the subject property.

Attachments

Applicant must attach a legal description of the property to this application and title it as “Exhibit A”.

Applicant must list the names and addresses of any adjoining or contiguous landowners within 500 feet of the
property that are entitled notice of application under any applicable City Ordinance or State Statute. Attach a
separate list to this application and title it as “Exhibit B”.

10



Application For Rezoning

Agreement

I verify that all the information in this application is true to the best of my knowledge. I understand and accept
all requirements and fees as outlined as well as any incurred administrative and planning consultant fees which
must be current before this project can proceed to the next scheduled committee meeting.

I understand all of the information presented in this document and understand that if an application becomes
dormant it is through my own fault and I must therefore follow the requirements outlined above.

4 = Applicant Signature Date
BAE Foarme Lic =X=/S-/¢€

TRy,
U ak‘\oz’ LA i " /71:}"‘* -

Owner hereby authorizes the applicant to persue the appropiate entitlements on the property.

Owner Signature Date
)
[566 Favass, O o ~i€= [&

o

THIS APPLICATION MUST BE NOTARIZED
PLEASE NOTARIZE IN THE SPACE BELOW:

OFFICIAL SEAL
DREA M WEINERT

\OTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF 1n.m016mm'

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: s

11



United City of Yorkville

SRy amOF fpniaall Coutly Petitioner Deposit Account /

800 Game Farm Road

Yorkville, Illinois, 60560 Acknow|edg ment of Financial

Telephone: 630-553-4350

Fax: 630-553-7575 TR
M?:bsite: www.yorkville.il.us Res pOnS | bl I |ty

Development/Property Address: Project No.: FOR CITY USE ONLY Fund Account No.: FOR CITY USE ONLY

Petition/Approval Type: check appropriate box(es) of approval requested
0O Concept Plan Review [ Amendment (Text) (Annexation) (Plat) O Annexation

@ Rezoning O Special Use 0 Mile and % Review
0 Zoning Variance  Preliminary Plan Q Final Plans
QP.UD. Q Final Plat

Petitioner Deposit Account Fund:

It is the policy of the United City of Yorkville to require any petitioner seeking approval on a project or entitlement request to
establish a Petitioner Deposit Account Fund to cover all actual expenses occurred as a result of processing such applications and
requests. Typical requests requiring the establishment of a Petitioner Deposit Account Fund include, but are not limited to, plan
review of development approvals/engineering permits. Deposit account funds may also be used to cover costs for services related to
legal fees, engineering and other plan reviews, processing of other governmental applications, recording fees and other outside
coordination and consulting fees. Each fund account is established with an initial deposit based upon the estimated cost for services
provided in the INVOICE & WORKSHEET PETITION APPLICATION. This initial deposit is drawn against to pay for these
services related to the project or request. Periodically throughout the project review/approval process, the Financially Responsible
Party will receive an invoice reflecting the charges made against the account. At any time the balance of the fund account fall below
ten percent (10%) of the original deposit amount, the Financially Responsible Party will receive an invoice requesting additional
funds equal to one-hundred percent (100%) of the initial deposit if subsequent reviews/fees related to the project are required. In the
event that a deposit aceount is not immediately replenished, review by the administrative staff, consultants, boards and commissions
may be suspended until the account is fully replenished. If additional funds remain in the deposit account at the completion of the
project, the city will refund the balance to the Financially Responsible Party. A written request must be submitted by the Financially
Responsible Party to the city by the 15% of the month in order for the refund check to be processed and distributed by the 15t of the
following month. All refund checks will be made payable to the Financially Responsible Party and mailed to the address provided
when the account was established.

ACEKENOWLEDGMENT OF FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Name/Company Name: Address: City: State: Zip Code:

Telephone: Mobile: Fax: E-mail:

Financially Responsible Party:

I acknowledge and understand that as the Financially Responsible Party, expenses may exceed the estimated initial deposit and,
when requested by the United City of Yorkville, I will provide additional funds to maintain the required account balance. Further,
the sale or other disposition of the property does not relieve the individual or Company/Corporation of their obligation to maintain a
positive balance in the fund account, unless the United City of Yorkville approves a Change of Responsible Party and transfer of
funds. Should the account go into deficit, all City work may stop until the requested replenishment deposit is received.

Print Name: Craig L Bomeman ) Title: M-
( , - LY Cn/
Signature*: (_/ilb\‘?’] X-/ é/ﬁ gty Date: February 16, 2016

I

*The name of the individual and the person who signs this declaration must be the same. If a corporation is listed, a
corporate officer must sign the declaration (President, Vice-President, Chairman, Secretary or Treasurer)

FOR CITY USE ONLY

ACCOUNT CLOSURE AUTHORIZATION:

Date Requested: (| Completed [ Inactive
Print Name: [ Withdrawn [ Collections
Signature: [ Other

DEPARTMENT ROUNTING FOR AUTHORIZATION: =) Comm Dev. [ Building [ Engineering [d Finance [ Admin.
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THAT PART OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT
OF WAY LINE OF THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY, WHICH POINT,
PREVIOUSLY MONUMENTED BY A CONCRETE MONUMENT, IS REPORTED TO BE 50.54 FEET
SOUTH 61 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY FROM THE
INTERSECTION OF SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE AND NORTH LINE OF SECTION 6, THENCE
SOUTH 61 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY
LINE OF SAID RAILROAD, 1437.98 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 38 SECONDS
EAST, 406.94 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 25 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST, 1326.82 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 24 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 33 SECONDS EAST, 1405.93 FEET; THENCE NORTH 75
DEGREES 51 MINUTES 51 SECONDS EAST 1556.19 FEET; THENCE NORTH 14 DEGREES 05
MINUTES 45 SECONDS WEST, 393.10 FEET, THENCE NORTH 77 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 51
SECONDS EAST, 11.20 FEET, THENCE NORTH 12 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 59 SECONDS WEST
2406.69 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF FOX ROAD, THENCE SOUTH 62 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 18
SECOND WEST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 581.48 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21 DEGREES 46
MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST 784.86 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, (EXCEPT THAT PART
IN FOX GLEN, BEING THAT PART OF THE FOREGOING NORTH OF THE CENTER LINE OF FOX
ROAD), IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, AND ALSO, (EXCEPT THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST % OF
SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, BEGINNING ON THE CENTER LINE OF FOX ROAD AT THE
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF A SUBDIVISION KNOWN AS “FOX GLEN, KENDALL TOWNSHIP,
KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS,” THENCE SOUTH 25 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOT 19 IN SAID SUBDIVISION EXTENDED, 835.57 FEET, THENCE
NORTH 64 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 50 SECONDS EAST 217.38 FEET, THENCE NORTH 18 DEGREES
20 MINUTES 7 SECONDS WEST 708.61 FEET, THENCE NORTH 18 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 5
SECONDS EAST 138.95 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF FOX ROAD, THENCE
NORTH 25 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 24 SECOND WEST 35.0 FEET TO SAID CENTER LINE; THENCE
SOUTH 64 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 36 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 400.0 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING), IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.
SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF KENDALL, IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) ss
COUNTY OF KENDALL )

ORDINANCE NO. 2006- (QEI
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION

OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT OF
(Silver Fox)

WHEREAS, it is prudent and in the best interest of the UNITED CITY OF
YORKVILLE, Kendall County, Illinois, that a certain Annexation Agreement pertaining
to the annexation of real estate described on the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a

part hereof entered into by the UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE; and

WHEREAS, said Annexation Agreement has been drafted and has been considered

by the City Council; and
WHEREAS, the legal owners of record of the territory which is the subject of said
Agreement are ready, willing and able to enter into said Agreement and to perform the

obligations as required hereunder; and

WHEREAS, the statutory procedures provided in 65 ILCS 11-15.1.1, as amended,

for the execution of said Annexation Agreement has been fully complied with; and
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WHEREAS, the property is presently contiguous to the City.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILE, KENDALL COUNTY,

ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS;

Section 1: The Mayor and the City Clerk are herewith authorized and directed to
execute, on behalf of the City, an Annexation Agreement conceming the annexation of
the real estate described therein, a copy of which Annexation Agreement is attached

hereto and made a part hereof.

Section 2: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage

and approval as provided by law.

JAMES BOCK Eé JOSEPH BESCO %
VALERIE BURD A PAUL JAMES %
DEAN WOLFER | % MARTY MUNNS %
ROSE SPEARS \ JASON LESLIE -

Mavor PRoCHASKA Y

Approved by me, as Mayor of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County,
Mlinois, this B Dayof AUGUST , A.D. 2006.
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Passed by the City Council of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County,
Hlinois this B2 day of AuUG VST , AD. 2006.

Prepared by:

John Justin Wyeth

City Attorney

United City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, IL 60560

AANRY,

ATTEST: :—;@%ﬂﬂm
A\
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Revised 8/21/06

ANNEXATION AGREEMENT
SILVER FOX SUBDIVISION

P THIS ANNEXATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), is made and entered as of the
5 dayof {{; “,2006 by and between MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT, LLC anIllinois
Limited Liability Company (collectively, “OWNER/DEVELOPER”), and the UNITED
CITY OF YORKVILLE, a municipal corporation organized and existing under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois (hereinafter referred to as “CITY"’) by and through
its Mayor and Aldermen (“Corporate Authorities”). OWNER/DEVELOPER and the CITY
are sometimes hereinafter referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as the
“Parties”.

RECITALS:

A. OWNER/DEVELOPER is the owner of record of certain parcels of real estate
legally described and shown on the Plat of Annexation, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”
(hereinafter referred to as “SUBJECT PROPERTY™).

B. OWNER/DEVELOPER desire to annex the SUBJECT PROPERTY to the
CITY for the purposes of developing a residential known as Silver Fox. The SUBJECT
PROPERTY is currently contiguous with the existing corporate limits of the CITY and is not
within the boundary of any other city.

C. OWNER/DEVELOPER desire to proceed with the development thereof for
residential use in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

D, OWNER/DEVELOPER propose that the SUBJECT PROPERTY be rezoned
under the R-2 Single-Family Residence District provisions of the City Zoning Ordinance
(“Zoning Ordinance”), to be developed with detached single-family residences within the
SUBJECT PROPERTY consisting of approximately one hundred (100) acres, legally
described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, all as depicted on the Preliminary Plat attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B”’.

E. All public hearings, as required by law, have been duly held by the
appropriate hearing bodies of the CITY upon the matters covered by this Agreement. The
Plan Commission conducted a public hearing regarding the requested zoning and conceptual

site plan on February 17" 2005. City Council conducted the public hearing on the

annexation agreement on January 10", 2006.

F. The CITY and OWNER/DEVELOPER have given all appropriate notices due
to be given pursuant to applicable provisions of the Illinois Compiled Statutes and the City
Code.



G. The Corporate Authorities, after due and careful consideration, have
concluded that the Execution of the Annexation Agreement and Planned Unit Development
Agreement subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement, and the rezoning,
subdivision and development of the SUBJECT PROPERTY as provided for herein, will
inure to the benefit and improvement of the CITY in that it will increase the taxable value of
the real property within4ts corporate limits, promote the sound planning and development of
the CITY and will otherwise enhance and promote the general welfare of the people of the
CITY.

H. (1) Each party agrees that it is in the best interests of the
OWNER/DEVELOPER and the CITY to annex and develop the
SUBJECT PROPERTY described in the attached Exhibit “A and B”
in conformance with the United City of Yorkville Comprehensive
Plan with open spaces totaling over approximately 22.42 acres
interspersed throughout the development and through the provision of
orderly flow of traffic within the development and to adjoining real
property.

(i)  Each party agrees that it is in the best interest of the local
governmental bodies affected and the OWNER/DEVELOPER to
provide for performance standards in the development of the
SUBJECT PROPERTY.

(iii)  Each party agrees that a substantial impact will be placed on the
services of the United City of Yorkville and other governmental
agencies by development of said real property.

(iv) The SUBJECT PROPERTY is contiguous to the corporate
boundaries of the CITY.

L. It is the desire of the CITY, the OWNER/DEVELOPER that the development
and use of the SUBJECT PROPERTY proceed as conveniently as may be, in accordance
with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, and be subject to the applicable ordinances,
codes and regulations of the CITY now in force and effect, except as otherwise provided in
this Agreement.

J. The OWNER/DEVELOPER and their representatives have discussed the
proposed annexation and have had public hearings with the Plan Commission and the City
Council, and prior to the execution hereof, notice was duly published and a public hearing
was held to consider this Agreement, as required by the statutes of the State of Illinois in
such case made and provided.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing preambles and mutual
covenants and agreements contained herein, the Parties hereto agree to enter into this
Agreement and to supplement the Petition for Zoning and Annexation and drawings
submitted therewith, including the Preliminary Plat, attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and agree
that the annexation, zoning and plan for the SUBJECT PROPERTY shall be approved by the



City Council upon the following terms and conditions and in consideration of the various
agreements made between the parties:

1. LEGAL CONFORMANCE WITH LAW. This Agreement is made
pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the CITY ordinances, as
amended from time to ttme, and applicable provisions of the Illinois
Compiled Statutes and the Illinois Constitution.

2. ANNEXATION AND ZONING. As soon as reasonably practicable following
the execution of this Agreement, the Corporate Authorities shall adopt such
ordinances as may be necessary and appropriate to annex and rezone the
SUBJECT PROPERTY under the R-2 Single-Family Residence District
provisions of the City Zoning Ordinance (“Zoning Ordinance™) with 172
residences, all as shown on the Preliminary Plat attached hereto as Exhibit “B”,
provided that interim use of all or any portion of the SUBJECT PROPERTY as
agricultural use shall be permitted as legal non-conforming uses of the SUBJECT
PROPERTY until such portions are actually developed.

OWNER/DEVELOPER agree that the SUBJECT PROPERTY shall be developed in
accordance with the ordinances of the CITY, as approved or subsequently amended, unless
otherwise provided for herein, and agree to follow all of the policies and procedures of the
CITY in connection with such development except as modified in this Agreement and the
Preliminary Plat (Exhibit “B”).

3. UTILITIES, EASEMENTS AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.
OWNER/DEVELOPER agree that any extension and/or construction of the utilities and
public improvements shall be performed in accordance with existing CITY subdivision
regulations as varied by this Agreement. Any on-site work and the cost thereof shall be the
responsibility of OWNER/DEVELOPER within their respective parcels (Utilities and Public
Improvements) except as otherwise provided in this Agreement.

In addition, the CITY agrees that, at OWNER/DEVELOPER’s request, the CITY
shall exercise reasonable and best efforts to acquire off-site easements. All costs related to or
associated with condemnation of property as well as the cost of acquisition of the real
property for easement purposes only, and not as to acquisition of fee title, shall be the
responsibility of OWNER/DEVELOPER. The CITY shall not be obligated to incur any
acquisition cost not approved by OWNER/DEVELOPER.

4. POTABLE WATER SUPPLY, SANITARY SEWER, RECAPTURE,
AND FUNDING MECHANISMS.

A. The CITY represents to OWNER/DEVELOPER that most of the potable
water facilities needed to serve this development will be constructed by the CITY pursuant to
this agreement such that potable water, fire flow and water storage facilities will have
sufficient capacity to adequately serve the needs of the OWNER/DEVELOPER and
occupants of the SUBJECT PROPERTY as developed pursuant to the terms of this



Agreement.

B. With the respect o sanitary sewer treatment capacity, the CITY shall assist
and cooperate with OWNER/DEVELOPER in their efforts to acquire adequate sanitary
sewer treatment capacity from the Yorkville Bristol Sanitary District for use within their
respective parcels in the SUBJECT PROPERTY as developed pursuant to this Agreement.
Additionally, the CITY shall also assist and cooperate with OWNER/DEVELOPER in their
efforts to obtain adequate means of delivery of such sanitary sewer capacity to the SUBJECT
PROPERTY or, in the alternative, shall provide such means of delivery, subject, however, to
the requirements of the Yorkville Bristol Sanitary District where appropriate. The CITY
shall seek to obtain such governmental approvals and permits, but in the event that its best
efforts are not successful, the CITY shall not be liable for any failure to provide adequate
means of delivery of the sanitary sewer treatment capacity contemplated under this
Subsection 5(B) arising from its inability to obtain such approvals and permits; and the CITY
undertakes no duty to pay for the extension of sanitary sewer extensions to the SUBJECT
PROPERTY.

5. SECURITY INSTRUMENTS.

A. Posting Security. OWNER/DEVELOPER shall deposit, or cause to be
deposited, with the CITY such irrevocable letters of credit or surety bonds in the forms
prescribed by the ordinances of the CITY (“Security Instruments”) to guarantee completion
and maintenance of the public improvements to be constructed as a part of the development
as are required by applicable ordinances of the CITY. The OWNER/DEVELOPER shall
have the sole discretion, subject to compliance with IHinois law, as to whether an irrevocable
letter of credit or surety bond will be used as the security instruments. The amount and
duration of each Security Instrument shall be as required by applicable ordinances of the
CITY. The City Council upon recommendation by the City Engineer, may from time to time
approve a reduction or reductions in the Security Instruments by an amount not in excess of
eighty-five percent (85%) of the value certified by the City Engineer of the completed work,
so long as the balance remaining in the Security Instruments is at least equal to one hundred
ten percent (110%) of the cost to complete the remaining public improvements for the
Development.

B. Acceptance of Underground Improvements and Streets. Upon completion and
inspection of underground improvements, streets, and/or related improvements of
Development, and acceptance by the City Council upon recommendation by the City
Engineer, OWNER/DEVELOPER shall be entitled to a release or appropriate reduction of
any applicable Security Instrument, subject to a maintenance Security Instrument remaining
in place for a one year period from the date of acceptance by the CITY, in conformance with
the City Subdivision Control Ordinance.

The CITY shall exercise good faith and due diligence in accepting said public
improvements following OWNER/DEVELOPER’s completion thereof for the Development
in compliance with the requirements of said ordinance, and shall adopt the resolution




accepting said public improvements not later than ninety (90) days of completion of the
punchlist.

C. Transfer and Substitution. Upon the sale or transfer of any portion of their
respective parcels within the SUBJECT PROPERTY, OWNER/DEVELOPER shall be
released from the obligations secured by its Security Instruments for public improvements
upon the submittal and acceptance by the CITY of a substitute Security Instrument approved
by the CITY, securing the costs of the improvements set forth therein.

6. AMENDMENTS TO ORDINANCES. All ordinances, regulations, and
codes of the CITY, including, without limitation those pertaining to subdivision controls,
zoning, storm water management and drainage, comprehensive land use plan, and related
restrictions, as they presently exist, except as amended, varied, or modified by the terms of
this Agreement, shall apply to the SUBJECT PROPERTY and its development for a period
of five (5) years from the date of this Agreement. Any amendments, repeal, or additional
regulations, which are subsequently enacted by the CITY, shall not be applied to the
development of the SUBJECT PROPERTY except upon the written consent of
OWNER/DEVELOPER. during said five (5) year period. The CITY shall give the
OWNER/DEVELOPER a six (6) month grace period from the date they are notified of any
changes to the ordinances, regulations, and codes of the CITY in order to comply with the
new regulations. After said five (5) year period, the SUBJECT PROPERTY and its
development will be subject to all ordinances, regulations, and codes of the CITY in
existence on or adopted after the expiration of said five (5) year period, provided, however,
that the application of any such ordinance, regulation or code shall not result in a reduction
in the number of residential building lots herein approved, alter or eliminate any of the
ordinance variations provided for herein, nor result in any subdivided lot or structure
constructed within the SUBJECT PROPERTY being classified as non-conforming under
any ordinance ofthe CITY. The foregoing to the contrary notwithstanding, in the event the
CITY is required to modify, amend or enact any ordinance or regulation and to apply the
same to the SUBJECT PROPERTY pursuant to the express and specific mandate of any
superior governmental authority, such ordinance or regulation shall apply to the SUBJECT
PROPERTY and be complied with by OWNER/DEVELOPER, provided, however, that
any so-called “grandfather” provision contained in such superior governmental mandate
which would serve to exempt or delay implementation against the SUBJECT PROPERTY
shall be given full force and effect.

If, during the term of this Agreement, any existing, amended, modified or new
ordinances, codes or regulations affecting the zoning, subdivision, development, construction
of any improvements, buildings, appurtenances, or any other development of any kind or
character upon the SUBJECT PROPERTY, other than those upon which site plan approval
may be based, are amended or modified to impose less restrictive requirements on
development or construction upon properties situated within the CITY’S boundaries, then the
benefit of such less restrictive requirements shall inure to the benefit of the
OWNER/DEVELOPER, and anything to the conirary contained herein notwithstanding, the
OWNER/DEVELOPER may proceed with development or construction upon the SUBJECT




PROPERTY pursuant to the less restrictive amendment or modification applicable generally
to all properties within the CITY.

7. BUILDING CODE; BUILDING PERMITS.

A. The CITY has adopted the International Building Code, which is updated
approximately every three years. The building codes for the CITY in effect as of the date of
building permit application will govern any and all construction activity within the Subject
Property.

B. The CITY shall act upon each application for a building permit for which
OWNERS/DEVELOPER, or their duly authorized representatives, shall apply, within
fourteen (14) calendar days of the date of application therefore or within fourteen (14)
calendar days of receipt of the last of the documents and information required to support such
application, whichever is later, provided the applicable improvements for which the building
permit applies will be constructed and installed in accordance with the approved final plat
and approved final engineering for the development within the SUBJECT PROPERTY. If
the application is disapproved, the CITY shall provide the applicant with a statement in
writing specifying the reasons for denial of the application including a specification of the
requirements of law that the applicant and supporting documents fail to meet. The CITY
agrees to issue such building permits upon the compliance with those legal and documentary
requirements so specified by the CITY.

C. Subject to any other necessary governmental regulatory approval, the CITY
shall permit OWNER/DEVELOPER, and their duly authorized representatives, to install
temporary waste water holding tanks and temporary water facilities to serve sales offices or
similar temporary structures, and model buildings constructed on the SUBJECT PROPERTY
provided that each such temporary tank and temporary water facility shall be removed and
disconnected within ten (10) days after said structures shall be connected to the sewer or
other permitted waste disposal systems, and water mains, at OWNERS/DEVELOPER’s sole
cost, subject to force majeure. The use of such temporary facilities shall be subject to all
health and safety codes of the CITY and CITY shall inspect such facilities on a periodic
basis.

D. Subject to the provisions of Section 11 hereof, no permit fees, plan review
fees or inspection fees which are not generally and uniformly applicable throughout the
CITY shall be imposed by the CITY against the SUBJECT PROPERTY.

8. FUTURE FINAL PLATS AND FINAL ENGINEERING. The CITY shall
act upon any final plat and final engineering submitted to it for approval within a reasonable
time of its receipt of such final plat, final engineering and all necessary supporting
documentation and information. The plat review and consideration by the CITY shall not
exceed the limitations set out in 65 ILCS 5/11-12-8 (2002).




All proposed Final Plat units for this development shall contain a minimum of 40
dwelling units.

9. FEES AND CHARGES.

A.  During the first five (5) years following the date of this Agreement, the CITY
shall impose upon and collect from the OWNER/DEVELOPER, and their respective
contractors and suppliers, only those permit, license, tap-on and connection fees and
charges, and in such amount or at such rate, as are in effect on the date of this Agreement
and as are generally applied throughout the CITY, except as otherwise expressly provided
for in this agreement on the Fee Schedule attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit
“C” At the expiration of this five (5) year term, the CITY shall give the
OWNER/DEVELOPER a one (1) year grace period from the date they are notified of any
changes to the permit, license, tap on and connection fees and charges in order to comply
with the new regulations.

B. To the extent that any fees charged by the CITY or other governmental
agency by reason of this Agreement or City Ordinance are not frozen by the specific terms
contained in this Agreement, such fees may be prepaid as follows:

(1) Ifthe CITY increases any fees that are not prohibited from being increased by
the terms of this Agreement and are applicable to the SUBJECT
PROPERTY, the CITY will providle OWNER/DEVELOPER with notice
thereof and OWNER/DEVELOPER will be permitted the right to prepay the
fees as they existed prior to such increase at any time within thirty (30) days
after receipt of the notice of the increase of the fees from the CITY.

(i) OWNER/DEVELOPER’s right to prepay will apply to all fees or only certain
fees applicable to their respective parcels within the SUBJECT PROPERTY
as selected by OWNER/ DEVELOPER and prepayment of a particular fee
will prevent the increase in such fee from being applicable to that portion of
the SUBJECT PROPERTY for which such fee was prepaid. For fees charged
on a per residential unit basis, OWNER/DEVELOPER may estimate the
number of residential units and pay such fees based on such estimated
number of units or may prepay for only a certain number (determined by
OWNER/DEVELOPER) of units. Once the calculation is made, no refund of
any portion of any prepayment made will be allowed.

C. The CITY represents and warrants to OWNER/DEVELOPER that no part of
the SUBJECT PROPERTY is currently subject to nor is there pending any request to subject
any part of the SUBJECT PROPERTY to any special service area or special assessment
district that will result in any special taxes or assessments for any portion of the SUBJECT
PROPERTY, other than the SSA described in Section 19 of this agreement and any charges
to existing drainage districts of record, if any.

10. CONTRIBUTIONS.




The CITY shall not require the OWNER/DEVELOPER to donate any land or money to the
CITY, or any other governmental body, except as otherwise expressly provided in this
Agreement.

11. SCHOOL AND PARK DONATIONS.

DEVELOPER shall be responsible for making the contributions as outlined below to the
Yorkville Community School District #115 (“Schoeol District”), the City of Yorkville Park
Department (“Park Department”) and the CITY for the estimated impact and donation that
is projected to be experienced by said entities as a result of the development in the manner
provided for under this Agreement.

Yorkville Parks and Recreation Department:
Land Donation: 3.00 Acres as depicted on the Planned Unit Development
Plan
Cash Donation:. Payable at the time of issuance of each building permit at
the rate of $1,604.65 per detached single family home

Yorkville Community School District:
Land Cash Fee: Owner/Developer agrees to pay, in lieu of land, a cash
donation of $822,242.56 in satisfaction of the land cash fee to the School
District per the ordinances. Said contribution shall be paid 100% at the
time of issuance of each building permit in the amount of $4,780.48 per
single family dwelling.

12. PROJECT SIGNS.

Following the date of this Agreement and through the date of the issuance of the final
occupancy permit, OWNER/DEVELOPER shall be entitled to construct, maintain and utilize
offsite subdivision identification, marketing and location signs at not more than two (2}
locations at any time within the corporate limits of the CITY as OWNER/DEVELOPER may
designate (individually an “Offsite Sign” and collectively the “Offsite Signs™) subject to
sign permit review and issuance by the CITY. Offsite Signs will not be located on public
right-of-way. OWNER/DEVELOPER shall be responsible, at its expense, for obtaining all
necessary and appropriate legal rights for the construction and use of each of the Offsite
Signs. Each Offsite Sign may be illuminated subject to approval by the CITY. In addition to
the Offsite Signs, OWNER/DEVELOPER shall be permitted to construct, maintain and
utilize signage as identified in Exhibit “D” attached hereto and shall be permitted as a
permanent sign at the entry of residential neighborhood.



13. MODEL HOMES, PRODUCTION UNITS AND SALES TRAILERS.

During the development and build out period (subsequent to final plat approval),
OWNER/DEVELOPER, and such other persons or entities as OWNER/DEVELOPER may
authorize, may construct, operate and maintain model homes and sales trailers staffed with
OWNER/DEVELOPER’s, or such other person’s or entity’s, sales and construction staff,
and may be utilized for-sales offices for Silver Fox. The number of such model homes and
sales trailers and the locations thereof shall be as from time to time determined or authorized
by DEVELOPER.

Off-street parking shall be required for model homes when more than five (5) model
homes are constructed on consecutive lots in a model home row. Three (3) off-street spaces
will be required for each model home in a model home row, with combined required parking
not to exceed thirty (30) off-street spaces. A site plan showing the location of the parking
areas and walks will be submitted for review and approval by the CITY. :

No off-street parking shall be required for individual model homes or sales trailers
that are not part of a model home row other than the driveway for such medel home/sales
trailer capable of parking two (2) cars outside of the adjacent road right-of-way. Building
permits for model homes, sales trailers and for up to five (5} dwelling units, shall be issued
by the CITY upon proper application thereof prior to the installation of public improvements
(provided a gravel access road is provided for emergency vehicles and upon proof to the
CITY the OWNER has demonstrated to the Bristol Kendall Fire Protection District fire
hydrants within 300 feet of the dwelling units are operational) A final inspection shall be
conducted prior to the use of a model home and water service shall be made available within
300" of the model home. Any fire hydrants that are not in service within 30 days of
installation shall be marked or bagged by the OWNER. There shall be no occupation or use
of any model homes or preduction dwelling units until the binder course of asphalt 1s on the
street, and no occupation or use of any production dwelling units until the water system and
sanitary sewer system needed to service such dwelling unit are installed and operational or
until temporary service is available, whichever is earlier. Use of' models as amodel unit only
shall not be deemed to be “occupancy” thereof and may be made prior to connection to a
sanitary sewer or water system, so long as temporary waste water holding tanks and
temporary water facilities are installed to serve them.

OWNER/DEVELOPER may locate temporary sales and construction trailers during
the development and build out of said property, provided any such sales trailer shall be
removed within two (2} weeks of issuance of the final building permit in that unit where the
trailer is located. A building permit will be required by the CITY for any trailer that will be
utilized as office space. Prior to construction of the sales trailer the OWNER/DEVELOPER
shall submit an exhibit of the model trailer site with landscaping and elevations for the
CITY’s approval.

OWNER/DEVELOPER hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
CITY and the Corporate Authorities (collectively “Indemnities”) from all claims, liabilities,



costs and expenses incurred by or brought against all or any of the Indemnities as a direct and
proximate result of the construction of any model homes or production dwelling units prior
to the installation of the public street and water improvements required to service such
dwelling unit and shall execute and deliver to the CITY a hold harmless and indemnification
agreement in form and content reasonably satisfactory to the CITY, so providing, prior to the
commencement of construction of any model homes. OWNER/DEVELOPER shall be
permitted to obtain building permits in the same manner for additional model homes and for
initial production dwelling units as the Final Plat and Final Engineering is approved by the
CITY.

14. CONTRACTORS’ TRAILERS.

The CITY agrees that from and after the date of execution of this Agreement, contractor’s
and subcontractor’s supply storage trailers may be placed upon such part or parts of the
SUBJECT PROPERTY as required and approved by OWNER/DEVELOPER for
development purposes. Said trailers shall be removed respectively, within thirty (30) days
after issuance of the last occupancy permit for each such parcel, subject to force majeure. A
building permit will be required by the CITY for any trailer that will be utilized as office
space. All contractor’s trailers and supply trailers shall be kept in good working order and
the area will be kept clean and free of debris. No contractor’s trailers or supply trailers will
be located within dedicated right-of-way.

15. CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY.

A. The CITY shall issue certificates of occupancy for buildings and dwelling
units constructed on the SUBJECT PROPERTY within five (5) working days after proper
application therefor or within five (5) working days after the receipt of the last of the
documents or information required to support such application, whichever is later. If the
application is disapproved, the CITY shall provide the applicant within five (5) working days
after receipt of the application and all documentation or information required to support such
application, with a statement in writing of the reasons for denial of the application including
specification of the requirements of law which the application and supporting documents fail
to meet. The CITY agrees to issue such certificates of occupancy upon the applicant’s
compliance with those requirements of law so specified by the CITY. The CITY, at its
expense, shall retain the services of such consultants and/or hire such employees as may be
necessary to ensure that the CITY is able to fulfill its obligations under this Subsection. The
foregoing, however, shall not negate the obligation of OWNER/DEVELOPER to pay all fees
otherwise payable for services rendered in connection with the issuance of certificates of
occupancy under applicable CITY ordinances.

B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, certificates of occupancy shall be issued by
the CITY for buildings and dwelling units whose driveway and/or sidewalk paving and
grading improvements have not been completely finished due to adverse weather conditions
subject to the following understanding: if a certificate of occupancy is issued for such a
building or dwelling unit and a party fails to complete the driveway and/or sidewalk paving



or grading improvements for such building or dwelling unit as soon as weather permits but in
any event by the first day of summer, the CITY shall have the right to withhold the issuance
of further building permits to such party until such exterior work has been completed;
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the provision above applies but if the party that failed to
complete the driveway and/or sidewalk paving or grading improvements posts Security with
the CITY in the amount of one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the amount estimated by the
CITY to be needed to complete such improvements or to effect such corrections, the CITY
shall not withhold the issuance of such building permits or certificates of occupancy. Under
no circumstances shall the failure of Commonwealth Edison or another utility company to
energize street lights installed by OWNER/DEVELOPER on the SUBJECT PROPERTY
constitute a basis for the CITY denying the issuance of building permits or a certificate of
occupancy for buildings and dwelling units constructed or to be constructed within the
SUBJECT PROPERTY.

16. LIMITATIONS. Inno event, including, without limitation, the exercise of
the authority granted in Chapter 65, Section 5/11-12-8 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes
(2002) ed., shall the CITY require that any part of the SUBJECT PROPERTY be dedicated
for public purposes, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or identified on the
Concept Plan.

17. COMMENCEMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS.

A. The CITY shall issue permits to OWNER/DEVELOPER to authorize the
commencement of construction of utility improvements on the SUBJECT PROPERTY or
any Parcel thereof at the sole risk and cost of OWNER/DEVELOPER prior to: (i) approval
of a final plat of subdivision; (ii) prior to construction of the CITY utility improvements
provided: (1) such construction is undertaken at the risk of the party seeking to undertake
such work; (2) approved engineering plans for such improvements have been approved by
the CITY that are sufficient in detail for the CITY to determine the nature and scope of the
improvements being constructed; (3) the preliminary subdiviston plat upon which the
improvements are being constructed has been approved by the CITY; (4) the IEPA and the
sanitary district that will serve the SUBJECT PROPERTY, as and if applicable, have issued
permits for the construction of sanitary sewer and water lines. The CITY agrees to review
and, where appropriate, execute IEP A sewer and water permit applications separate and apart
from the review of final engineering plans so that the IEPA wiil be in a position to issue such
permits prior to CITY approval of final engineering plans. The OWNER/DEVELOPER
acknowledges that the CITY’s signature on the IEPA water and sanitary sewer permit
application does not constitute final plat or plan approval; and (5) the construction complies
with the CITY’S then existing soil erosion ordinances. OWNER/DEVELOPER shall
indemnify the CITY against any claims, actions or losses the CITY may suffer, sustain or
incur because another governmental agency takes action against the CITY after
OWNER/DEVELOPER undertake development activities on either of their respective
parcels pursuant to the provisions of this Subsection 17 (B).

B. The CITY shall issue permits to OWNER/DEVELOPER to authorize the



commencement of mass earthwork and grading on their respective parcels of the SUBJECT
PROPERTY or any Parcel thereof prior to acceptance of a final plat of subdivision and final
engineering by the CITY, provided, that OWNER/DEVEILOPER has submitted and the
CITY has approved mass grading and erosion control plans at least thirty (30) days prior to
the commencement of such mass earthwork and grading and complies with the erosion
control ordinance of the CITY. All earthwork activities shall comply with llinois EPA
requirements and City of Yorkville ordinances.

C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the SUBJECT PROPERTY or any portion
thereof may continue to be used for agricultural and nursery uses as interim uses until the
relevant portion of the SUBJECT PROPERTY is actually developed. Such uses shall
constitute legal, non-conforming uses of the SUBJECT PROPERTY.

18. COVENANTS.

In lieu of any architectural control ordinances adopted by the CITY, the
OWNER/DEVELOPER agrees to impose covenants, conditions and restrictions relating to
facade materials, accessory structures and other building restrictions at the time of final plat
submittal for each unit.

OWNER/DEVELOPER shall include provisions in the covenants to provide that the
Homeowners Association shall be responsible for the maintenance of landscaping within the
perimeter landscaping easements, signage provided, and other obligations as determined at
the time of final platting and as referenced in this Agreement.

19. ESTABLISHMENT OF SPECIAL SERVICE AREA AS PRIMARY
FUNDING MECHANISM FOR INSTALLATION OF PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS.

OWNERS’, DEVELOPER’s and the CITY agree to establish a special service area
(“SSA”) as a primary funding mechanism for installation of on-site and off-site public
improvements, including, without limitation, potable water, fire flow and/or water storage
facilities, roads, storm water facilities (i.e., storm water sewers, collection and
conveyance improvements, detention ponds if they benefit off-site properties), sanitary
sewer facilities and other public improvements.

The CITY, OWNERS and/or DEVELOPER shall cooperate in good faith to identify and
agree on the appropriate structure for the financing, which the CITY and DEVELOPER
currently believe will consist of one or more SSA’s pursuant to 35 ILCS 200/27-5 et seq.,
but which may be authorized and implemented under other legal frameworks acceptable
to the CITY, OWNERS and/or DEVELOPER. However, CITY, OWNERS and/or
DEVELOPER hereby expressly agree that the form of Special Tax or other Revenue
Bond shall be the form of bond which requires a payment at the time of sale of a
developed lot, or the time of issuance of a building permit, otherwise known as the “pay
down” bond.



The burden of the assessment is limited to and shall be paid by only those future property
owners within the SUBJECT PROPERTY, and the other properties joining in the SSA
for the areas generally referred to as the “Southwest Infrastructure Developments”
described in Section 20 of this agreement.

20. CROSS:CONTINGENCIES FOR INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDING GREENBRIAR ROAD
EXTENTION (SOUTHWEST INFRASTRUCTURE
DEVELOPMENTS)

A. CROSS CONTINGENCIES. OWNERS, DEVELOPER and CITY agree that this
agreement shall be cross contingent with the CITY’s approval of Annexations with 5
Developments commonly referred to as the “Southwest Infrastructure Developments.” A
list of the developments and the funding required on behalf of each of the developments .
is attached hereto as Exhibit BBB. These developments are related in that they all will
derive special benefit from infrastructure improvements to be financed through the
issuance of Special Revenue Bond(s) payable from special taxes levied in one or more
special service areas to fund the extension of infrastructure to and through the
developments.

B. SSA FUNDING. Upon all Southwest Infrastructure Developments entered into
individual annexation agreements, CITY, OWNERS and DEVELOPERS agree to establish
individual Special Service Areas (SSA’s) within each of the subdivisions listed on Exhibit
BBB. City shall then take action to issue Special Revenue Bonds in and amount sufficient
to fund the infrastructure extension by January 15, 2007 otherwise the DEVELOPERS shall

have right to intervene. OWNER shall have the right to opt-out of participating in the SSA
by providing written notice to the CITY of its intention to independently fund OWNER'’S
pro rata share of the infrastructure improvement costs as set forth on Exhibit “AAA-2”,
Written notice of OWNER'’S intent to opt-out of the SSA must be provided in accordance
with the Notice provisions of this Agreement and by thirty (30) days prior to (1) January 15,
2007, or (ii) actual issuance of the bond(s), whichever is later, OWNER will pay its pro rata
share of the costs no later than the date of the bond issuance in readily available funds.
OWNER'’S failure to provide notice within the required time period shall be deemed to be its
consent to participate in the SSA.

The formation of The SSA’s and issuance of Special Revenue Bonds is intended to render
the following results:

1. All areas will be within the SSA’s, and all real property will become subject
to the Special Tax. It is anticipated that each development will enact an individual
SSA’s, and that all SSA’s will issue one mutual Special Tax Bond for payments of the
improvements.

2. The special tax shall be available to fund the repayment of up to §__ (this will
be the pro rata amount owed by this development) million in special tax bonds.




3. The special tax revenue bonds shall be used to construct infrastructure as
described on Exhibit “AAA”.

C. COST CONTAINMENT, OVERRUNS. In order to reduce the risk of cost overruns,
OWNERS and/or DEVELOPERS agree that the amount of bonds sold should not be
determined until bids have be recetved by the City for construction of the Southwest
Infrastructure. Since final engineering must be completed prior to seeking bids,
OWNERS and/or DEVELOPER agree to front fund the amount indicated on Exhibit
“BBB” and to receive reimbursement for said sum from the sale of the Revenue Bonds.
OWNERS and/or DEVELOPERS shall be allowed to comment regarding the
determination of the amount of bonds sold, and the amount of contingency for cost
overruns. CITY will respond in writing to all OWNER and DEVELOPER comments and
justify said overruns. All DEVELOPERS shall be responsible for contribution, based
upon the same ratios and rational used in Exhibit “AAA™ if the cost to complete the
Southwest Infrastructure exceeds the amount of the Bonds with the additional _
contribution capped at $1,000,000 per developer.

D. PROCEEDS OF BONDS TO BE USED TO EXTEND GREEN BRIAR DRIVE.
OWNERS and/or DEVELOPER agrees that traffic ultimately originating from this
development, as well as all “Southwest Infrastructure Developments” will give rise to the
need for the Green Briar Drive extension to Pavillion Road. One of the first uses of the
Special Tax Bonds shall be the acquisition of right-of-way of the Green Briar Drive
Extension. The City deems the construction of Green Briar as a high priority and agrees
to proceed with construction as funding is available. In addition, OWNER’S and/or
DEVELOPERS agree to route all construction traffic along state Route 71 to Pavillion or
High Point Road and then to the development, and not allow construction traffic to travel
along Fox Road from Rt 47 to the development.

E. RECAPTURE/RECOVERY OF INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The CITY shall, in accordance with Chapter 65, Section 5/9-5-1 et.seq. of the Illinois
Compiled Statutes, 2002 Edition, enter into agreements for recapture/recovery
(“Recapture/Recovery Agreement”) with DEVELOPER providing for the
recapture/recovery by DEVELOPER of a portion of the cost of certain improvements as
identified on Exhibit “AAA”, constructed by DEVELOPER which the CITY has
determined may be used for the benefit of property (“Benefited Property”) not located
within the Subject Property which connect to said improvements. The Benefited Property
is identified on said Exhibit “DDD” attached hereto. Recapture for the Green Briar Drive
improvement may include an increase of the normal and customary road fee for the
Benefited Properties and therefore require the CITY to consider increasing this fee for the
Benefited Properties via the annexation agreements for the Benefited Properties. Each
Recapture Agreement shall be substantially in the form as attached hereto and made a
part hereof as Exhibit “EEE”.




21. HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION AND DORMANT SPECIAL
SERVICE AREA (DSSA).

A. Homeowners Association. OWNER/DEVELOPER shall establish through a
declaration of covenants, conditions and restrictions, a Homeowners Association
(“Association”) of all lot owners and a mandatory membership of all lot owners in the
Association. The Association shall have the primary responsibility and duty to carry out and
pay for the maintenance of Common Facilities (defined below) through assessments levied
against all dwelling units. A maintenance easement shall be established over all of the
Common Facilities located on the final plat for the Association that undertakes responsibility
for the Common Facilities Maintenance. The Association will be responsible for the regular
care, maintenance, renewal and replacement of the Common Facilities including stormwater
detention areas and other open spaces. The maintenance described herein shall include,
without limitation, the mowing and fertilizing of grass, pruning and trimming of trees and
bushes, removal and replacement of diseased or dead landscape materials, and the repair and
replacement of fences and monument signs, so as to keep the same in a clean, sightly and
first class condition, and shall otherwise comply with the CITY’s Property Maintenance
Standards and Landscape Ordinance.

B. Dormant Special Service Area. DEVELOPER agrees to the CITY enacting at
the time of final plat approvals a Dormant Special Service Area (DSSA) to act as a back up
in the event that the Homeowner’s Association fails to maintain the private common areas,
detention ponds, perimeter landscaping features, and entrance signage.

22. ONSITE EASEMENTS AND IMPROVEMENTS.

In the event that during the development of the SUBJECT PROPERTY,
OWNER/DEVELOPER determine that any existing utility easements and/or underground
lines require relocation to facilitate the completion of their obligation for their respective
parcels of the SUBJECT PROPERTY in accordance with the Preliminary Plat, the CITY
shall fully cooperate with OWNER/DEVELOPER in causing the vacation and relocation
of such existing easements and/or utilities, however, all costs incurred in furtherance
thereof shall be borne by the OWNER/DEVELOPER. If any easement granted to the
CITY as a part of the development of the SUBJECT PROPERTY is subsequently
determined to be in error or located in a manner inconsistent with the intended
development of the SUBJECT PROPERTY as reflected on the Preliminary Plat and in this
Agreement, the CITY shall fully cooperate with OWNER/DEVELOPER in vacating and
relocating such easement and utility facilities located therein, which costs shall be borne by
OWNER/DEVELOPER, as the case may be. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and as a
condition precedent to any vacation of easement, OWNER/DEVELOPER shall pay for the
cost of design and relocation of any such easement and the public utilities located on their
respective parcels unless the relocation involves overhead utilities.

23. DISCONNECTION.




OWNER/DEVELOPER shall develop the SUBJECT PROPERTY as a development to be
commonly known as Silver Fox in accordance with the final plat and final engineering
approved by the CITY in accordance with the terms hereof, and shall not, as either the
OWNER/DEVELOPER of said property, petition to disconnect any portion or all of said
property from the CITY or from any service provided by the CITY.

24. CONFLICT IN REGULATIONS.

The provisions of this Agreement shall supersede the provisions of any ordinance, code, or
regulation of the CITY which may be in conflict with the provisions of this Agreement.

25. CITY ASSISTANCE.

The CITY agrees to cooperate and provide any reasonable assistance requested by
OWNER/DEVELOPER in applying for and obtaining any and all approvals or permits
necessary for the development of the SUBJECT PROPERTY, including, but not limited to
those required from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, the Army Corps of
Engineers, the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the United States Environmental
Protection Agency, IDOT, the Illinois Department of Natural Resources, Kendall Township,
the United City of Yorkville Park Board and Yorkville Community Unit School District 115.
The CITY further agrees to reasonably cooperate with OWNER/DEVELOPER in obtaining
all permits and approvals required by the applicable sanitary district, the County of Kendall
and all other governmental units in connection with the contemplated development of the
SUBJECT PROPERTY.

26. ADDRESSES.
Within fourteen (14) days after the final plat of subdivision is approved, CITY will provide
OWNER/DEVELOPER with the addresses of all lots for the purpose of expediting the

process of obtaining utility installations by the applicable utility company or companies.

27. SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS.

It is understood and agreed that subsequent amendments of this Agreement, may be obtained
solely by the owner of any portion of the SUBJECT PROPERTY and the CITY as to such
portion without any action or approval of the owners of other portions of the SUBJECT
PROPERTY if such amendments do not affect the rights, duties or obligations of the owners
of the balance of the SUBJECT PROPERTY not included in the aforedescribed amendments
without any action or approval of the owners of other portions of the SUBJECT
PROPERTY. Rezoning may be applied for and processed by the CITY without requiring an
amendment of this Agreement.

28. “RIGHT TO FARM” LANGUAGE.




The OWNER/DEVELOPER of the property acknowledges that Kendall County has along,
rich tradition in agriculture and respects the role that farming continues to play in shaping
the economic viability of the county (zoning indicator A-1 or Ag Special Use), normal
agricultural practices may result in occasional smells, dust, sights, noise and unique hours
of operation that are not typical in other zoning areas. The OWNER/DEVELOPER of the
property agree to incorporate the “Right to Farm” language on the Final Plat of Subdivision
and incorporate similar language within such other documents governing the subdivision if
any property adjacent thereto is used or operated as a farm.

29.  RESPONSIBILITIES OF OWNER/DEVELOPER.

The CITY agrees that the OWNER/DEVELOPER is exculpated from any personal Hability
or obligation to perform the commitments and obligations set forth herein for the SUBJECT
PROPERTY for which they do not act as developer and that the CITY will look solely to the
party who develops for such performance. :

30. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

A. Enforcement. This Agreement shall be enforceable in the Circuit Court of
Kendall County by any of the parties or their successors or assigns by an appropriate action
at law or in equity to secure the performance of the covenants and agreements contained
herein, including the specific performance of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Illinois.

B. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be
binding upon the OWNER/DEVELOPER and their successors in title and interest, and upon
the CITY, and any successor municipalities of the CITY. It is understood and agreed that
this Agreement shall run with the land and as such, shall be assignable to and binding upon
each and every subsequent grantee and successor in interest of the OWNER/DEVELOPER,
and the CITY. The foregoing to the contrary notwithstanding, the obligations and duties of
OWNER/DEVELOPER hereunder shall not be deemed transferred to or assumed by any
purchaser of a empty lot or a lot improved with a dwelling unit who acquires the same for
residential occupation, unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing by such purchaser.

C. All Terms and Conditions Contained Herein. This Agreement contains all the
terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties hereto and no other prior agreement,
regarding the subject matter hereof shall be deemed to exist to bind the parties. The parties
acknowledge and agree that the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the
payment of any fees, have been reached through a process of good faith negotiation, both by
principals and through counsel, and represent terms and conditions that are deemed by the
parties to be fair, reasonable, acceptable and contractually binding upon each of them.

D. Notices. Notices or other materials which any party is required to, or may
wish to, serve upon any other party in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be deemed effectively given on the date of confirmed telefacsimile transmission, on the
date delivered personally or on the second business day following the date sent by certified
or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:




() Ifto OWNER Midwest Development, LLC

DEVELOPER: Yorkville, Illinois 60560
Fax: (630) 553-3024
with copies to: Law Offices of Dallas C. Ingemunson,

226 S. Bridge Street
Yorkville, lllinois 60560

Attention: Gregg Ingemunson
Fax: (630) 553-7958

(II) Ifto CITY: United City of Yorkville
Attn: City Clerk
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, IL 60560
Fax: (630) 553-7575

or to such other persons and/or addresses as any party may from time to time
designate in a written notice to the other parties.

E. Severability. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the provisions of
Chapter 65, Sec. 5/11-15.1-1, et seq., lllinois Compiled Statutes (2002 ed.). In the event any
part or portion of this Agreement, or any provision, clause, word, or designation of this
Agreement is held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, said part, portion,
clause, word or designation of this Agreement shall be deemed to be excised from this
Agreement and the invalidity thereof shall not effect such portion or portions of this
Agreement as remain. In addition, the CITY and OWNER/DEVELOPER shall take all
action necessary or required to fulfill the intent of this Agreement as to the use and
development of the SUBJECT PROPERTY.

F. Agreement. This Agreement, and any Exhibits or attachments hereto, may be
amended from time to time in writing with the consent of the parties, pursuant to applicable
provisions of the City Code and Hlinois Compiled Statutes. This Agreement may be
amended by the CITY and the owner of record of a portion of the SUBJECT PROPERTY as
to provisions applying exclusively thereto, without the consent of the owner of other portions
of the SUBJECT PROPERTY not effected by such Agreement.

G. Conveyances. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to
restrict or limit the right of the OWNER/DEVELOPER to sell or convey all or any portion of
the SUBJECT PROPERTY, whether improved or unimproved.

H. Necessary Ordinances and Resolutions. The CITY shall pass all ordinances
and resolutions necessary to permit the OWNER/DEVELOPER, and their successors or
assigns, to develop the SUBJECT PROPERTY in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement, provided said ordinances or resolutions are not contrary to law. The CITY




agrees to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute this Agreement or to correct any
technical defects which may arise after the execution of this Agreement.

L Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be twenty (20) years
from the date of execution of this Agreement. In the event construction is commenced
within said twenty-year period all of the terms of this Agreement shall remain enforceable
despite said time limitation, unless modified by written agreement of the CITY and
OWNER/DEVELOPER.

L. Captions and Paragraph Headings. The captions and paragraph headings used
herein are for convenience only and shall not be used in construing any term or provision of
this Agreement.

K. - Recording. This Agreement shall be recorded in the Office of the Recorder of
Deeds, Kendall County, Illinois, at OWNER/DEVELOPER’s expense.

L. Recitals and Exhibits. The recitals set forth at the beginning of this
Agreement, and the exhibits attached hereto, are incorporated herein by this reference and
shall constitute substantive provisions of this Agreement.

M.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the
same document.

N. No Moratorium. The CITY shall not limit the number of building or other
permits that may be applied for due to any CITY imposed moratorium and shall in no event
unreasonably withhold approval of said permits or approval for the final plat of the
subdivision. Nothing contained herein shall affect any limitations imposed as to sanitary
sewer or water main extensions by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency,
Yorkville-Bristol Sanitary District, or any other governmental agency that preempts the
authority of the United City of Yorkville.

0. Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and all
documents, agreements, and contracts pursuant hereto as well as all covenants contained in
this Agreement shall be performed in a timely manner by all parties hereto.

P. Legal Challenges. If for any reason and at any time, the annexation of the
SUBJECT PROPERTY to the CITY is legally challenged by any person or entity by an
action at law or in equity, the CITY shall: (i) cooperate with OWNER/DEVELOPER in the
vigorous defense of such action through all proceedings, including any appeals; and (ii) take
such other actions as may then or thereafter be possible pursuant to the Illinois Municipal
Code to annex the SUBJECT PROPERTY and/or other properties to the CITY so that the
annexation of the SUBJECT PROPERTY to the CITY can be sustained and/or effected.




Q. Major and Minor Modifications. Any modification to any approved
preliminary or final plats of subdivision and engineering plans, which are deemed to be
minor modifications, may be approved by the CITY Administrator (following review and
approval by the CITY Engineer) without requiring a public hearing and without formal
amendment to the Planned Development approved for the SUBJECT PROPERTY or this
AGREEMENT. Modifications necessary to solve engineering, layout and/or design
problems shall be deenred to be minor modifications so long as such modifications do not
change the essential character of the preliminary or final plats of subdivision or engineering
plans or increase the total number of dwelling units allowed on the SUBJECT PROPERTY.
Any revisions to a preliminary or final plat of subdivision or engineering plan, which if
determined by the CITY to be major modifications, shall require review by the CITY’s
Planning Commission and approval by the CITY Council. In no event shall such major
modification require an amendment to this AGREEMENT.

R. Exculpation. It is agreed that the CITY is not liable or responsible for any
restrictions on the CITY s obligations under this Agreement that may be required or imposed
by any other governmental bodies or agencies having jurisdiction over the SUBJECT
PROPERTY, the CITY, the OWNER/DEVELOPER, including, but not limited to, county,
state or federal regulatory bodies.

S. Effectiveness. This Agreement shall be subject to and shall take effect
immediately.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]




IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals to this
Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

OWNERS: CITY:
Midwest Development, LLC

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, an illinois
municipal corporation
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THAT PART OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT A
POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF THE BURLINGTON,
NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY, WHICH POINT, PREVIOUSLY
MONUMENTED BY A CONCRETE MONUMENT, IS REPORTED TO BE 50.54
FEET, SOUTH 61 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID
RIGHT OF WAY FROM THE INTERSECTION OF SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE
AND THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 6; THENCE SOUTH 61 DEGREES 06
MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID
RAILROAD, 1437.98 FEET,; THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 38
SECONDS EAST, 406.94 FEET;, THENCE SOUTH 25 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 10
SECONDS EAST, 1326.82 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 24 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 33
SECONDS EAST, 1405.93 FEET, THENCE NORTH 75 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 51
SECONDS EAST, 1556.19 FEET; THENCE NORTH 14 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 45
SECONDS WEST, 393,10 FEET, THENDE NORTH 77 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 51
SECONDS EAST, 11.20 FEET; THENCE NORTH 12 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 59
SECONDS WEST 2406.69 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF FOX ROAD; THENCE
SOUTH 62 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID CENTER
LINE, 581.48 FEET, THENCE NORTH 21 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 09 SECONDS
WEST, 784.86 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, (EXCEPT THAT PART IN
FOX GLEN, BEING THAT PART OF THE FOREGOING NORTH OF THE CENTER
LINE OF FOX ROAD, AND EXCEPT THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST
QUARTER OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT
THE CENTER LINE OF FOX ROAD AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER.-OF A
SUBDIVISION KNOWN AS "FOX GLEN, KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL
COUNTY, ILLINOIS; THENCE SOUTH 25 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 10 SECONDS
EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOT 19 IN SAID SUBDIVISION EXTENDED,
835.57 FEET, THENCE NORTH 64 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 50 SECONDS EAST
217.38 FEET, THENCE NORTH 18 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 07 SECONDS WEST
708.61 FEET, THENCE NORTH 18 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST
138,95 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID FOX ROAD;
THENCE NORTH 25 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST 35.00 FEET TO
SAID CENTER LINE; THENCE SOUTH 64 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 36 SECONDS
WEST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 400.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING) IN THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS,
AND CONTAINING 102.75 +/- ACRES.

EXHIBIT A
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EXHIBIT C

Name of Fee Amount Time of Payment
1iSchool District Transition Fee 53,000 per unit Paid 1o School District Office prior to apptication for building permit

Yorkville Bristol Sanitary District Connection Fee

$1,400 per unit

At time of building permit, paid at City Hall with separate check made out ic
YBSD

(4]

Yorkvitle Bristol Sanitary District Annexation Fee

$3,523 per acre

Paid for entire development, at time of annexation to sanifary disfrict

Yorkviile Bristol Sanitary District Infrastructure
Fee

$3,523 per acre

PAID BY SPECIAL TAX PROCEEDS

Building Permit Fee

$650 + $.0.20 per
square foot

Building Permit

‘Water Connection Fee

$3,700 per unit

PAID BY SPECIAL TAX PROCEEDS

7|Water Mater Cost (not applicable to fee lock) $300 per unit Building Permit
8|City Sewer Connecticn Fee $2,000 per unit PAID BY SPECIAL TAX PROCEEDS
9lWater and Sewer Inspection Fee $25 per unit Building Permit
10{Public Walks and Driveway Inspection Fee $35 per unit Building Permit
11a{Pubtic Works (Development Impact Fee) $700 per unit Building Permit
11b|Police (Development Impact Fee) $300 per unit Building Permit
Municipal Building Fee is set up as $5,509 per unit if paid at time of permit,
or $3,288 per unit if paid in a lump sum for all residential units at the time of
see "time of final plat approvai or within 90 days of when all City infrastructure is
11¢c{Municipal Buiiding {Development Impact Fee) payment” available to the development, whichever is later.
11d]Library (Development Impact Fee) $500 per unit Building Permit
11e|Parks and Rec {Development Impact Fee) $50 per unit Building Permit
11flEngineering (Development Impact Feg) $100 per unit Buliding Permit
Bristol Kendall Fire District (Development Impact
11g|Fee) $1,000 per unit Building Permit
Calcutated by
erdinance, $80,000|Building Permit ar Final Plat, depending on annexation/development
12|Parks Land Cash Fee per acre agreement and land/cash donations negotiated
Calculated by
ordinance, $80,000{Building Permit or Final Plat, depending on annexation/develepment
13|School Land Cash Fee per acre agreement and land/cash donations negotiated
14{Road Contribution Fund $107 per unit $1,893 {per unit) PAID BY SPECIAL TAX PROCEEDS
$875 per unit,
escalating each
caiendar year at a
rate determined by
15]County Road Fee ordinance $674 {per unit) PAID BY SPECIAL TAX PROCEEDS
16|Weather Warning Siren $75 per acre Final Plat
1.75% of Approved
Engineer's
Estimate of Cost of
Land
17}Administration Review Fee Improvements Final Piat
1.25% of Approved
Engineer's
Estimate of Cost of
Land
Improvements
18|Engingering Review Fea P Final Plat




I 'IAOHD HYDNS
*ONI 'SASIN4UALNT DNIHAINIONT

“ung peloidisx-(Gupunt MO M 2 81 O A Buipuny wewdoaasghBuipuna &0 M - 89 PUR BN OMiseice). YSSBuTisisAleuy Udlsusixs) WeisAS JOIEAL PROY X048 Z0V00AWIDZRBAHo IS
I51°800°'L $ | 099'eri'Ll § ]| 910's96°L $ ] 658'956 4 | 16E'6P6 $ | 008°88 $ | vpo'8Ll's) § H{uoyg @ "URg “suel] I8IEMA) 1V LOL
_ Q08'ee $ | 002'€E $ | oog'ce $1- $]- $]oogee $1]- $ Ji=p0igng lajemunolg

90/e/8

008°'ce

008'EE

005'999

- 00g'ec §

000°62E

- 3

080O'LOL'S 4

006'999

805'281

000°G2ZE

St B R e

Y00'SEL ¢ | 000'SE

0solglL's $

"_m.amun:m :oamtomm:m._w )

v00'00L 8 |siegnz'z slolsae ¢ $ $ S

000Gt $ | zos'zs $ 1 205'z9 $ | eos'ty $ | 0000l ¢ | ooo's - ¢ [Bupsat % Budamng ‘uone)nsuos fEUORIPPY
vo0'se ¢ |Z66°2:¢'L ${s0006L § | v00'SE ¢ | ¥00'66 $- $16v5i8L'L § SjuSWan0idW) peoy udiined
ooo'oe  $|ogevic  $|o0000L $ | coo'or $ | 000'0E $1- ${og2v0s 8 Buioepnsay peoy xo4 - 8'd
000'02 $ 1000269 ¢ {00002 $1- $1- $|o00'0z $]000CL9 & UoORISINbOY "AA'Q Y PEOY JBlg usslD

Buipung
juold
_muo.wr

[gjol

UORONIISUOD

ubseq Aeupwijaig

Buassulbus

coc'egr $|i19s6iL’'e $}oozzee S fessEEr | £SE'68y $]- $ Jsss'ese’s ¢ |:esolans Jajem

00002 $ | oo0'0L $ } 000'0L s|- $ | o00'02 $]- $1- ¢ [Bunsey p Bukemng ‘uoe}nsuod feuolippy
ocoo'or $]o00g5'6.i5 4 ]000SL $ jooo'se 3 | 000'Ob $]- ¢ 1005008 ¢ (ue ] AlleyD) uones Axdidd - 64
ooo'cal ¢ Joogesls'e $foogez g ]oos'eit  $|000'SolL $]- ¢ | 000'vos's ¢ ISMION0C-¥d
ece'vy S 1190080 ¢ | ooL'eR $ | €59 $ | eseby §]- $ [G/E16G ¢ [IOISUSIXT Bl JOIeA SAUQ Jelig uselD) - £
goo'csl  ${ogeesz’e $[ooo'eee ¢ fooo'sil S| 0DO'0BL $- 3 | osg'ces’s § dIMEL ON IIBM - 2'd
ooo'or  $Jooo'eos 4] o000°ZOL  $ 100029 ¢ | ooo'ov g - $joooroL. %

sjewnsy
UOLINASUOS

£1 ONIIBM - L'

“I1 "0 IIepus ‘aiimdUoA Jo Al panun

ONIAN 3HNLONYLSVYHANI MS
Arewnwung Buipung asnjonasesju| [|elaAQ i - YVV HAIUx3



W 'IACHD HYONS
A 'SISIHAUIENT ONIHTINIDHI

-Rifuipioase pajshipe ag LM SSNJEA BU) HUB ULI3) 3q [[1w ABCICPOYISLL UOREIND|ED S} ‘PUSIQEISS US3G 3ALY SIUNGD JIUn pue sbeaioe [eus ey} SaUQ 'SHIELINGSS BJE SIUA0D JUn pue sBessde 8yl

“SO)0N
‘ung -asglepiideoey Atd-dB Ak Lewung Buipung dofeaegheaide | Y SHEuTE? voruayx3 weIsAS HATAR PEOY K04 ZIPOOANFOODPUIAIOAMIALN S
- 932688’ S| - 008'ee st - 0g0's6s’s $| - 0LL'1ES'C S} - 008282 $] %000 £yl 518 [T [T
Zeg'l)L $|z8048L°C s €S § | osg's 51605 $fisleeé S|E.97 $|esswsy SJoose $|ooswee ¢ %E1T oL 11 8il S81EIST POOAA HIOA]
€880l 8| vgo'ozy'e sl st [ IEEE 3| zerr 8| 2vs066 $]£4927 $[608'885 $£]o00i'c $i0089Z8 § %862 gL v22 = Ls1eg AgEYJ|
08’1 $|gizees’e $f ée §12369 s|ovor G)e6gi/e s$Jos0t $|e€ckvi8 $|oose $|006Z08 % %Eve [ LiE azL s81E157 abply usdsy]
cirvh SEeLPpLLL $fst g|6Lie 3l1zvzc b 1 ./zo928 SlEesra s|iii008 $)oose $|006'¥BT 8 %8'8 1571 L4 14 Wie 4 usalbieny
tig'0) §|col'208L §fee $ | weo's slvory $|zLes0. $]el97 ¢ 00885k $]00s€ $ioovoEd § %Ll 9L A7 coL X904 J9AIG
- - sy - - - = - - - : $ - - - - alio A Jo ALO P3Ny
ra 1500 ma 1503 ‘na 3509 wa ) fra 350D nd ol |(eownal| {naiswun | sbesioy fmuz bujpuny
{1509 |ejoiang 11860 |Ej03qng 350D jejogng {3500 leyang /150D reioyang | jojusored | Aysusg | Bulemq Awey
TV IYLOL m..__ccm_n_ ._ouuaE..oum .EE. EBEmw PLI :o_ﬁtonw:u._ T adui; 1a3epn ajbulg |vJo1

HLEVHAND AR YIRS ONIONNE SENEON YL SYHINEGDUATIVADL

- Loee’s Sf- JE gl - oss'azs’L ¢ - Terieal ] - lop'ess's $1 %000 e 5/8 TER [EE
alt'e s{zegeye’t ${- $]- S| vocT $1tsszor  $[ol)  ¢|Bze'sil  s|zisy s leever | %LLE vO'L g8l 8/l SAIEIST POOM HIOA
alL'e $|B22F0SE S - $1- SEv0cz 3| 60LCBr S 1Z0L) S |oLobzy  s[2ls'y $1Lesol0L $]  %ese Sl ¥z [l Uried Aeyd)
a12'g §|08Z°2SFL Si- $1- 3 {poce 3| ogcair sJUps)  s|@ePLrl) ${Zlsvy $|oooels  $]| w8 F7a L2 Er) sajE|sy abply Uassy]
912’8 $[es0zs  $f- $|- sir0ze Steiieal  s|uss)  silesa’ly)  §jiigy §]L8TUVE § %88 2 L 6F wie 3 uaslbiang)
912's $|el0gsiL $Y- $1- ${v0zc ¢ 9806/ &|Lol s|lestsl)  $|els'y $|iseais &) %iBL gL zil €0l %04 Jomig
- 192’088’ S| - - - - - - - 1880661 & - - - - SIIANIOA I KD 18l
‘na 150D na 1500 ‘na 1500 ‘n'a 1500 na 350D faEpol |epymao) (ng) snun abealoy Au3 buipung
{1803 [e30)4ng 11503 |Bmang 13500 fejo)gng 13500 {ejo)ng {3500 olgng | jojusdsad | Aususq | Buniemqg Anwed

.Ec. BT ATo IR m_:cmm_m h3mBE._8w adwp Aaejrueg ..EE, uonepodsuesf “Jctug uEm..s o_mc.m _Eo 1

AHYIAINNS (H3ESWON Ly DTN

- 6.4252'51 S - oos'es s - ogs.zes s eie'e0L'c | - 1a6'52L's s s607001 o'y YT aig  [iEjoL
oev'ss §|seo'sov’'e S| €S $ | 098'6 g]ess. 5| L06'sovt $]oose sicelvir $jziE'e S| IELBLSY §} %iE va’L L 841 S2)BIST POOAA 0N
Zrv'li § | ¥96'006'c Sl ee § | ces's t1oz9e 5| 16zvBrt $|oose $|66.¥L5 Sfziece $[l8cece’t $ %9EC L vee =0 wied Ayl
’ Z286'LL $1600T06'E S| 2e $]286's $f05c9 S |8/1'958'L $|8BYE & |S¥6'95ss ziz’'e $]006'18L1L $] %eVE zi'l iz 92l saje)s3 20pIy uass
ip9'0Z $]o0cg’Bas’L Sise YA sl opt's $|ec€osy $]vse's $ieer'esrs Zug's §|z8g2ee ¢ Y%e'e 151 2L [14 wied uaaibiend
W G B $| 169'G s800co S|oloreOt $]995C $[rocibk  S{Tize Sl EsezivL ] %6l 9% F7 €01 X0 JBAG]
- Lge'oss’L &Y - - - - - - - 188°066'L $ - - - - BNANIOA JO AND pejury
na 150D ‘na 150D wa 1503 na 1509 na 1509 namEeL |{aoving (na) spun abeasdy fanugz Bupuny]
{1800 [z 1isep 1Z0KING 13500 el [k 13500 jejoiqng 135003 |ei03Gng  § Jojusdsag | Ausuaq { Sumemaq Apwey
EE_ :o.«utonm_._a._p .bnE_ ..2!5 afuig g0

B

TV TYLOL m:.:cm_n_ JB1EMULIONS ..aE_ _cﬂﬁwm
3 i E et 2

1700 [EpUR FHMIOA 0 AlD PaRUN
ONIANNS FUNELINULSVHEINIMS
SOnE78 frewiwng uonnqgsig Buipund - YV 1qiux3



S078Ei8

1 'IAQUD WveNs

“ON# “S35IMdUTLNA DNIINIDNT

12 085°2VE'ES 188'065'1S 0Q05°LE2'ES 196'51 68 T_lsmm.
181'9E8'SS FATET 6.8 SBEIanY / JEIOL GEF' LS 185'552°L$ - 186'55Z' L HRIGIGNS UOHRGUISIY
1EQ'PERS T5'vs 48t S|e)ST PAOM 0] 8598 005'5458 - 004'6458 UOREIG Axld Em_
IES 0L0'LS [T [£53 vaed AiEdD) L% (RS = 180'0HES WAL PEOY JRUE WeiD)
0006268 Z15'vs JIY3 s8jejsy afipiy Uedsy) 1/0E8 666 169 28 168'068'18 005'L£2'ES {BE076" L8 Hiejolang abieialg § eseugeart Addn
leg'ivet THE'Pe 2L uey coegm_,m- D0S'GLEES [EEE T
186'CLLE 215'P8 (21} 08886 €8 JLAUEL ON 8y
188°066°15 - - 000'908% €} oN lilap]
Janowsy rad tnal snun awdojanacih na ("AaQ) Junowry oD naiooL'eiv | 1soDjoalord Iy AAMorsesy
BIGRIAACTIY 1ad Apweg 1ad B|GEIBAGIDY .t 884 "ULOY leyor 139a[0ld VR JOVRAR PHS-HO
wnuxen Aloaoray 816w [e1OL Karoaey wnRExel 558M 318 559
AMVAINNS LNACWY AYTAQIIH/IUNLAYITE WANIXYIN TVILNILOd
sty | dedens A A8 M) Auung Bupuny juswdoienvglsumeg YSSARUZSRATRY uonmuein wasAS AR Frod K04 2OND0AWOOTWIIN BN
= 196 516§ 66616923 008 ZLE2'€5 185552 8 %0 0D% G Si8 7L GOEIGNY | Z10L
ZLE8S LEL'BISES 991°895$ 005°k89¢ FELCES %1'LE Yo'y 588 BL1 SBEIST POCAM HOA
e 8f 19655818 261'E89% 0085288 6Zb'12ES %Q'GE ShL veZ (8 ey 4eyd
Zi2 68 OGE 1B 15 919'/998 006 2005 Ve FHES %G VT 75 % 9zl Saye193 Gbpid UBdsy]
ZiT6s BEEess 9689808 006'PeCS [CTNE] %G8 LS 2L 8y [(TEFFTEEN TR
TEL'BS [CoFATaT 0416253 00t'9283 11ESPES %161 [E] zil B X0 JOA|'S
= 189'066'L$ - - - - = - - BAIDA IO AD PBI
Qg Jed jsoD sjusliaacldw nasL'es W na/ ooL'es W natrser'is v ng |=jel (orovmal (ng) supn SbERIDY Anug Bupungl
JusLmsAd gL ayeps ol afieI0iG ¥ JUSWEA) ] 294 UOHDBULOYD Supuny $0Juaded Risuag Apureg
19eM S334 |eJeL *Aiddng jeuonppy aEem “HSIC) 1S)eAL ajBuig |e1oL

soynguisiq Butpung sjuawaaciduy WANSAS SHIOM 12184 € - VYV HQIYXT

b 03 HERUSH 'SIRANI0A jO A1 baNUN
ONIANN FUNLONYLSYHINI MS

AMVARNNS DNIGNND NOLLASRILSIA YILYM



11'3A0HD HYONS
"INI 'STSINGUTING ONUZINISND

Jalusacdun au) Jo uokuod 18U JSUIBBE JUNGD Jou S30p a3 19edw Lonepodsues Jtey), ‘(aleys Juacelpe 2y Buipun; ade Aaul) peck] UOH|IABd Jo BIRUS petoBay, aul Bupun jou a1e 36pry usdsy pue wied uaaifisay FoUIS -

“yunad Buipyng &

anp aq w239 pedw au; Jo bolod Buiurewra) ay g laa) oedw N/ COD'ZE SYR JOL PAIDSHOD 3 (M LB ASUOLY JO JURCLUE (210} 8Y) UBL) SS9} §) sjuatuaacadus (s|qibis e pedul Aunod-uoN) [eucibal 513 10} 1509 [Bl0) Bt 1 -
yoeR 940G - YNOG abpiY Usdsy %001 - ISSAN Sk UaaiBIaAT %00) - 1SBT PUB YUON SMO|j0) B SI

abpry Uadsy pue sutied ussibiaas o} palidde S| 1eyl uoliod 1810} 31} 1O 5407 B1A 10} INONES.I ISOD SUL "UOHLBSISIU! UONIARA DUE X0 U} 0} 30UBID;SS YIM JUSWBA0IGI] PEOY LOlAR 3U) jo sfa Jnoj aLp jo -
WAWISIAU PRON UMIINES JBY) LUK SIE(IOP 18A038 j0U Op a6pIx Uadsy pue uLied usaibion] pawnsse sl -
suisIApgns Buirewal ayy o} paydde $) (juawwanoidun ayy jo uoiod euoiBial pelunsse) o0E ‘s uaatbiaag pue abpiy uadsy 0} paljdde 51 1200 Juswaaod) Peoy LUONIAEL 3} 0 %0, -

i

SSIION
{1p58) {88r'L11S) 000'PEPS 6780198 {uadsy) =101k
Lyas) (899'1¥8) 000'vSis 8r9'g0¢s Husaibiang) ieiol)
1018 15/Z'298) 000°Z81'LE SZI'860'LE pio, “UTYS SINS) (910,
- - - £29'806% B1eYS Wadelpy %0L} PECY UollAEd
vers - 6822525 687'25E8 (21eUS [euaIbaY %0C) PROY comimm—
sk 128) - g/8 HETT - - - 296'0vas feleqng bujpuny [esa] :o_____.an__
(628'61$) {zo1$) o8l SAIBIST POOM MO - - - (160'6958) “LORNGUINDY) $3- 1edit| Ajunon mmﬂ_
oL0'%2%) [P3) vZe Wit Alley) - - - BSO°0EY LS SjusBAoIdW| peoy xo&co_._smu_
(g8y'L118) (1+58) LT $2|E1ST abply Usdsy] 65v'1$ - osz'ese' LS DSTOLEES ;32,__5_
(629'Lve) (1+58) i ite.] uaa:618n3 - - - 09zZ'vL68 Buraspnsay peoy xom—
[CE T {L0E8) Ti) X0 IS5 - - - 000°204% “boy AN'O'Y peOY IBlig USaIDE
5834 g rad (na) syun suawdaoparsgf ‘na ECE na;oos'z v 150D Jo8fold uswRAGIdI
39edw| Jodsuri) s89d Bujpramq Afjruey sad 1oedw; aed 1oedu =0 ucpepodsuely
Buivjeway Bujueway s|Bugs je30L S84 odsues) Jodsuer]
Bujupenay JO Ucjuod
AHYIINNS LNNOWY AMSA0IIUANNLAVY IS NNARIXYIN TYIINILOd
uapepodsurL[sic(Bupung A50 M % G M) Buiptierg ' + A0 M - B9 PUB B CMIBEIAEL vES\YTssAery uoisuspey WaSAS JatEM PROl X0d ZOPOCAED0ZIMYSAVINAD
- 000°05.L 45 %000} A GI8 ols phedaay [ 1of
GO0 28 C00'04E¢ %L 1E PO} g8t 8.3 S9IRI5E POOA NIOA
T00Z5 ©00'ayrs %8GT i ¥22 51 U AeyD
00028 CeO'PERS %8 ¥T [7N} [1¥] 9zl salels3 abply uadsy
000°28 000'vSHS %g'8 51 1L (33 ulled Usaiblang
00028 000'PvES %26l =D Zih €0l X0 hm_,__m_
na Jad 109 nasoe0'ze v na 1eoL BowING (na) suun Ajpuey obealoy Ahuz Bujpung]
juatancsdur a9y samjonyseU] 3O Juedlad Aysuag alfuis o),
uoepodsue | uopeptodsurd |

1 o HEpUSY ‘BIBAIOA JO AUD panun
DNIGNNF HNLINYLSVHAN] S
uonnquIsic Sulpund sjuaweacsdw) uonexodsue] i - WYY HAqIYx3

AHYNINNS ONIGNND NOILYLHOdSNVEL



11 SAOHS HYINS

"ONI "SISIYILNT ONRSIINIOND

055'826'4% - 518 ADRIAAY / [e10L
LGLIovS vOZ'ZE 58l SSIEST HOORA WOA
604'C6¢% R AL vze uLed Ajjey
0ge'aLrs $0T'TH ke sa|ejsg alpny URGSY|
ZHL'691S voz'es i uve %eemﬁ_ V0T 26 055'926'15 £00'652°1% 0c0'6¥1'zs 084'[28's3  |obuloay (o)
950'64€5 v0Z'z$ 0 X0g 4BA|IS vz'es 055'626'1$ CO0'0SL LS 020°6YL'Z8 085'£28'S$ T+ 1 "SON 10BLNOD
. qunouy a tnay sien Eo&%_?«m— "o Junoluy Na/000283V | 219V CZS €4 IV 1500 FECHUTY)
ajqeisAadey Jad u:_ugﬂ _2__._._&& Jad BJqeIgARI8Y aed ‘Uuo) a_o 894 "ju| asaA yzelorg hovﬁuesz_ h._ﬁ.__._ﬁm
WINTE N fuerodeH eifiug [egolL Aranosay winusxew ssa7 58917 pajeisa
AHVYININNS INNOWY FHNL1AYDTH WNNIXYIA TYELNILOL
Arepueshep (Supund i p T G OM) ARwung  Amuesiscidapuns A e gl Asmvesispiupund Ao M T 8w om) Kwwing Supund eardoieavahiuisund 40 M « B9 PUT B O ASAS 1BIEM RROY X0 ZOFODAWGIZIBIALSOADIRNN D
= 085 22855 0S5 az6 1% 000052 13 000 6Y 28 %0001 G 7] 019 SGEIGAY 1 [EIOL
66515 L06'50¥' LS LGEL0bS 000’0468 L51'829% %L VE ¥0') S8l EI SIS POOM MO
920'0% [T AT 604 56vS 000'8bYS 28 ZhoE %YTT Srl Vit G wie AEig]
65203 BLI9SE 1S 0sTELNS 000 VERS BEOEPPS %E b 7R T ETA) EalEisS S0RIY uadev]
oY o3 6EE G6¥3 26918 00C'¥5 1S 29T %98 51 ) & [TXRUEEY e
BOE'OF 01678038 860 6458 060 vres ZVE'L9ES %l 6% 191 E £6T %03 JaNS
i Jadiseg | SIuoweAclaun na/P0zz8 W nup f 00028 1Y AU | CTGES IV naeoL {a10y9/nQ) ha) sHun Aued abeasoy Aqu3a duipundf
3 dwg Kiepueg o paunbey Buipung 804 UGHIBLUUOYD 904 emoniysest] Jouealed Asuag a)6uig 10,
Asmjueg $884 |€10L [RUCHIPPY ) asah
AMVAIRNS SNIANNS JONVAIANOD ANUVLINYS

U 00 jepUSY, "BRIANIOA J0 AD eIy
ONIGNND FHNLINHLSYHANIMS
uonnguisia Buipund spusuteacidia) esuefesucs ABNIURS (6 - VY'Y HGIIXT



W HAOED WYINS
0N 'SHSINAYIING ONINIINIONT

‘paznbal Yunowe Guipuny el 18101 9t Aq paldEnw 1507 fe10jgRS At o sieys euouodold sy Buisn Aq painduwon 1 JUsUOGWOoD SINDRISEHYI USES 10] Junowy Buipundy Juoss sy
-Aifupioooe persnipe 3q M SINJEA 343 PUE LeIa at ||iM AB0{0pPOLaUS LORRINDIZ] 8U) "PAYSIE]SE UDaq SABY SIUMNOD juN pue abealoe [Bull 3U) SOUQ [SAIBWNSS SJE SJUN0D Jun pue abeane oy

"Sa10N

Bupuny A w B om) d 4900~ 5O PUN B QVRIAR), YESVELTMEAIY USRUIT WIS I PROY 104 Z0FD0AFIOTAMINHOMNAIG S
ISE'800'y $| 6.0°2S2°GE §[j 008'EE $  oog'ee sjooo'sze & | 0852286 $| #0009k 3| 61e90lT ¢ | esE'eay  $[o80'sel’l ¢ %0001 fr Al 5i8 fi1%:] __ﬂao._.
2022 $ | zos'aor'e Sl ovLl $iovlL B ¢ | 106's00') $ 1 200'82 $|eesviy $|eorcor  $11EL6LEL § %42 ¥y q84 BLE $3YL}53 POCAA N0,
mmwdmm ¢ | 80’208t §|| £59's 3| €598 ${ollce $| oTver’) §1]e8s'ee $|e8lvis s|viZser  $]ise'eeq’l § %8'5E shL ¥Ze ot uie £ Alleydy
L2082 S| oor'eose Sl 29cs $1z8ee (3 T E R E A G gge'tzL 9| 006'18L't 3 %8¥E [74 Lie EE)
g28'00L  $] 6900651 $i#i67T t] ws'z $|oge'iz t|eet'asr $3204'LE BEEEED] £90°'Ep $| 8229 % %ee 51 L [
OEPE8E .S |GG orEe S [ vra o $ | vro'e ${s0s'09 S OLE'v80") & | be0'9Z §| voE'br $]E6V96 ¢l geTivy & %L 6L L9l 2L €01
. junowy 3509 UNOWY S0 WnouYy 1800 unoury 3800 oWy 1507 naseel Hatawmna) {nal snen abiealay Aua mEuaauﬁ

j 1230, Puipuny juoiy) jmoang  Puipund uodd] eoians  Puipundjuosd] imoigng  Pupundjucad) jetoigng | jouedied | Ansuag |Bujijema Aifwed

TV TYLOL | m._.__::m_m ABjEMULIONS “3din) bm::mm R :oautamw:ﬂm ~3dlil] JBJEAA ajfiuig _ﬁom

T 0D 1IBPUSY "S{IANIOA JO AID paYUN
ONIGNN FUNLINULSVHANI MS
sorv Kewung uonnquysiq Bujpund Jucsd gaa uax3



EXHIBIT CCC

DRAFT

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, ILLINOIS

KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS
SPECIAL SERVICE AREAS
SERIES 2007 - PAYDOWN BONDS

(Southwest Interceptor Project including Pavillion Road)

ISSUER:

BOND TYPE:

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS:

THE AREAS:

SECURITY:

USE OF PROCEEDS:

COUPON:

FINAL MATURITY:

AMORTIZATION:

Summary of Proposed Terms

United City of Yorkville, Illinois (the “City™)
Special Tax Revenue Bonds

The proceeds of the Bonds will be used by the City to construct cettain
off-site Public Improvements benefiting the Special Service Areas (the
“Areas™). Improvements include roadways (including Pavillion Road)
sanitary sewer facilities, water facilities, costs for {and and easement.
acquisitions relating to any of the foregoing improvements and certain
soft costs associated with the Public Improvements,

The City will form five separate special service areas (the “Areas”™),
each of which will have a separate and distinct tax based on the number
of acres and dwelling units. As currently contemplated, the special
service areas will be:

Acreage® Units™*
Silver Fox 103 172
Evergreen Farms 49 77
Aspen Ridge Estates 126 217
Chally Farm 154 224
York Wood Estates 178 185

*(subject to change)

- A first lien on all Special Taxes imposed upon all property within
each Special Service Area.

- A Reserve Fund equal to 10% of the initial par amount of the
Bonds.

- the Special Service Areas will not be cross-collateralized

The proceeds of the Bonds will be used to 1) purchase and/or construct
certain Public Improvements; 2) fund a debt service reserve equal to
10% of par; 3) to pay capitalized interest for up to 25 months; and, 4)
pay costs of issuance.

TBD

March 1, 2017

Amortization will be in years 2014 through 2017.



EXHIBIT CCC

STRUCTURE:

AVERAGE ESTIMATED
SPECTAL TAX PAYMENTS:
(per unit)

ESTIMATED SOURCES
AND USES OF FUNDS:

DRAFT

Pursuant to a Special Tax Roll, the Special Service Area Tax from each
special service arca will be due and payable in full upon the transfer of
titte on the property. Effectively, this structure will mandate the
Special Tax be prepaid once the Developer no longer owns the property
(i.e., prior to the time a homeowner takes possession). At each closing,
the payoff amount would be deposited with the bond trustee and the
City would issue a lien release. Quarterly, the Trustee would use all
prepayments to redeem bonds. See “Special Mandatory Redemption
from Property Owner Prepayment.”

Beginning in 2009, each owner will be required to make special tax
payments based on interest only for the special service area debt
allocable to their property. Beginning with the June 2014 special tax
payment, the special service area debt will begin to amortize for any
unsold units.

Average Estimated Tax Payments

Year Amount'"
2009 $1,196
2010 1,196
2011 1,196
2012 1,196
2013 6,485
2014 0,485
2015 6,485
2016 4,185

W includes principal and interest

- assumes an average debt of $22,955/unit

- assumes title does not transfer

- assumes no prepayment and an average Debt
Service Reserve Credit of $2,295/unit

Sources:
Bond Proceeds $20,086,000
Original Issue Discount™ (200,860)
City Funds 1,990,880
Interest Earnings® 619.480
22,495,500
Uses:
Improvements 17,743,660
Debt Service Reserve® 2,008,600
Capitalized Interest® 2,301,520
Costs of Issuance® 441.720
22,495,500

(Y In order fo allow for prepayment at any time without penalty, the bond purchasers
will require a 1% discount on the bonds at the time of issuance.

@ interest is earned on the unspent bond proceeds held by the bond trustee.

®  The Debt Service Reserve is required by bondholders and will be returned pro rata
at the time of each lot payoff. See “Debt Service Reserve.”

) Interest is capitalized through March 1, 2009. The first tax bill will be June 2009.

G Costs of issuance are estimates and subject to change.



EXHIBIT CCC

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE:

PAYOFE:

ANNEXATION
AGREEMENT:

METHOD OF SALE:
DENOMINATION:
BOND FORM:
ANTICIPATED RATING:
TAXATION:

INTEREST PAYMENT
DATES:

PRINCIPAL PAYMENT
DATES:

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION:

SPECIAL MANDATORY
REDEMPTION FROM
PROPERTY OWNER
PREPAYMENT:

DRAFT

A Debt Service Reserve equal to 10% of the par amount of the
Bonds will be required by the bondholders. A pro rata amount of
the Debt Service Reserve will be used to reduce the payoff amount
(see “Payoff”) at the time the lien is released (the “Debt Service
Reserve Credit™). The Debt Service Reserve Credit will not be
available to any property owner that is delinquent in their special tax
payments.

Based on a $20,086,000 bond issue, the payoff figure per parcel
would be:

Fee per Bond Total Tax DSR Payoff
Project DU Costs per DU Credit Amount'”

City of Yorkville 1,990,880
Silver Fox 17,118 4,709 21,827 2,183 19,644
Evergreen Farm 20,647 5,680 26,327 2,633 23,694
Aspen Ridge Estates 17,982 4,946 22,928 2,293 20,635
Chally Farm 17,442 4,798 22,240 2,224 20,016
York Wood Estates 18,430 5,070 23,500 2,350 21,150

U Difference between “Payoff Amount” and “Fee per DU equals each unit’s per
share cost of the Costs of Issuance and the Capitalized Interest.

It is contemplated that each developer will agree in its Annexation
Agreement to the formation of the special service area on its
property and the imposition of the special tax. In order to assure an
adequate number of units is included and the resultant special tax is
acceptable, all annexations would need to occur simultaneously.

Limited Offering

$100,000 with increments of $1,000 in excess thereof.
Book-entry Only through DTC

None

Exempt from federal taxes; not subject to AMT; not exempt from
State of [llinois income taxes.

March 1 and September 1, commencing September 1, 2007

March 1, commencing March 1, 2014

The Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption by the City prior to
maturity.

The Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption on any Interest
Payment Date, in pat, from prepayments of Special Taxes made in
accordance with the Ordinance of the City establishing the Area (the
“Bstablishing Ordinance™) and deposited into the Special
Redemption Account of the Bond Fund, at a redemption price of par,
together with accrued interest on such Bonds to the date of



EXHIBIT CCC

ACCELERATION:

ABATEMENT:

BOND COUNSEL:
UNDERWRITER:
TRUSTEE:

BILLING AND
COLLECTING:

ADMINISTRATOR:

DRAFT

redemption. The Bonds will be called in order of maturity.

When the amount on deposit in the Special Redemption Account
equals $1,000, such amount shali be used to redeem Bonds on the
next Interest Payment Date at the redemption prices set forth above.

The Indenture does not permit the acceleration of the principal of the
Bonds upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the
Indenture,

Annually on or before the last Tuesday in December, the City shall
adopt an abatement ordinance abating the Special Tax to the extent
monies are on deposit in the Principal and Interest Account of the
Bond Fund and to adjust the levy for prepayment that occurred
during the year.

Foley & Lardner

William Blair & Company

Bank of New York

The County will bill and collect the special service area tax.
The City will hire David Taussig & Associates as the special service

area administrator (the “Administrator™) to assist the City in the
levy, abatement and collection process.
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EXHIBIT 'EEE’
RECAPTURE AGREEMENT

THIS RECAPTURE AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), is made and entered as of the day of
, 200 _, by and between the UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, an Illinois
municipal corporation ("CITY") and ("DEVELOPER").

RECITALS:

A. DEVELOPER is the OWNER and DEVELOPER of that certain real estate
development located within the corporate limits of the CITY and commonly known as
("Subdivision").

B. DEVELOPER and the CITY have heretofore entered into that certain Annexation
Agreement dated , 2006 ("Annexation Agreement") pertaining to the annexation
and development of the Subdivision within the CITY. ‘

C. DEVELOPER desires to recapture an allocable share of the costs of constructing
certain of the public improvements for the Subdivision ("Recapture Items") which will provide
benefit to other properties ("Benefited Properties") from the OWNERs of the Benefited
Properties ("Benefited OWNERs").

D. DEVELOPER and the CITY are desirous of entering into this Agreement to
provide for the fair and allocable recapture by DEVELOPER of the proportionate costs of the
Recapture Items from the Benefited OWNERSs, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual covenants
hereinafter set forth, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. RECAPTURE ITEMS. The Recapture Items, being elements of the public
improvements to be constructed as a part of the development of the Subdivision, are identified in
Attachment "A" attached hereto ("Recapture Schedule™). The Recapture Schedule identifies
cach Recapture Item and the estimated cost to construct each Recapture Item ("Estimated Cost").
DEVELOPER shall cause each of the Recapture Items to be constructed in compliance with the
provisions of the Annexation Agreement and to be accepted and conveyed to the CITY in
accordance with applicable ordinances of the CITY.

2. BENEFITED PROPERTIES. The Benefited Properties are legally described in the
Recapture Schedule attached hereto as Attachment "B". Each parcel of real estate contained
within the Benefited Properties is referred to herein individually as a "Benefited Parcel”. There
are a iotal of { ) Benefited Parcels as identified in the Recapture Schedule.




3. RECAPTURE COSTS. The Recapture Item(s) which the Corporate Authorities of the
CITY have determined will benefit a Benefited Parcel, and the prorata share of the Estimated
Cost of each such Recapture Item to be allocated to such Benefited Parcel are set forth in the
Recapture Schedule. The aggregate amount of the proportionate share of the Estimated Cost for
each of the Recapture Items allocable to a Benefited Parcel is referred to herein as the
"Recapture Costs". The Recapture Costs for each of the Benefited Parcels shall be as identified
in the Recapture Schedule. Interest shall accrue on the Recapture Costs for the benefit of
DEVELOPER at the rate of six percent (6 %) per annum from the date the Recapture Item is
completed until the Recapture Cost is paid. All references to Recapture Costs herein shall
include accrued interest owed thereon.

4. COLLECTION OF RECAPTURE COSTS. The CITY shall assess against and collect
from the Benefited OWNER of a Benefited Parcel, or any portion thereof, his successors and
assigns, the Recapture Cost, calculated under Paragraph 3 of this Agreement for such Benefited
Parcel. At such time as a Benefited OWNER, or its agent or representative, annexes and/or
subdivides a Benefited Parcel, or any portion thereof, or subdivides the Benefited Parcel from a
larger parcel of land, or applies to the CITY for issuance of a permit for connection to all or any
of the Recapture Items, whichever shall first occur, the CITY shall collect from such Benefited
OWNER, or its agent or representative, the applicable Recapture Costs, owed hereunder by such
Benefited Parcel. No Benefited Parcel which is a part of a subdivision (whether by plat or
division by deed) shall be approved or recognized by the CITY or be issued a connection permit
to a Recapture Item by the CITY until such Benefited Parcel has fully paid the applicable
Recapture Costs, owed by such Benefited Parcel under this Agreement.

5. PAYMENT OF RECAPTURE COSTS. Any Recapture Costs, collected by the CITY
pursuant to this Agreement shall be paid to DEVELOPER, or such other person or entity as
DEVELOPER may direct by written notice to the CITY, within thirty (30) days following
collection thereof by the CITY. It is understood and agreed that the CITY's obligation to
reimburse DEVELOPER shall be limited to funds collected from the Benefited OWNERSs as
provided herein, and payments made hereunder shall be made solely out of said funds. This
Agreement shall not be construed as creating any obligation upon the CITY to make payments
from its general corporate funds or revenue.

6. CITY'S OBLIGATION. The CITY and its officers, employees and agents shall make
all reasonable efforts to make the aforesaid collections of the Recapture Costs, for each
Benefitted Parcel. Neither the CITY or any of its officials shall be liable in any manner for the
failure to make such collections, and DEVELOPER agrees to hold the CITY, its officers,
employees and agents, harmless from the failure to collect said fees. In any event, however,
DEVELOPER and/or the CITY may sue any Benefited OWNER owing any Recapture Costs,
hereunder for collection thereof, and in the event DEVELOPER initiates a collection lawsuit, the
CITY agrees to cooperate in DEVELOPER's collection attempts hereunder by allowing full and




free access to the CITY's books and records pertaining to the subdivision and/or development of
the Benefited Parcel and the collection of any Recapture Costs therefore. In the event the CITY
and any of its agents, officers or employees is made a party defendant in any litigation rising out
of or resulting from this Agreement, DEVELOPER shall defend such litigation, including the
interest of the CITY, and shall further release and hold the CITY harmless from any judgment
entered against DEVELOPER and/or the CITY and shall further indemnify the CITY from any
loss resulting therefrom, except to the extent such loss results from the grossly negligent or
willfully wrongful act or conduct of the CITY or any of its agents, officers or employees.

7. CITY'S COLLECTION OF OTHER FEES AND CHARGES. Nothing contained in
this Agreement shall limit or in any way affect the rights of the CITY to collect other fees and
charges pursuant to CITY ordinances, resolutions, motions and policies. The Recapture Costs
provided for herein for each Benefited Parcel is in addition to such other CITY fees and charges.

8. TERM. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for a period of twenty (20)
years from the date hereof, unless sooner terminated by the mutual agreement of the parties
hereto or by the completion of all duties to be performed hereunder. In the event no portion of a
Benefited Parcel is a part of a subdivision approved or recognized by the CITY and no
connection permit as aforesaid is issued by the CITY for such Benefited Parcel within ten years
following the date of this Agreement, this Agreement, and each and every duty and undertaking
set forth herein pertaining to such Benefited Parcel, shall become null and void and of no further
force and effect as to such Benefited Parcel.

9. LIEN. The recordation of this Agreement against the Benefited Properties shall create
and constitute a lien against each Benefited Parcel, and each subdivided lot hereafter contained
therein, in the amount of the Recapture Costs, plus interest, applicable hereunder to such
Benefited Parcel.

10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

A. Agreement: This Agreement may be amended upon the mutual consent of the
parties hereto from time to time by written instrument and conformity with all applicable
statutory and ordinance requirements and without the consent of any other person or
corporation owning all or any portion of the Benefited Properties.

B. Binding Effect: Except as otherwise herein provided, this Agreement shall inure
to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of DEVELOPER and
any successor municipal corporation of the CITY.

C. Enforcement: Each party to this Agreement, and their respective successors and
assigns, may either in law or in equity, by suit, action, mandamus, or other proceeding in
force and compel performance of this Agreement.



D. Recordation: A true and correct copy of this Agreement shall be recorded, at
DEVELOPER's expense, with the Kendall County Recorder's office. This Agreement
shall constitute a covenant running with the land and shall be binding upon the Benefited
Properties in accordance with the terms and provisions set forth herein.

E. Notices: Any notice required or desired to be given under this Agreement, unless
expressly provided to the contrary herein, shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have
been given on the date of personal delivery, on the date of confirmed telefacsimile
transmission provided a hard copy of such notice is deposited in the U.S. mail addressed
to the recipient within twenty-four hours following the telefacsimile transmission, or on
the date when deposited in the U.S. Mail, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid,
return receipt requested, and addressed as follows:

Ifto CITY: United CITY of Yorkville
Attn: CITY Clerk
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkyville, II 60560
Fax: (630) 553-4350

with a copy to: John Wyeth, Esq.
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, 11 60560
Fax: (630) 553-4350

If to OWNER
E. Severability: The invalidity or unenforceability of any of the provisions

hereof, or any charge imposed as to any portion of the Benefited Properties, shall not affect the
validity or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement or the charges imposed hereunder.

G. Complete Agreement: This Agreement contains all the terms and
conditions agreed upon by the parties hereto and no other prior agreement, excepting the
Annexation Agreement, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist
to bind the parties. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois.

H. Captions and Paragraph Headings: Captions and paragraph headings
incorporated herein are for convenience only and are not part of this Agreement, and further shall
not be used to construe the terms hereof.



L. Recitals and Exhibits: The recitals set forth at the beginning of this
Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto are hereby incorporated into this Agreement and
made a part of the substance hereof.

J. Enforceability: This Agreement shall be enforceable in the Circuit Court of
Kendall County by any of the parties hereto by an appropriate action of law or in equity to secure
the performance of the covenants herein contained.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals as
of the date first above written.

DEVELOPER: CITY:
UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE,

an Illinois municipal corporation

By: By:

Mayor
Title: President
Attest:

Dated: CITY Clerk
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UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-28

AN ORDINANCE OF THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY,
ILLINOIS, APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO AN ANNEXATION
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL
COUNTY, ILLINOIS AND JUSTINE BRUMMEL

This is the first amendment to the Annexation Agreement for the Silver Fox Subdivision
recorded as Document #200600031425.

Passed by the City Council of the
United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois
This 26™ day of May, 2015

Prepared by and Return to:

United City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, IL 60560

Published in pamphlet form by the

authority of the Mayor and City Council
of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall
County, Illinois on September 24, 2015.

.



Ordinance No. 2015- Qé

AN ORDINANCE OF THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY,
ILLINOIS, APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO AN ANNEXATION
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL
COUNTY, ILLINOIS AND JUSTINE BRUMMEL

WHEREAS, the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois (the “City”) is a duly
organized and validly existing non home-rule municipality created in accordance with the
Constitution of the State of Illinois of 1970 and the laws of the State; and,

WHEREAS, the City and Midwest Development, LLC entered into an Annexation
Agreement dated August 8, 2006 (the “Original Agreement”) which provided, among other
things, for the annexation into the City and the development of approximately 100 acres (the
“Subject Property”) in accordance with an R-2 Single Family Residence District to be known as
“Silver Fox™; and,

WHEREAS, the Subject Property was never developed, nor any other area included in
any one of four (4) additional developments, all five collectively defined as the “Southwest
Infrastructure Developments,” and all of the parties in interest, or their successors in interest,
now desire to unwind any and all of the cross contingencies and obligations of the Southwest
Infrastructure Developments; and,

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend each of the annexation agreements as executed by
each member of the Southwest Infrastructure Developments to remove all cross contingencies
and obligations on the condition that all five owners of the Southwest Infrastructure
Developments agree to such amendments; and,

WHEREAS, all notices required by law relating to an amendment to the Original
Agreement have been given to the persons or entities entitled thereto pursuant to the applicable
provisions of the Illinois Compiled Statutes; and,

WHEREAS, as required by the Illinois Municipal Code, the Mayor and City Council of
the City duly fixed the time and the place for a public hearing on the amendment to the Original
Agreement, and pursuant to legal notice, held said hearing on May 12, 2015 all as required by
the provisions of the Illinois Compiled Statutes and the City’s Ordinances.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the
United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1. The above recitals are incorporated and made a part of this Ordinance.

Section 2. The First Amendment To An Annexation Agreement By And Between The
United City Of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois And Justine Brummel, attached hereto

Ordinance No. 2015- &%
Page 2




and made a part hereof, is hereby approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby
authorized and directed to execute and deliver said First Amendment on behalf of the City.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval, and
publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.

Passed by the City Council of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois this

AL dayof  Mp , A.D. 2015. /
y / Lol Ufprin

CITY CLERK
a
CARLO COLOSIMO KEN KOCH
JACKIE MILSCHEWSKI LARRY KOT \%
CHRIS FUNKHOUSER JOEL FRIEDERS )
DIANE TEELING ) SEAVER TARULIS -

Approved by me, as Mayor of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, this

H  dayof SEPTEMBER ,AD.2015. -
, [/} 7
- MAYOE//

Attest:;

clrY CLERK

Published in pamphlet form:

SEPTEMEER IS 2015

Ordinance No. 2015- ig
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN
THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS AND
JUSTINE BRUMMEL

This First Amendment to an Annexation Agreement dated August 8, 2006 (the “Original
Agreement’) by and between the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, a municipal
corporation (the “Cizy”), and Midwest Development, LLC (the “Original Owner”) is made and

entered into this 4 day of SEPTEM HER 2015, by and between the City and Justine

Brummel of 12565 Fox Road, Yorkville, Illinois 60560 (“Successor Owner™).

WHEREAS, the City and the Original Owner entered into the Original Agreement which
provided, among other things, for the annexation into the City and the development of
approximately 100 acres (the “Subject Property”) in accordance with an R-2 Single Family
Residence District to be known as “Silver Fox™; and,

WHEREAS, the Original Agreement further provided for the development of 172 single-
family residences as shown on a Preliminary Plat attached thereto as Exhibit B; the establishment
of a Special Service Area as the primary funding mechanism for the installation of the necessary
public improvements; and obligated the City to issue “Special Revenue Bonds” payable from
special taxes levied on several service areas, contingent upon the annexation of four (4)
additional developments (all five collectively defined therein as the “Southwest Infrastructure
Developments™); and, the execution of recapture/recovery agreements to reimburse the
Developer for improvements constructed by the Developer which benefitted property other than
the Subject Property; and,

WHEREAS, the Subject Property was never developed, nor any other area included in

any one of the Southwest Infrastructure Developments and all of the parties in interest, or their




successors in interest, now desire to unwind any and all of the cross contingencies and
obligations of the Southwest Infrastructure Developments; and,

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend each of the annexation agreements as executed by
each member of the Southwest Infrastructure Developments to remove all cross contingencies
and obligations on the condition that all five owners of the Southwest Infrastructure
Developments agree to such amendments.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing mutual covenants, agreements
and conditions herein set forth, the City and the Successor Owner agree as follows:

Section 1. The Original Agreement is hereby repealed in its entirety and replaced with
this First Amendment.

Section 2. Zoning. The Subject Property has been classified in the R-2 Single Family
Residence Zoning District in accordance with the United City of Yorkville Zoning Ordinance
and the Successor Owner of the Subject Property shall have the right to develop the Subject
Property pursuant to said Zoning Ordinance, the City’s Subdivision Ordinance and all other
ordinances applicable to R-2 Single Family Residence development, as in effect at the time of
the development of the Subject Property.

Portions of the Subject Property are presently being used for agricultural purposes and,
notwithstanding any provision of the City Code now in effect or adopted during the Term (as
hereinafter defined) of this First Amendment, and notwithstanding the City’s zoning of the
Subject Property, the current uses shall be permitted to continue as a legal non-conforming use.

Section 3. Annexation to Sanitary District.

On or before the development of the Subject Property, the Successor Owner hereby

agrees to file any necessary petitions and agreements to request annexation thereof to the




Yorkville Bristol Sanitary District (“"YBSD”) for the purpose of extending and connecting to the
sanitary sewer lines and treatment facilities of YBSD. The City shall fully cooperate with the
Successor Owner in obtaining such permits as may be required from time to time by both federal
and state law, including, without limitation, the Illinois Environmental Protection Act, in order to
permit the construction and connection of sanitary sewer lines to the YBSD facilities to serve the
Subject Property.

Section 4. Sanitary Sewer and Water Improvements.

A. Successor Owner’s Obligation. At its sole cost and expense, upon development
of the Subject Property, the Successor Owner shall be obligated to construct all on-site sanitary
séwer collection lines and all other on-site improvements as approved by the City for the
collection of sanitary sewage generated by the Subject Property (the “Sewer Improvements™) and
all on-site water mains, distribution lines, and other improvements as approvéd by the City for
the provision of potable water to the Subject Property (the “Water Improvements™), in
accordance with the City Code. Should the City determine that a well and water treatment
facility to be located on the Subject Property or a water tower is required, such improvements
shall be considered an off-site improvement to be performed by the City at the cost of the
Successor Owner. In the event the City determines a need for off-éite Sewer Improvements,
such off-site Sewer Improvements shall be performed by the City at the cost of the Successor
Owner.

B. Dedication. Upon completion of construction or installation of the Sewer
Improvements and Water Improvements, the Successor Owner shall dedicate to the City those
portions of the Sewer Improvements and Water Improvements that are required to be dedicated

in accordance with the City Code (the “Public Sewer and Water Improvements™).




Section 5. Storm Water Improvements.

A. Successor Owner’s Obligation. Upon development of the Subject Property at its
own cost, the Successor Owner shall be obligated to construct all storm sewers, detention
systems, and compensatory storage facilities as approved by the City for storm water drainage
from the Subject Property (“Storm Water Improvements™) in accordance with the City Code.

B. Dedication. Upon completion of construction, all Storm Water Improvements
shall be owned and maintained by the Successor Owner. The Successor Owner shall dedicate a
maintenance easement or easements to the City allowing the City to maintain the Storm Water
Improvements.

Section 6. Repeal of all Cross Contingencies and Cross Obligations of the Southwest
Infrastructure Developments. The Successor Owner and City agree that the enforceability of this
First Amendment is contingent upon the approval, execution and recordation of amendments to
the original annexation agreements for each of the other members of the Southwest Infrastructure
Developments, namely: Chally Farm, Aspen Ridge, Yorkwood Estates and Evergreen Farm.
Upon approval, execution and recordation of this First Amendment and amendments to all of the
annexation agreements for each of the Southwest Infrastructure Developments, the Original
Agreement shall be repealed and deemed to be null and void.

Section 7. Security Instruments. As required by City Code, the Owner Successor shall
deposit, or cause to be deposited with the City such letters of credit or surety bonds (“Security
Instruments”) on the standard forms of the City, to guarantee completion and maintenance of
improvements (as defined in the City’s Subdivision Control Ordinance) to be constructed as a
part of the development of the Subject Property. The Successor Owner may use either

irrevocable letters of credit or surety benefits for its Security Instruments, as permitted by City




ordinance. The amount and duration of each Security Instrument shall be as required by
applicable ordinances of the City at the time of development of the Subject Property.

Section 8. City Ordinances.

The Successor Owner agrees that the future development of the Subject Property shall be
in accordance with the requirements of all applicable city ordinances as in effect as of the date all
required development approvals are issued by the City, including but not limited to the
following:

(a) Procedures for acceptance of public improvements constructed as a part of the

development of all or a portion of the Subject Property;

(b) Signage;

(c) Appearance code;

(d) Permits;

(e) Fees, charges and contributions;

(f) School and park contributions with land or cash in lieu of land; and,

(g) Building codes.

Section 9. Remedies.

Without limiting any of the remedies otherwise available at law or in equity to the
Successor Owner or the City as a result of the breach of this First Amendment, the parties agree
as follows:

A. This First Amendment shall be enforceable in any court of competent jurisdiction
in the State of Illinois by the parties and their successors and assigns. Enforcement may be

sought by an appropriate action at law or in equity to secure performance of the covenants,



agreements, conditions and obligations contained herein, including specific performance of this
First Amendment. This First Amendment shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois.

B. No action taken by any party pursuant to the provisions of this or any other
section of this First Amendment shall constitute an election of remedies, and all remedies set
forth in this First Amendment, as well as any remedies at law or in equity, shall be cumulative
and shall not exclude any other remedy.

C. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, in the event of a material breach of
this First Amendment, the parties agree that the defaulting party shall have thirty (30) days after
written notice of said breach to correct the same prior to the non-breaching party’s seeking of
any remedy provided for herein. If such breach cannot be corrected within thirty (30) days, the
non-breaching party shall not seek to exercise any remedy provided for herein as long as the
defaulting party has initiated the cure of said breach and is diligently prosecuting the cure of said
breach.

D. In the event the performance of any covenant to be performed hereunder by any
party is delayed for causes which are beyond the reasonable control of the party responsible for
such performance (which causes shall include, but not be limited to, acts of God; inclement
weather conditions; strikes; material shortages; lockouts; the revocation of, suspension of, or
inability to secure any necessary governmental permit or license; or/and any similar cause), the
time for such performance shall be extended by the amount of time of such delay.

E. The failure of the parties to insist upon the strict and prompt perforrnénce of the
terms, covenants, agreements, and conditions herein contained, or any of them, upon any other

party imposed, shall not constitute or be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any party’s




right thereafter to enforce any such term, covenant, agreement, or condition, but the same shall
continue in full force and effect.

Section 10.  Partial Invalidity of Agreement. This First Amendment is entered into
pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois Municipal Code, Section 11-15.1-1 ef seq. (65 ILCS
5/11-15.1-1 et seq.). If any provision of this First Amendment or its application to any person,
entity, or property is held invalid, such provision shall be deemed to be excised here from and
the invalidity thereof shall not affect the application or validity of any other terms, conditions
and provisions of this Amendment and, to that end, any terms, conditions and provisions of this
First Amendment are declared to be severable. In addition, the City and Successor Owner shall
take all action necessary or required to fulfill the intent of this First Amendment as to the
development of the Subject Property.

Section 11. Notices.

All notices shall be in writing and shall be delivered personally or by a nationally
recognized overnight courier, prepaid, or shall be sent by registered or certified mail, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, at the following addresses:

Successor/Owner : Justine Brummel

12565 Fox Road

Yorkville, Illinois 60560
With a copy to : Kelly A. Helland

1107A South Bridge Street

Yorkville, Illinois 60560
To the City : United City of Yorkville

800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, Illinois 60560




With a copy to : Kathleen Field Orr, City Attorney

Kathleen Field Orr & Associates
53 West Jackson Blvd.
Suite 964
Chicago, Illinois 60604

Service shall be deemed to be upon delivery unless delivery is rejected and then service shall be

deemed to have occurred upon such rejection.

Section 12. General Provisions.

A. Entire Agreement. This First Amendment contains all the terms and conditions
agreed upon by the parties hereto and no other prior agreement regarding the subject matter
hereof shall be deemed to exist to bind the parties. The parties acknowledge and agree that the
terms and conditions of this First Amendment have been reached through a process of good faith
negotiation, both by principals and through counsel, and represent terms and conditions that are
.deemed by the parties to be fair, reasonable, acceptable and contractually binding upon each of
them.

B. Amendment. This First Amendment may be amended from time to time in writing
with the consent of the parties, pursuant to applicable provisions of the City Code and the laws of
the State of Illinois in force from time to time. The City and the then owner of record of any
portion of the Subject Property, even if not the Successor Owner named herein, may agree (only
in writing) to amend or modify this First Amendment as to such portion(s) vof the Subject
Property without the consent of the owner(s) of other portion(s) of the Subject Property, so long
as such amendment or modification does not alter the rights, obligaﬁons or remedies provided in

this First Amendment for any owner or any other portion of the Subject Property which is owned

by such owner of record.




C. No Third Party Beneficiaries. No provision of this First Amendment is intended
to benefit, nor shall any provision of this First Amendment benefit, any party, individual or entity
other than a party to this First Amendment or its respective successor or assign.

D. Effective Date. The date on which this First Amendment becomes effective (the
“Effective Date’) shall be the date on which it has been approved and executed by all parties
hereto.

E. Term of First Amendment. This First Amendment shall be effective from its
Effective Date and terminate as of August 7, 2026, being the termination date of the Original
Agreement (the “Term); provided, however, that if any action is filed or any claim is made
challenging the legality, validity or enforceability of this First Amendment, the period during
which such action or claim is pending or unresolved shall not be included as part of the Term of
this First Amendment.

F. Counterparts. This First Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same
document.

Section 13. Successors and Assigns.

A. This First Amendment shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the
Successor Owner and its successor(s) in title and interest, and upon the City, and any successor
municipalities of the City. It is specifically agreed that the Successor Owner shall have the right
to sell, transfer, lease, and assign all or any part of the Subject Property to other persons, firms,
partnerships, corporations, or other entities for building or development purposes (as well as for

occupancy) and that such persons, firms, partnerships, corporations, or other entities shall be




entitled to the same rights and have the same obligations as the Successor Owner has under this
First Amendment.

B. It is understood and agreed that this First Amendment constitutes a covenant
running with the land and as such, shall be assignable to and binding upon each and every
subsequent grantee and successor in interest of the Successor Owner and the City.

C. Nothing contained in this First Amendment shall be construed to restrict or limit
the right of the Successor Owner to sell or convey all or any portion of the Subject Property,
whether improved or unimproved.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have caused this First Amendment to be
executed by their duly authorized officers on the above date at Yorkville, Illinois.

United City of Yorkville, an Illinois
Municipal Corporation

o AL AL
Mayof // /

Attest:

City Clerk

Justine Brummel

By:% M

10




Legal Description of Subject Property

THAT PART OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE POINT ON
THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN
RAILWAY COMPANY, WHICH POINT, PREVIOUSLY MONUMENTED BY A
CONCRETE MONUMENT, IS REPORTED TO BE 50.54 FEET SOUTH 61 DEGREES 06
MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY FROM THE
INTERSECTION OF SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE AND NORTH LINE OF SECTION 6;
THENCE SOUTH 61 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID RAILROAD, 1437.98 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 01 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 38 SECONDS EAST, 406.94 FEET; THENCE SOUTH
25 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST, 1326.82 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 24
DEGREES 50 MINUTES 33 SECONDS EAST, 1405.93 FEET; THENCE NORTH 75
DEGREES 51 MINUTES 51 SECONDS EAST 1556.19 FEET; THENCE NORTH 14
DEGREES 05 MINUTES 45 SECONDS WEST, 393.10 FEET; THENCE NORTH 77
DEGREES 27 MINUTES 51 SECONDS EAST, 11.20 FEET; THENCE NORTH 12 DEGREES
35 MINUTES 59 SECONDS WEST 2406.69 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF FOX ROAD;
THENCE SOUTH 62 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 18 SECOND WEST ALONG SAID CENTER
LINE 581.48 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST
784.86 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, (EXCEPT THAT PART IN FOX GLEN,
BEING THAT PART OF THE FOREGOING NORTH OF THE CENTER LINE OF FOX
ROAD), IN: KENDALL TOWNSHIP, AND ALSO, (EXCEPT THAT PART OF THE
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7, EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING ON THE
CENTER LINE OF FOX ROAD AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF A SUBDIVISION
KNOWN AS "FOX GLEN, KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS;"
THENCE SOUTH 25 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WEST
LINE OF LOT 19 IN SAID SUBDIVISION EXTENDED, 35.57 FEET; THENCE NORTH 64
DEGREES 40 MINUTES 50 SECONDS EAST 217.38 FEET; THENCE NORTH 18
DEGREES 20 MINUTES 7 SECONDS WEST 708.61 FEET; THENCE NORTH 18 DEGREES
46 MINUTES 5 SECONDS EAST 138.95 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY
LINE OF FOX ROAD; THENCE NORTH 25 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 24 SECOND WEST
35.0 FEET TO SAID CENTER LINE; THENCE SOUTH 64 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 36
SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 400.0 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING), IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

Permanent Index No.: 05-06-100-008
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10-15-4: ELIMINATION OF NONCONFORMING BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES
AND USES:

The period of time during which the following nonconforming uses, buildings, or structures
may continue or remain nonconforming shall be limited from March 28, 1974, or when any
use, building or structure is rendered nonconforming by a subsequent amendment to this
title. Every such nonconforming use, building or structure shall be completely eliminated or
removed from the premises at the expiration of the period of time specified below:

A. Any nonconforming use of a building or structure having an assessed valuation not in
excess of five hundred dollars ($500.00) shall be removed after two (2) years.

B. All nonconforming advertising devices, such as pennants, flags, movable signs or
portable outdoor displays in any business district shall be removed after two (2) years.

C. Any nonconforming signs and any and all billboards and outdoor advertising structures
shall be removed after five (5) years.

D. Any nonconforming use of land where no enclosed building is involved, or where the only
buildings employed are accessory or incidental to such use, or where such use is
maintained in connection with a conforming building, shall be removed after a period of
two (2) years.

E. In all residence districts uses permitted only in the B-2 and B-3 districts or the
manufacturing districts, and which use is located in a building, all or substantially all of
which is designed or intended for a residential accessory purpose, shall be entirely
discontinued and shall thereafter cease operation in accordance with the following
amortization schedule:

TABLE 10.15.01
AMORTIZATION PERIODS

Description Of Use Amortization Period

Uses permitted in the B-2 and B-3 districts 15 years

Uses permitted only in the manufacturing districts 15 years

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/printnow.php 2/24/2016



Sterling Codifiers, Inc. Page 2 of 2

F. Requests for extensions to the elimination period may be sought before the city council. In
no case shall an extension be granted for a period longer than two (2) years. (Ord. 2014-
73, 11-25-2014)

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/printnow.php 2/24/2016



PUBLIC NOTICE
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
BEFORE
THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
PLAN COMMISSION
PC 2016-05

NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN THAT BBB Farms LLC, petitioner, has filed an
application with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting
rezoning approval from R-2, Single-Family Traditional Residence District to A-1,
Agricultural District. The real property is located on Fox Road, between Pavilion
Road and Ford Drive in Yorkville, Illinois.

The legal description is as follows:

THAT PART OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF
THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY, WHICH POINT,
PREVIOUSLY MONUMENTED BY A CONCRETE MONUMENT, IS
REPORTED TO BE 50.54 FEET, SOUTH 61 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 20
SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY FROM THE
INTERSECTION OF SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE AND THE NORTH LINE
OF SAID SECTION 6; THENCE SOUTH 61 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 20
SECONDS WEST ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID RAILROAD,
1,437.98 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 38 SECONDS
EAST, 406.94 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 25 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 10
SECONDS EAST, 1,326.82 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 24 DEGREES 50
MINUTES 33 SECONDS EAST, 1,405.93 FEET; THENCE NORTH 75
DEGREES 51 MINUTES 51 SECONDS EAST, 1,556.19 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 14 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 45 SECONDS WEST, 393.10 FEET,;
THENCE NORTH 77 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 51 SECONDS EAST, 11.20
FEET; THENCE NORTH 12 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 59 SECONDS WEST
2,406.69 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF FOX ROAD; THENCE SOUTH 62
DEGREES 58 MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID CENTER LINE,
581.48 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 09 SECONDS
WEST, 784.86 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, (EXCEPT THAT PART
IN FOX GLEN, BEING THAT PART OF THE FOREGOING NORTH OF THE
CENTER LINE OF FOX ROAD, AND EXCEPT THAT PART OF THE
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT THE CENTER LINE OF FOX ROAD AT THE SOUTHWEST



CORNER OF A SUBDIVISION KNOWN AS "FOX GLEN, KENDALL
TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS; THENCE SOUTH 25
DEGREES 19 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF
LOT 19 IN SAID SUBDIVISION EXTENDED, 835.57 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 64 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 50 SECONDS EAST 217.38 FEET,;
THENCE NORTH 18 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 07 SECONDS WEST 708.61
FEET; THENCE NORTH 18 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST
138.95 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID FOX
ROAD; THENCE NORTH 25 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST
35.00 FEET TO SAID CENTER LINE; THENCE SOUTH 64 DEGREES 18
MINUTES 36 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 400.00 FEET
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING) IN THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL,
KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

The application materials for the proposed Rezoning are on file with the City
Clerk.

NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN THAT the Plan Commission for the United City
of Yorkville will conduct a public hearing on said application on Wednesday, April
13, 2016 at 7 p.m. at the United City of Yorkville, City Hall, located at 800 Game
Farm Road, Yorkville, Illinois 60560.

The public hearing may be continued from time to time to dates certain without
further notice being published.

All interested parties are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an
opportunity to be heard. Any written comments should be addressed to the United
City of Yorkville City Clerk, City Hall, 800 Game Farm Road, Yorkville, Illinois,
and will be accepted up to the date of the public hearing.

By order of the Corporate Authorities of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall
County, Illinais.

BETH WARREN
City Clerk

BY: Lisa Pickering
Deputy Clerk



Memorandum

To: Plan Commission
From: Chris Heinen, Planner
CC: Bart Olson, City Administrator

Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director
Date: March 31, 2016
Subject: PC 2016-06 Trade Schools (Text Amendment)

Background:

As the Plan Commission will recall, the Zoning Ordinance was adopted on November 25,
2014 and placed into effect on January 1, 2015. Since that time, staff has been approached by a
citizen looking to incorporate a private, non-profit alternative school within an M-1 zoning
classified property. Our zoning ordinance currently does not allow trade schools or commercial
schools within a manufacturing district. Staff researched several surrounding municipalities (see
chart below) and found that several of them either permitted trade schools as an outright
allowable use or required a special use in manufacturing districts. Staff felt that allowing trade
schools in the Manufacturing Districts as a special use is consistent with current zoning trends
and would allow, on a case-by-case basis, additional review of surrounding land uses, site layout,
parking, utilities, and traffic.

Trade School Uses in Manufacturing Districts
Municipality Use Permitted | Special Use | Not Permitted
Plainfield Trade school, music school, X
dance school.
Oswego Schools; music, dance, business, X
commercial or trade.
Plano Schools of dance, music, business X
or trade.
Montgomery | Personal and Business Services. X
Naperville Vocational and trade schools. X
Aurora Technical, trade, and other X
specialty schools.
Sugar Grove Schools, commercial or trade. X

The City of Yorkville currently defines Trade schools only and is defined as, “A school
established to provide for the teaching of industrial, clerical, managerial, or artistic skills. This
definition applies to schools that are owned and operated privately for profit and that do not offer
a complete educational curriculum (e.g., beauty school, modeling school). Staff researched other
definitions similar to trade schools and found the following:

e Montgomery - Personal & Business Services: An establishment that provides services to
consumers (for example, insurance, salon, attorney, veterinarian, teaching facilities for
trades, gymnastics, martial arts etc., consulting and contracting firms etc.).




e Sugar Grove - SCHOOL, VOCATIONAL: A secondary or higher education facility
primarily teaching usable skills that prepare students for jobs in a trade and meeting
Illinois' requirements as a vocational facility.

e Naperville - SCHOOL, TRADE OR VOCATIONAL: A school which offers career based
instruction in skilled subjects such as computer repair, network development, graphic
design, multimedia, arts, shorthand, carpentry, drafting and automobile mechanics as part
of a certificate or degree program.

While all of these definitions are similar in nature, there is a growing trend that will need
to be addressed in alternative schools. Currently, Yorkville only allows schools, public or
private, in residentially zoned districts. This creates a burden on smaller, alternative schools.
Finding a location and building a new school is economically unfeasible for these uses. It is also
not a permitted home occupation, so a single family dwelling would not be able to be have a
school. A majority of these alternative schools are typically operated in business areas or
manufacturing areas. The City currently has a few schools operating under the trade school
definition that are located in business zoned properties and staff feels that expanding them into
the manufacturing districts seems to be a logical trend.

Staff Recommendation Summary:

Staff has worked with the City Attorney to revise the definition of trade schools to add
commercial school and allow such schools as a special use in the M-1 & M-2 zoning
classifications. The following proposed text amendments would be:

1. Chapter 2: Rules and Definitions in the Zoning Ordinance to revise the definition of trade
school to include commercial school and define it as “A school established to provide for
the teaching of academic, industrial, clerical, managerial, artistic skills, or alternative
education. This definition applies to schools that are owned and operated privately for
profit or non profit and that may offer a complete education curriculum.”

2. Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses in the Zoning Ordinance to identify Commercial
school, trade school as special uses in the M-1 Limited Manufacturing and M-2 General
Manufacturing districts.

This item was discussed at the April 5, 2016 Economic Development Committee
meeting. The committee had some concern that it may be better suited in the M-1 zoning district
only and not a special use in the M-2 zoning district. Staff would like the input from the Plan
Commission regarding this concern. Staff will be available to answer any questions the Plan
Commission may have regarding the proposed text amendment. A recommendation from Plan
Commission will be forwarded to City Council for consideration at the April 26, 2016 regularly
scheduled meeting.

Proposed Motion for Amendment:

In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on April 13, 2016 and
discussions conducted at that meeting, the Plan Commission recommends approval to the City
Council a request for a text amendment to Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses in the
Zoning Ordinance to identify Commercial school, trade school as special uses in the M-1
Limited Manufacturing and M-2 General Manufacturing districts and proposing a text
amendment to Chapter 2: Rules and Definitions in the Zoning Ordinance to redefine the



definition of trade school to “A school established to provide for the teaching of academic,
industrial, clerical, managerial, artistic skills, or alternative education. This definition applies
to schools that are owned and operated privately for profit or non profit and that may offer a
complete education curriculum.” This text amendment will provide regulations for the
establishment and operation of such uses in these zoning districts, subject to staff
recommendations and conditions in a memo dated March 31, 2016, and further subject to
{insert any additional conditions of the Plan Commission}...

Attachments:
1. Current Chapter 6 of the United City of Yorkville’s Municipal Zoning Ordinance.
2. Research on Trade Schools.
3. Copy of Public Notice.



CHAPTER 6 o

S
- = Not Permitted Use

Permitted Use

Special Use

Permitted and Special Uses

Table 10.06.01

Residential Uses

Zoning Districts

Use Category Ag Open Space Residential Business Manufacturing
A-1 |OS-1(0S-2| E1 R-1 R-2 R-2D R-3 R-4 o B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 M-1 M-2
Mobile Home Park - - - = - = - St St - - - - - - -
Dwelling, Duplex - - - - - - P P P = - o - - - -
Dwelling, Multi-Family - - - - - - - p P = p2 52 52 s? 52 52
Dwelling, Single-Family P - - P P P P P P = - = - - - -
Dwelling, Townhouse - - - = - = - P p - - - - - - -

110 Acre Minimum
2 Apartments above the first floor in a building used for business or as live/work space above a manufacturing use shall be permitted up to a maximum of two (2) apartments.

Table 10.06.02

Institutional Uses

Zoning Districts
Use Category Ag Open Space Residential Business Manufacturing
A-1 0S-1 | 0S-2 E-1 R-1 R-2 R-2D R-3 R-4 (0] B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 M-1 M-2
Cemetery S S S S S S S S S - - - - - - -
Religious Institution, Large S - - S S S S S S P P P P P S S
Religious Institution, Small S - - S S S S S S P P P P P S S
Philanthropic Institution S - - S S S S S S - - - - -
Hospital S - - S S S S S S - P P P P - -
Library - - - - - - - - - P P P P P - -
Nursing Home/Rest Home S - - S S S S S S - P P - -
College, University or Junior College S - - S S S S S S P P P P P - -
School, Public or Private - - - P P P P P P - - - - - - -

[ United City of Yorkville Zoning Ordinance ] [45]



Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses

Table 10.06.03

Business Uses

Zoning Districts
Use Category Ag Open Space Residential Business Manufacturing
A-1 [ 0S-1 0S-2 E-1 R-1 R-2 R-2D R-3 R-4 B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 | M-1 M-2

Adult Daycare Facility - - S S S S S S - S S S S S S
Adult Oriented Uses - - - - - - - = - - - - - S S
Advertising Agency - - - - - = - = - > p p P - -
Agricultural Implement Sales, Storage and S ) ) ) ) ) ) ) i i i S P i i
Services of Agriculturally Products (see Section
10-6-1: Special Conditions)
Agricultural Uses P S S = - - - - - - - - - - -
Amphitheater - - P - - - - = - S S S S S S
Amusement Park S - S - - - - - - - - S S S S
Animal Feed, Storage Preparation, Mixing and
Wholesale and Retail
Animal Hospital S - - - - - - - - - = S - -
Antique Sales - - - S - S - S S P P P P - =
Apiaries P - - - - = - = - - - - - - -
Appliance - Service - - - - - = - = - . - P P - .
Art Galleries/Art Studio - - - - - - - = - . P P P P P
Auction House P - - - - - - = - - - - ) - -
Automobile Parts/Accessories Sales - - - - - - - - - - P P P - s
Automobile Rental - - - - - - - - - - P P P - s
Automobile Repair - - - - - - - = - . . P P P P
Automobile Sales and Service/Open Sales Lot - - - - - = - = - - . P P - -
Bakery, Retail - - - - - = - = - P P P p S3 S3
Bank with Drive Through Facilities - - - - - - - - - P P P P - =
Barber/Beauty Shop - - - - - - - = - P P P P - -
Bed and Breakfast Inn S - - S S - - - - S S S - - -

3 Appurtenant to Wholesale

[ United City of Yorkville Zoning Ordinance ] [46]



Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses

Table 10.06.03

Business Uses

Use Category

Zoning Districts

Ag

Open Space

Residential

Business Manufacturing

A-1

0s-1 0s-2

R-2

R-2D

R-3

R-4

B-1 B-2

®
w
®
ES

M-1 M-2

Bicycle Shop/Repair

Billiard Parlor

Boat Sales and Rental

Boat Storage

Bookkeeping Service

Bookstore

| O | W»VW]|TOT]|WL

Bowling Alley

W | O | O |wW]|TO|TO]| DO

Building Material Sales

WM || O |TO | Ww»W]|]TO]|TO]| DO
W || O |TO | W]|]TO]|TO]| DO

Building equipment, building materials, lumber,
coal, sand and gravel yards, and yards for
contracting equipment of public agencies, or public
utilities, or materials or equipment of similar nature,
ready mix batch plants, and asphalt manufacturing
plants

Campground

Car Wash without mechanical repair

Carpet and Rug Cleaning

Catering Service

Clothes - Pressing and Repair

Club/Lodge, Private
(see Section 10-6-1: Special Conditions)

Coffee Shop

Commercial Feeding of Fish, Poultry, Livestock

Commercial Laboratory

Commercial School, Trade School - offering training
in classroom study

Community Center

[ United City of Yorkville Zoning Ordinance ]

[47]



Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses

Table 10.06.03

Business Uses

Use Category

Zoning Districts

Ag

Open Space

Residential

Business Manufacturing

A-1

0s-1 0s-2

R-2 R-2D

R-3

R-4

B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 { M-1 M-2

Contractor Facilities with Outdoor Storage

Contractor Offices

Cultivation of non-food crops and seeds used
of cellulosic biofuels production

Dance Hall

Daycare Facility and Preschools

Department Store

Detective Agency

Dressmaker - Seamstress

Dry Cleaning Establishment

Dry Cleaning Plant

Employment Office

Farming

Fertilizer Sales with Storage and Mixture

Forestation

Funeral Home/Mortuary/Crematorium

Furniture Repair and Refinishing

Gasoline Service Station

Golf Course (see Section 10-6-1: Special Conditions)

Golf Course, Miniature

Golf Driving Range

Grain Elevators and Storage

ol VoI o B BNV,

Grocery Store

Health Club or Gymnasium

[ United City of Yorkville Zoning Ordinance ]
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Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses

Table 10.06.03

Business Uses

Use Category

Zoning Districts

Ag

Open Space

Residential

Business Manufacturing

A-1

0s-1 0s-2

R-2 R-2D

R-3

R-4

B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 { M-1 M-2

Heavy Machinery and Equipment Rental

: - - p p

Hotel/Motel/Motor Lodges/Tourist Courts

Indoor Shooting Gallery/Gun Range
(see Section 10-6-1: Special Conditions)

Interior Decorating Studio

Kennel, Commercial or Private Dog Kennels

Liquor Store

Locksmith

Massage Establishment

Medical Clinic

W | O | ©|T©

Microbrewery/Brew Pub
(see Section 10-6-1: Special Conditions)

Milk Processing and Distribution
(see Section 10-6-1: Special Conditions)

Motorcycle Sales and Service

Musical Instrument Sales/Repair

o

Newspaper Publishing

Nursery/Greenhouses

Outdoor Music Venues

o
»w| ||| TO©]| O
»w| || TO©|TO]| O
o
o

Off-Track Betting (OTB) Establishments

Parks

Pawnbrokers/Pawnshops

Pet Stores/Pet Supply

Photography Studio/Camera Repair Shop

Playground

Post Office/Retail Mail or Package Service

W || O || TO|TOT | UL |OWL

W || T©|T©|T©|T©
W | ©|©|T©|T©O|T©

[ United City of Yorkville Zoning Ordinance ]
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Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses

Table 10.06.03

Business Uses

Zoning Districts
Use Category Ag Open Space Residential Business Manufacturing
A-1 [ 0S-1 0S-2 E-1 R-1 R-2 R-2D R-3 R-4 B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 [ M-1 M-2

Public Storage Facilities/Miniwarehouse Stor- i i i ) ) ) ] ) ) ) ) ) s s
age (see Section 10-6-1: Special Conditions)

Professional Services/Offices - - - - - - - - - P P P - s
Radio and Television Studios - - - - - - - - - P P P - s
Recreation Center - - P - - - - - - P P P P )
Recreational Camp - Private S - S - - - - - - = - - - -
Recreational Vehicle Sales and Service - - - - - - - = - - p ) - -
Repair of Household or Office Machinery or

Equipment - - - - - - - - - = - = P P
Resale Dealers - - - - - - - - - P P P - =
Restaurant, Convenience and Fast Food - - - - - - - - - P P P - s
Retail Store includes Pharmacy/Drugstore - - - - - - - - - P P P S -
Riding Academies with Stables S - - = - = - - - - - - - -
Roadside Stand P - - - - = - - - - - - - ,
Salvage Yard S - - - - - - = - - - - - S
Shoe and Hat Repair - - - - - - - - P P P - s
Skating Rink - - S - - - - - - - P P - =
Stables or Paddocks P - S - - - - - - - - - - -
Stadium - - S - - - - = - - S S S S
Swimming Pool - Indoor - - S - - - - - - P P P - s
Tattoo and Body Piercing Establishment = - - - - - - - - P P P P P
Tavern - Nightclub or Lounge - - - - - - - - - S S S S S
Taxidermist - - - - - - - - - P P P - =
Theater = - - = - = - = - P P P - -
Trailer Camp/Park S - - - - - - - - P P P - =
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Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses

Table 10.06.03

Business Uses

Zoning Districts

Use Category Ag Open Space Residential Business Manufacturing

A-1 0s-1 0s-2 E-1 R-1 R-2 R-2D R-3 R-4 0) B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 { M-1 M-2

Treatment Center = - - = - = - = - - P P P P - -

Truck and Trailer Rental - - - - - = - = - . . - S P - .

Truck, truck tractor, truck trailer, car trailer or bus
storage yard - not include motor freight terminal

Upholstery Shop - - - = - - - - - - - i

Veterinary Clinic = - - = - - - - - - - -

Watch and Clock Sales and Repair - - - = - = - - - - - P

W | O | O |©
W | © | ©O|©

Weaving and Mending - Custom - - - - - = - = - - - P

Table 10.06.04

Manufacturing Uses

Zoning Districts
Use Category Ag Open Space Residential Business Manufacturing
A-1 0s-1 0S-2 E-1 R-1 R-2 R-2D R-3 R-4 (0] B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 M-1 M-2
Any Assembly, Production, Manufacturing, Testing,
Repairing or Processing that can and does operate _ ) ) _ ) _ ) _ ) _ ) _ ) _ p p
in compliance with Performance Standards (see
Section 10-6-1: Special Conditions)
Bakery (Wholesale - Retail Component Special Use) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P
Manufacturer of Firearms and Ammunition - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P
Medical Cannabis Cultivation Center & Dispensaries ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) S S
(see Section 10-6-1: Special Conditions)
Research Laboratories - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P
Aggregate Materials Extraction, Processing and Site S
Reclamation (Stone and Gravel Quarries)
Welding Shop S - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P
Wholesaling and Warehousing - Local Cartage
Express Facilities - not including motor freight - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P
terminal
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Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses

Table 10.06.05

Transportation Uses

Zoning Districts
Use Category Ag Open Space Residential Business Manufacturing
A-1 0s-1 0s-2 E-1 R-1 R-2 R-2D R-3 R-4 (0] B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 | M-1 M-2

Airport S - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S
Bus or Truck Storage Yard - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P
Bus or Truck Garage or Streetcar House - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P
Marina = - S = - = - = - = - S S S S S
Motor Freight Terminals - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S
Railroad Passenger Station S - - S S S S S S S S S S S S S
Railroad Repair Shops, Maintenance S i i i i i i i i i i i i i i S
Buildings and Switching Yards

Taxicab Business - - - - - - - - - - - - P P S S

Table 10.06.06

Utility Uses

Zoning Districts

Use Category Ag Open Space Residential Business Manufacturing
A-1 0s-1 0s-2 E-1 R-1 R-2 R-2D R-3 R-4 (0} B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 M-1 M-2
Communications Use S - - - - = - = - - - - - - - -
Electric Substation S S S S S S S S S - P P P P P P
Filtration Plant S - - S S S S S S - - - - - P P
Fire Station S - - S S S S S S P P P P P P P
Police Station S - - S S S S S S P P p ] p P p

Public Utility - Electric substations and dis-
tribution centers, gas regulation centers and S S S - - - - - - - - - - - P P
underground gas holder stations

Other Public Utility Facilities S - S P P P P P P - - - - - P P
Radio and Television Towers - Commercial S - - S S S S S S - - - - = P P
Sanitary Landfill - - - - - - - = - = - - - - S S

[ United City of Yorkville Zoning Ordinance ] [52]



Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses

Table 10.06.06

Utility Uses
Zoning Districts
Use Category Ag Open Space Residential Business Manufacturing
A-1 0Ss-1 0S-2 E-1 R-1 R-2 R-2D R-3 R-4 o B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 M-1 M-2
Sewage Treatment Plant - - - S S S S S S - - - - - P P
Solid Waste Disposal Site - - - - - - - - - S S S S S P P
Utility Company Maintenance Yard s - - = - o - - - - - i - ; P )
Utility Service Yard or Garage - - - - - - - = - . - - - - P P
Watchman Quarters (Dwelling Units) - - - - - = - - - - - . - . P )

Table 10.06.07

Alternative Energy Uses

Zoning Districts

Use Category Ag Open Space Residential Business Manufacturing
A-1 0Ss-1 | 0S-2 E-1 R-1 R-2 R-2D R-3 R-4 (0] B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 M-1 M-2

Wind Farm S - S - - - - - - S - - - - - -
Freestanding Wind Energy System (FWES) S S S S S S - - - S - - - - S S
Building Mounted Wind Energy System

(BWES) S - P S S S S S S S S S S S S S
Solar Farm S S S - - - - - - S - - - - - -
?;sl:;d;;g Mounted Solar Energy Systems S i p p p p p p p p p p p p p p
Freestanding Solar Energy Systems (FSES) S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

Table 10.06.08

Miscellaneous Uses

Zoning Districts
Use Category Ag Open Space Residential Business Manufacturing
A-1 0S-1 | 0S-2 E-1 R-1 R-2 R-2D R-3 R-4 (0] B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 M-1 M-2
Accessory Building/Use and Structures P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Planned Unit Development (PUD) S - - S S S S S S S S S S S S S
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Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses

10-6-1 Special Conditions
A. Agricultural Implementation Sales, Storage and Service of Agriculturally Oriented Products:

1. Sales yards, wholesale or retail, for agricultural products in A-1 Agricultural District refer to Section 10-9-3 Special Uses.

B. Club/Lodge, Private:

1. Private clubs or lodges in A-1 Agricultural District refer to 10-9-3 Special Uses.

C. Golf Courses:

1. Regulation size golf courses are permitted provided that no clubhouse or accessory building shall be nearer than five hundred (500) feet to any
dwelling on an adjacent zoning lot.

2. Golf courses, miniature golf courses and driving ranges in A-1 Agricultural District refer to 10-9-3 Special Uses.

D. Indoor Shooting Galleries/Gun Ranges:
1. When located in a multiple-tenant building shall only be located in an end unit and with the gallery/range not adjacent to an adjoining unit.
2. The minimum building setback for indoor shooting gallery/gun range facilities shall be fifty (50) feet from any property line that abuts a residentially
zoned property.

3. The retail operations of any indoor shooting gallery/gun ranges shall occupy not more than twenty five percent (25%) of the total floor area.

E. Manufacturing Uses:

1. All business, production, servicing and processing shall take place within completely enclosed buildings unless otherwise specified. Within one
hundred and fifty (150) feet of a residence district, all storage shall be in completely enclosed buildings or structures, and storage located elsewhere in
the Manufacturing Districts may be open to the sky but shall be enclosed by solid walls or fences (including solid doors or gates thereto) at least eight
(8) feet high, but in no case lower in height than the enclosed storage and suitably landscaped.

2. However, open off-street loading facilities and open off-street parking of motor vehicles under one and one-half tons’ capacity may be unenclosed
throughout the Manufacturing Districts, except for such screening of parking and loading facilities as may be required under provisions of Chapter
16 of this title.

F. Medical Cannabis Cultivation Center:

1. Cultivation Center and Medical Cannabis Dispensing Organization in compliance with the Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot Program Act
(410 ILCS 130/1 et seq.) provided that the distance requirements set forth in that Act are also required for public parks and religious institutions for such
use.

[ United City of Yorkville Zoning Ordinance ] [55]



Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses
G.Microbrewery:

1. Microbreweries/brewpubs, where if off premises consumption is allowed, all sales must be in a hand capped, sealed container with a total maximum
production of fifteen thousand (15,000) barrels per calendar year inclusive of on premises and off premises sales.

2. Microbrewery/brewpub operations will be ancillary to a restaurant or eating establishment, and the brewing component of the facility shall be no
more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the total floor area.

H. Public Storage Facilities/Mini Warehouse Storage:

1. Whenever a special use is granted for miniwarehouse storage under this M-1 zoning district or any other permitted zoning district, the following restrictions
shall apply:

A. If the facility is within one hundred fifty feet (150’) of a residential district, all storage shall be in completely enclosed buildings or structures,
and storage located elsewhere in this district may be open to the sky, but shall be enclosed by solid walls or fences (including solid doors or gates
thereto) at least eight feet (8’) high, but in no case lower in height than the enclosed storage buildings and suitably landscaped consistent with
the city’s landscape ordinance.

B. A minimum of three (3) parking spaces shall be provided.

C. There shall be a minimum of twenty feet (20’) between buildings.

I. Salvage Yards
1. Salvage Yards in A-1 Agricultural District refer to Section 10-9-3 Special Uses.

[ United City of Yorkville Zoning Ordinance ] [55]



Sterling Codifiers, Inc. PL,L\)J ) Page 4 of 10

Variety store.
Watch and clock sales and repair.
Wearing apparel store.

Weaving and mending, custom. (Ord. 1979-7, 6-25-1979; amd. Ord. 2006-50, 6-26-2006)

5-8A-1: USES PERMITTED:

The following uses are permitted:

A. Manufacturing Type Uses:
Advertising displays.
Apparel and other products manufactured from textiles.
Art needle work and hand weaving.

Automobile painting, upholstering, repairing, reconditioning and body and fender
repairing, when done within the confines of a structure.

Awnings, venetian blinds.

Bakeries.

Beverages, nonalcoholic; bottling and distributing.

Blacksmith shop.

Books, hand binding and tooling.

Bottling works.

Brushes and brooms.

Building equipment, building materials, lumber, coal, sand and gravel yards, and
yards for contracting equipment of public agencies, or public utilities, or materials or

equipment of similar nature.

Cameras and other photographic equipment and supplies.

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/printnow.php 3/3/2016



Sterling Codifiers, Inc. Page 5 of 10

Canning and preserving.

Canvas and canvas products.

Carpet and rug cleaning.

Carting, express hauling or storage yards.

Ceramic products such as pottery and small glazed tile.

Cleaning and dyeing establishments when employing facilities for handling more than
one thousand five hundred (1,500) pounds of dry goods per day.

Clothing.

Contractor or construction shops, such as:
Air conditioning.
Building.

Cement.

Electrical.

Heating and ventilating.
Masonry.

Painting.

Plumbing.
Refrigeration.

Roofing.

Cosmetics and toiletries.

Creameries and dairies.

Drugs.

Electrical appliances such as lighting fixtures, irons, fans, toasters and television
receivers and home movie equipment, but not including electrical machinery.

Electrical supplies, manufacturing and assembly such as wire and cable assembly
switches, lamps, insulation and dry cell batteries.

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/printnow.php 3/3/2016



Sterling Codifiers, Inc. Page 6 of 10

Food products, processing and combining of (except meat and fish); baking, boiling,
canning, cooking, dehydrating, freezing, frying, grinding, mixing and pressing.

Fuel sales, no retail sales and no gas station uses.

Fuel sales with storage of fuel oils, gasoline and otherflammable products limited to
one hundred twenty thousand (120,000) gallons per tank, with the total storage on a
zoning lot not to exceed five hundred thousand (500,000) gallons.

Fur goods, not including tanning and dyeing.

Glass products, from previously manufactured glass.

Hosiery.

House trailers, manufacture.

Ice, dry and natural.

Ink mixing and packing and inked ribbons.

Laboratories; medical, dental, research, experimental and testing, provided there is no
danger from fire or explosion nor of offensive noise, vibration, smoke, dust, odors, heat,
glare or other objectionable influences.

Laundries.

Leather products, including shoes and machine belting, but not including tanning and
dyeing.

Luggage.
Machine shops for tool, die and pattern making.
Meat products.

Metal finishing, plating, grinding, sharpening, polishing, cleaning, rustproofing and
heat treatment.

Metal stamping and extrusion of small products such as costume jewelry, pins and
needles, razor blades, bottle caps, buttons and kitchen utensils.

Musical instruments.

Orthopedic and medical appliances such as artificial limbs, braces, supports and
stretchers.

Paper products, small, such as envelopes and stationery, bags, paper boxes, tubes
and wallpaper printing.
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Perfumes and cosmetics.

Pharmaceutical products.

Plastic products, but not including the processing of the raw materials.
Precision instruments such as optical, medical anddrafting.

Printing and newspaper publishing including engraving and photoengraving.

Products from finished materials; plastic, bone, cork, feathers, felt, fiber, paper, fur,
glass, hair, horn, leather, precious and semiprecious stones, rubber, shell or yarn.

Public utility electric substations and distribution centers, gas regulation centers and
underground gas holder stations.

Repair of household or office machinery or equipment.

Rubber products, small, and synthetic treated fabrics, (excluding all rubber and
synthetic processing) such as washers, gloves, footwear, bathing caps and atomizers.

Signs.

Silverware, plate and sterling.

Soap and detergents, packaging only.
Soldering and welding.

Sporting and athletic equipment such as balls, baskets, cues, gloves, bats, rackets
and rods.

Statuary, mannequins, figurines and religious and church art goods, excluding foundry
operations.

Storage and sale of trailers, farm implements and other similar equipment on an open
lot.

Storage of flammable liquids, fats or oil in tanks each of fifty thousand (50,000)
gallons or less capacity, but only after the locations and protective measures have been
approved by local governing officials.

Storage of household goods.

Textiles; spinning, weaving, manufacturing, dyeing, printing, knit goods, yarn, thread
and cordage, but not including textile bleaching.

Tool and die shops.

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/printnow.php 3/3/2016



Sterling Codifiers, Inc. Page 8 of 10

Tools and hardware such as bolts, nuts and screws, doorknobs, drills, hand tools and
cutlery, hinges, house hardware, locks, nonferrous metal castings and plumbing
appliances.

Toys.

Truck, truck tractor, truck trailer, car trailer or bus storage yard, when all equipment is
in operable condition, but not including a truck or motor freight terminal.

B. Wholesaling And Warehousing Uses: Local cartage express facilities (but not including
motor freight terminals).

C. Public And Community Service Uses:
Bus terminals, bus garages, bus lots, street railway terminals or streetcar houses.
Electric substations.
Fire stations.
Municipal or privately owned recreation buildings or community centers.
Parks and recreation areas.
Police stations.
Sewage treatment plants.
Telephone exchanges.
Water filtration plants.
Water pumping stations.

Water reservoirs. (Ord. 1979-7, 6-25-1979; amd. Ord. 2002-20, 5-28-2002)

D. Residential Uses: Dwelling units for watchmen and their families when located on the
premises where they are employed in such capacity. However, no residential use,
including dwelling units for watchmen and their families, shall be permitted at sexually
oriented businesses, as defined in section 5-17-3 of this title.
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E. Miscellaneous Uses:
Accessory uses.
Radio and television towers.
Sexually oriented businesses as defined in section 5-17-3 of this title.

Temporary buildings for construction purposes, for a period not to exceed the duration
of such construction. (Ord. 2000-34, 12-11-2000)

5-8A-2: CONDITIONS OF PERMITTED USES:

All permitted uses are subject to the following conditions:

A. Performance Standards:

1. Any production, processing, cleaning, servicing, testing, repair or storage of goods,
materials or products shall conform with the performance standards set forth in section
5-8-1 of this chapter.

2. Uses established after the effective date hereof shall conform fully to the performance
standards set forth in section 5-8-1 of this chapter for the district.

B. Enclosure Of Use, Screening Requirements: All business, production, servicing and
processing shall take place within completely enclosed buildings unless otherwise
specified. Within one hundred fifty feet (150') of a residence district, all storage shall be in
completely enclosed buildings or structures, and storage located elsewhere in this district
may be open to the sky but shall be enclosed by solid walls or fences (including solid
doors or gates thereto) at least eight feet (8') high, but in no case lower in height than the
enclosed storage and suitably landscaped.

However, open off street loading facilities and open off street parking of motor
vehicles under one and one-half (1 1/2) ton capacity may be unenclosed throughout the
district, except for such screening of parking and loading facilities as may be required
under the provisions of chapter 10 of this title.

C. Nonconforming Uses: Uses established on the effective date hereof and by the provisions
continued herein are rendered nonconforming, shall be permitted to continue, subject to
the regulations of chapter 9 of this title. (Ord. 1979-7, 6-25-1979)
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5-8A-3: SPECIAL USES PERMITTED:

The following uses may be allowed by special use permit in accordance with the provisions
of section 5-12-7 of this title:

All uses permitted under section 5-7E-2, "B-5 Service Business District", of this title.
Any use which may be allowed as a special use in the B-5 business district.

Airport or aircraft landing fields.

Auction houses.

Motor freight terminals.

Planned development, industrial.

Sanitary landfill.

Slaughtering; poultry, rabbits, livestock.

Stédiums, auditoriums and arenas.

Theaters, outdoor drive-in. (Ord. 1979-7, 6-25-1979; amd. Ord. 1991-35, 11-25-1991; Ord.
1993-2, 3-22-1993)
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Sterling Codifiers, Inc.

5-7C-2: USES PERMITTED:

The following uses are permitted:

All uses permitted in the B-2 district.

Appliances, sales.
Army/navy surplus sales.
Art gallery, art studio sales.
Auditorium.

Automatic food service.

Page 1 of 10

Automobile accessory store where there is no driveway entrance across the sidewalk.

Automobile and motorcycle accessory and parts store, provided there is no on site repair,

machining or service.

Bicycle shop, sales and repair.

Billiard parlor/pool hall.

Blueprint and photostat shop.

Bookbinding.

Bowling alley.

Business machines store.
Carpet and rug stores.
Carryout food service.

Catalog sales office.

China and glassware stores.

Clothing store, all types.
Coin and philatelic stores.
Costume rental shop.

Currency exchanges.

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/printnow.php
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Dance hall.

Department store.

Discount store.

Drapery store.

Dry goods store, retail.
Employment agency, public and private.
Exterminating shops.
Financial institutions.

Floor covering sales.
Furniture sales, new.

Furrier, retail.

Garden supplies/seed stores.
Hardware store.

Health club or gymnasium.
Hotel.

Interior decorating studio/store.
Junior department store.
Leather goods.

Loan offices.

Locksmith.

Luggage stores.

Mirror and glazing shop.
Motels.

Motion picture theater.

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/printnow.php
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Music, instrument and record store; repair and retail.

Newspaper publishing office.

Notions store.

Office equipment, supplies and stationery.

Orthopedic and medical appliance stores.

Paint/wallpaper store.

Pawnshop.

Personal loan agency.

Pet store, not including animal hospitals.

Physical culture and health services.

Picture frame store.

Radio and television studios, no towers.

Record shop.

Reducing salon, masseur and steam bath.
/O Schools of dance, music, business or trade.

Sewing machine sales and service.

Sporting goods.

Stationery.

Tack shop.

Taxidermist.

Theater, indoor only.

Toy store.

Trading stamp store.

Transit and transportation facilities.

Typewriter, sales and repair.
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Naperville, IL Code of Ordinances Page 1 of 3

ARTICLE C. - I INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT
SECTION:

6-8C-2: - PERMITTED USES:
No building, structure, or parcel of land shall be used and no building or structure shall be erected,
altered, or enlarged which is arranged, intended, or designed for other than one of the following uses:

Abrasive manufacture.
Bakeries.
Banks and financial institutions.

oo s

Boot and shoe manufacture.

Bottling companies.

Building materials and products sales and storage.
Offices—Business or professional.
Offices/clinics—Medical or dental.

Cartage and express facilities.

0. Civic buildings established prior to August 7, 2007. Civic buildings established after August 7,
2007, shall comply with Section 6-2-29 (Public Assembly Uses) of this Code.

11. Contractor and construction offices, shops, and yards.

= 0 ® N o W;

12. Dairy products processing.

13. Dry cleaning establishments and laundries employing more than ten (10) persons.
14. Electronic and scientific precision instruments manufacture.
15. Electroplating.

16. Food manufacture, packaging, and processing.

17. Freight terminals, including air, motor, and railroad.

18. Furniture, bedding, and carpet manufacture.

19. General manufacturing.

20. Glass products production and sales.

21. Light machinery production.

22. Lithographing.

23. Machine shop.

24, Paper products manufacture.

25. Parking lots and garages, principal.

26. Plastics processing.

27. Pottery and ceramics manufacture.

28. Printing and publishing establishments.

29. Radio and television stations and studios.

30. Vocational and trade schools established prior to August 7, 2007. Vocational and trade schools
which are established after August 7, 2007, shall comply with Section 6-2-29 (Public Assembly
Uses) of this Code.

about:blank 3/3/2016
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3.
32,
33.
34.
35.
36.

37.

38.
39.
40.
41,

Sexually oriented business.

Warehouses, storage, and distribution facilities.
Warehouse, self-storage.

Wearing apparel manufacture.

Woodworking.

Other uses which are of the same general character as the other permitted uses as determined
by the Zoning Administrator.

Pet care establishments, when the principal use of the building, structure or premises. All activity
shall be conducted completely within any building or structure; outdoor areas shall be prohibited.

Fitness facility.

Automobile repair facility and car washes used in conjunction with an automobile repair facility.
Medical cannabis dispensing organization per Section 6-2-32 of this Title.

Sleep clinics.

(Ord. No. 80-5, 1-21-1980; Ord. No. 80-98, 10-6-1980; Ord. No. 95-67, 4-5-1995; Ord. No. 07-187, 8-6-
2007; Ord. No. 08-018, 1-15-2008; Ord. No. 08-035, 2-19-2008; Ord. No. 10-073, § 1, 6-15-2010; Ord. No.
13-082, 8 4, 8-20-2013; Ord. No. 13-162, § 5, 12-17-2013; Ord. No. 15-190, § 2, 12-1-2015)

6-8C-3: - CONDITIONAL USES:
The following conditional uses may be permitted in specific situations in accordance with the
procedures outlined in Section 6-3-8 and Chapter 4 of this Title, as appropriate:

ol S

® N o v

11:
12,
13,
14.
15,
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

Airports and heliports.
Air, motor, and railroad freight terminals.
Asphalt products manufacture.

Automobile service stations and car washes used in conjunction with an automobile service
station.

Boiler and tank manufacturing.
Brick and structural clay products manufacture.
Bulk storage of petroleum products.
Car washes.
Chemical and process manufacture.
Concrete mixing plants.
Eating and drinking establishments.
Feed mills.
Foundries and forge plants.
Fuel and ice sales.
Grain storage and processing.
Heavy machinery production.
Junkyards and automobile graveyards.
Leather tanning and processing.
Meatpacking.
Metal reduction and refinement.

about:blank 3/3/2016
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21. Metal stamping.

22. Mining operations.

23. Motor vehicle sales, when in conjunction with a development petition for a planned unit
development as outlined in Chapter 4 of this Title.

24. Petroleum products processing and storage.

25. Petroleum refining.

26. Planned unit developments.

27. Public and private utility facilities.

28. Recreation and social facilities, excluding nursery schools, preschools, daycare centers, and
learning centers unless accessory to a permitted use and excluding those uses defined as public

assembly uses in Section 6-2-29 of this Title.

29. Rubber processing and manufacture.

30. Stadiums.

31. Steel manufacture.

32. Stone products manufacture.

33. Telecommunications facilities as required by Chapter 13 of this Title.

34. Public assembly uses per Section 6-2-29 of this Title.

35. Pet care establishments, when the principal use of the building, structure or premises. Outdoor
areas may be permitted. All outdoor activity shall be conducted as described in Section 6-2-25,

"Veterinary Office And Pet Care Establishment,” of this Title.

36. Medical cannabis cultivation center per Section 6-2-29 of this Title.

(Ord. No. 80-5, 1-21-1980; Ord. No. 06-225, 9-19-2006; Ord. No. 07-187, 8-6-2007; Ord. No. 08-035,

2-19-2008; Ord. No. 08-078, 4-15-2008; Ord. No. 09-017, 2-17-2009; Ord. No. 13-082, § 4, 8-20-2013;

Ord. No. 13-162, 8 5, 12-17-2013; Ord. No. 14-175, § 2, 11-18-2014)

about:blank 3/3/2016
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6-2-29: - PUBLIC ASSEMBLY USES:

1. Purpose: It is the intent of this Section to provide regulations specific to public assembly uses
located within the industrial districts provided for in Chapter 8 of this Title, specifically the RD, ORI,
and | districts. It is further the intent of this Section to create greater opportunities for the location
of said public assembly uses in instances where the City Council determines that said use shall not
result in a detrimental impact to the intent of this Title and/or policies adopted through the City's
comprehensive planning documents. Public assembly uses shall be ancillary and complementary
to uses customarily permitted in Chapter 8, "Industrial Districts", of this Title.

2. Applicability: These regulations shall apply to all public assembly uses seeking approval of a
conditional use through Chapter 8, "Industrial Districts", of this Title on or after August 7, 2007,
which is the date following adoption hereof. Public assembly uses, as defined under Subsection
6-2-29.4 of this Section, established in accordance with the provisions of this Title prior to August 7,
2007, shall not be impacted by this Section and shall remain legal uses.

3. Process: Public assembly uses shall be processed as a conditional use in the respective industrial
districts (RD, ORI, and 1) in accordance with Section 6-3-8, "Conditional Uses", of this Title and
Subsections 6-2-29.5 and 6-2-29.6 of this Section.

4. Definitions: For the purposes of this Section, public assembly uses shall be classified as the
following noncommercial uses which are operated on a not for profit basis:

4.1. Clubs/lodges.

4.2. Religious uses.

4.3. Schools, trade or vocational.

4.4. Colleges/universities.

4.5, Community centers.

4.6. Performing arts center.

4.7. Civic buildings.

4.8. Cultural institutions.

4.9. Other similar uses as determined by the Zoning Administrator.

5. Public Assembly Use Components: In determining compliance with Section 6-3-8, "Conditional
Uses", of this Title, the following components of the public assembly use shall be evaluated based
on the entirety of the circumstances affecting the particular property in the context of the existing
and intended future use of the properties:

5.1. Total square footage of the proposed use.

5.2. Size of the parcel.

5.3. Peak hours of operation and impact on adjacent uses.

5.4. Primary and accessory uses of the operation.

5.5. Parking demand and available private parking supply.

5.6. Traffic generation and adjacent roadway capacity.

5.7. Maximization of the highest and best use for the subject property and/or building.
5.8. Preservation and enhancement of tax generating potential of the zoning district.

5.9. Extent to which the proposed use, structure, and site design results in an efficient and

about:blank 3/3/2016
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creative use of the subject property.
5.10. Other criteria determined to be necessary to assess compliance with Section 6-3-8 of this
Title.
6. Compliance With All Other Applicable Code Requirements: The public assembly use shall comply
with all applicable Code requirements, including, but not limited to, landscaping, building design
guidelines, and performance standards.

(Ord. 07-187, 8-6-2007)

about:blank 3/3/2016
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11-10-2: USES:

A. Permitted uses:

Administrative buildings.

Adult uses (if in compliance with the requirements of chapter 15 of this title).
Assembly, with or without fabrication of parts.

Automobile body shops.

Beverage distribution.

Boat builder.

Bottling works.

Business machine manufacturing.

Carpet and rug cleaners.

Cartage, express and parcel delivery.

Clothing manufacturing.

Contractor's yard.

Electrical motor and generator manufacturing.

Electronic component manufacturing.

Fabrication, processing, production or manufacturing of materials, goods or products.
Freight warehousing and distribution.

Impound yard, subject to additional standards and criteria in subsection D2 of this
section.

Laboratories and research firms involved in the research, experimentation or testing of
materials, goods, or products.

Lumberyards.

Machine shops.
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Photo processing (nonretail).

Plastic processing.

Police headquarters and stations.

Pottery and ceramics manufacturing.

Printing, publishing or lithography establishments.
Public works buildings and facilities.

Recycling center.

Research and development laboratories.

Schools, commercial or trade, including those teaching business, commercial or
technical subjects.

Schools teaching dance, music, performance, and martial arts, subject to the additional
standards and criteria in subsection D1 of this section.

Sheet metal fabrication.

Village halls.

Wholesale and warehousing.

Woodworking and wood products manufacturing. (Ord. 2007-03-06A, 3-6-2007; amd.

Ord. 2007-08-21A, 8-21-2007; Ord. 2014-07-15, 7-15-2014; Ord. 2014-08-05E, 8-5-
2014)

B. Special uses:

Aerial lift sales, rental, and service.

Airport and heliports.

Bakeries, exceeding five thousand (5,000) square feet of building area.
Bottled gas dealer.

Brick and structural clay products manufacturing.

Chemical processing.

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/printnow.php 3/3/2016
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Concrete and clay works.

Dairy products processing.

Food manufacturing, packaging and processing.

Furniture display, sales, and repair.

Gymnasiums and health clubs.

Heavy machinery manufacturing.

Mining, loading and hauling of sand, gravel, topsoil or other aggregate or minerals,

including equipment, building or structure for screening, crushing, mixing, washing or
storage, provided that:

1. No open pit or shaft is less than three hundred feet (300") from any public road or
one hundred feet (100') from any side or rear property line.

2. All buildings or structures used for the crushing, washing, mixing or storage of
mined materials are located not less than two hundred feet (200') from any
property line.

3. A plan of development or the reclamation of the land is provided as part of the
application for special use. This plan of development shall be accompanied by a
written agreement between the owner or his agent and village and by a
performance bond in an amount equal to the cost of the reclamation of the land,
as set forth in the development plan.

Miniwarehouses, including watchman's quarters.

Paint and wallpaper manufacturing.

Paper products manufacturing.

Pharmaceutical and cosmetic manufacturing.

Planned developments.

Plastic manufacturing.

Public utility, governmental and service uses, including, but not limited to:

1. Essential services, including, fully automated gas regulating stations; telephone
exchanges; and electric substations.

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/printnow.php 3/3/2016
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2. Towers and antennas, commercial, for radio, television and telephone
transmitting, receiving or relay stations.

3. Wastewater treatment plant.

4. Waterworks, reservoirs, pumping stations, filtration plants and wells.

Radio, cellular and television towers.
Railroad yards.

Refuse company.

Stone products manufacturing.
Structural steel manufacturing.

Truck sales. (Ord. 2013-09-17A, 9-17-2013)

C. Permitted accessory uses: Please refer to section 11-4-7 of this title. (Ord. 2011-07-05B,
7-5-2011)

D. Additional standards and criteria for specific uses:
1. Schools Teaching Music, Dance, Performance, And Martial Arts:

a. Shall not be located in the same building or on the same lot with any use permitted
in the district that involves assembly, fabricating, production, processing or
manufacturing activities;

b. Performances on the premises shall not occur without the written approval of the
community development director. (Ord. 2014-07-15, 7-15-2014)

2. Impound Yard:
a. A principal building shall be located on the lot.

b. The towing service operator(s) utilizing the impound yard shall provide the village a
copy of the operator's valid registration with the lllinois commerce commission.

c. If proposed to be located on a lot owned by an entity other than the impound yard
operator, the impound yard operator shall provide the village with written
authorization from the property owner.

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/printnow.php 3/3/2016
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d. If proposed to be located on a lot with other uses, the impound yard operator shall
provide the village proof of notification to the other uses.

e. The impound yard shall not include vehicle repair or any salvage operations; may
include a towing service on site.

f. No vehicle shall be stored longer than one hundred eighty (180) days on site.

g. The impound yard operator shall have an independent and qualified consultant
perform an assessment and evaluation annually to determine that pollutants from
stored vehicles have not leaked into the soil or sewers, or if they have, that they

have been properly remediated.

h. The impound yard shall comply with the commercial outdoor storage requirements
in section 11-4-7 of this title.

i. The impound yard shall comply with the fence requirements in section 11-4-13 of this
title, with a minimum fence height of six feet (6'). (Ord. 2014-08-05E, 8-5-2014)

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/printnow.php 3/3/2016
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SECTION 9.00 - MANUFACTURING DISTRICTS

9.01

M-1

LIMITED MANUFACTURING DISTRICT

Conditions of Use. All permitted uses are subject to the following conditions:

1;

Any production, processing, cleaning, servicing, testing, repair or storage of
goods, materials or products shall conform with the performance standards set
forth in Section 9.03.

All business, production, servicing and processing shall take place within
completely enclosed buildings unless otherwise specified. Within one hundred
and fifty (150) feet of a Residence District, all storage shall be in completely
enclosed buildings or structures, and storage located elsewhere in this district may
be open to the sky but shall be enclosed by solid walls or fences, including solid
doors or gates thereto, at least eight (8) feet in height and suitably landscaped. If
items in storage exceed eight (8) feet in height, an applicant may submit to the
Plan Commission and the Village Board for a waiver to allow for fence in excess
of eight (8) feet, but not to exceed fifteen (15) feet in height. However, open off-
street loading facilities and open off-street parking of motor vehicles under one
and one-half (1'2) ton capacity may be unenclosed throughout the district, except
for such screening of parking and loading facilities as may be required under the
provisions of Section 12.00.

Uses established on the effective date of this amended Ordinance and by its
provisions are rendered non-conforming, shall be permitted to continue, subject to
the regulations of Section 5.00.

Uses established after the effective date of this amended Ordinance shall conform
fully to the Performance Standards hereinafter set forth for the district.

Permitted Uses. The following uses are permitted:

1.

Miscellaneous uses as follows:

a. Accessory uses.
b. Radio and television towers.
¢. Temporary buildings for construction purposes for a period not to exceed

the duration of such construction.
Off-street parking and loading as permitted or required in Section 12.00.

Production, Processing, Cleaning, Testing or Repair, limited to the following uses
and products:

a. Advertising displays.

9-1
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Apparel and other products manufactured from textiles.
Art needle work and hand weaving.

Automobile painting, upholstering, repairing, reconditioning and body and
fender repairing, when done within the confines of a structure.

Awnings, venetian blinds.
Bakeries.

Beverages.

Books — hand binding and tooling.
Bottling works.

Brushes and brooms.

Building equipment, building materials, lumber, coal, sand and gravel
yards, and yards for contracting of equipment of public agencies, or public
utilities, or materials or equipment of similar nature.

Cameras and other photographic equipment and supplies.
Canning and preserving,.

Canvas and canvas products.

Carpet and rug cleaning.

Carting, express hauling or storage yards.

Ceramic products, such as pottery and small glazed tile.

Cleaning and dyeing establishments when employing facilities for
handling more than fifteen hundred (1,500) pounds of dry goods per day.

Clothing.

Cosmetics and toiletries.
Creameries and dairies.
Dentures.

Drugs.

Electrical appliances, such as lighting fixtures, irons, fans, toasters and
electric toys.

Electrical equipment assembly, such as home radio and television
receivers and home movie equipment, but not including electrical
machinery.
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Electrical supplies, manufacturing and assembly of such wire and cable
assembly, switches, lamps, insulation, and dry cell batteries.

Food products, processing and combining of (except meat and fish)
baking, boiling, canning, cooking, dehydrating, freezing, frying, grinding,
mixing and pressing.

Fur goods, not including tanning and dyeing.

Glass products from previously manufactured glass.
Hat bodies of fur and wool felt.

Hosiery.

House trailers, manufacture.

Ice, natural.

Ink mixing and packaging and inked ribbons.
Jewelry.

Laboratories; medical, dental, research, experimental, and testing,
provided there is no danger from fire or explosion nor offensive noise,
vibration, smoke, dust, odors, heat, glare, or other objectionable
influences.

Laundries.

Leather products, including shoes and machine belting, but not including
tanning and dyeing.

Luggage.
Machine shops for tool, die, and pattern making.

Metal finishing, plating, grinding, sharpening, polishing, cleaning, rust
proofing and heat treatment.

Metal stamping and extrusion of small products, such as costume jewelry,
pins and needles, razor blades, bottle caps, buttons and kitchen utensils.

Musical instruments.

Orthopedic and medical appliances, such as artificial limbs, braces,
supports and stretchers.

Paper products, small, such as envelopes and stationery, bags, boxes, tubes
and wallpaper printing.

Perfumes and cosmetics.
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Pharmaceutical products.
Plastic products, but not including the processing of the raw materials.
Precision instruments, such as optical, medical and drafting.

Products from finished materials; plastic, bone, cork, feathers, felt, fiber,
copper, fur, glass, hair, horn, leather, precious and semi-precious stones,
rubber, shell or yamn.

Printing and newspaper publishing, including engraving, photoengraving.

Public utility electric substations and distribution centers, gas regulation
centers and underground gas holder stations.

Repair of household or office machinery or equipment.

Rubber products, small, and synthetic treated fabrics (excluding all rubber
and synthetic processing), such as washers, gloves, footwear, bathing caps
and atomizers.

Signs, as regulated by Section 11.00.
Silverware, plate and sterling.

Soap and detergents, packaging only.
Soldering and welding.

Sporting and athletic equipment, such as balls, baskets, cues, gloves, bats,
racquets, and rods.

Statuary, mannequins, figurines and religious and church art goods,
excluding foundry operations.

Storage of household goods.

Storage and sale of trailers, farm implements and other similar equipment
on an open lot.

Storage of flammable liquids, fats or oil in tanks each of fifteen thousand
(15,000) gallons or less capacity, but only after the locations and
protective measures have been approved by local governing officials.

Textiles; spinning, weaving, manufacturing, dyeing, printing, knit goods,
yarn, thread, and cordage, but not including textile bleaching.

Tool and die shops.

Tools and hardware, such as bolts, nuts and screws, doorknobs, drills,
hand tools and cutlery, hinges, house hardware, locks, non-ferrous metal
castings and plumbing appliances.
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Toys.

Truck, truck tractor, truck trailer, car trailer, or bus storage yard, when all
equipment is in operable condition, but not including a truck or motor
freight terminal, which are treated under Section 9.02.

Umbrellas.

Upholstering (bulk), including mattress manufacturing, rebuilding, and
renovating.

Vehicles, children’s; such as bicycles, scooters, wagons and baby
carriages.

Watches.

Wood products, such as furniture, boxes, crates, baskets, and pencils and
cooperage works.

Any other manufacturing establishment that can be operated in
compliance with the Performance Standards of Section 9.03 without
creating objectionable noise, odor, dust, smoke, gas, fumes, or vapor; and
that is a use compatible with the use and occupancy of adjoining
properties.

Professional and Business Offices.

Public and Community Service Uses as follows:

a.

5w

[

—

Bus terminals, bus garages, bus lots, street railway terminals, or street car
houses.

Electric substations.

Fire stations.

Municipal or privately owned recreation buildings or community centers.
Parks and recreation areas.

Police stations.

Sewage treatment plants.

Telephone exchanges.

Water filtration plants.

Water pumping stations.

Water reservoirs.
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6. Retail and services as follows:

a.

Automobile service station for the retail sale of gasoline and oil for motor
vehicles, and for minor services which may be conducted out of doors.

Contractor or construction such as building, cement, electrical,
refrigeration, masonry, plumbing, roofing, air conditioning, heating and
ventilating, fuel oil, with a storage of fuel oils, gas and other flammable
products limited to twelve thousand (12,000) gallons per tank, with a total
storage on zoning lots not to exceed fifty thousand (50,000) gallons.

Health Clubs and Spas provided the property provides the adequate
number of parking spaces per Section 12.00 of this Code.

(Ord. 12-57, 9/7/2012)

. Wholesaling and Warehousing. Local cartage express facilities (but not including motor

freight terminals).

. Leasing or renting of real estate, household goods or office products.

. Leasing commercial, industrial machinery, and equipment.

Special Uses. The following uses may be allowed by Special Use Permit in accordance
with the provisions of Section 13.08.

I Adult uses.

a.

Additional Buffers. A 0.3 opacity bufferyard with a minimum twenty (20)
feet width shall be provided on all lot sides.

Separation.

i The use shall be a minimum of one thousand seven hundred sixty
(1,760) feet from any place of worship, school, or daycare center.

il. The use shall be a minimum of one thousand seven hundred sixty
(1,760) feet from any residential zoning district.

iii. The use shall be a minimum of one hundred fifty (150) feet from
any zoning district other than M-1 or M-2.

Spacing. The minimum spacing between adult uses shall be on (1) mile.
Lot Size. The use shall be minimum one (1) acre.

Access. The use shall take access from an interior street in the
manufacturing development not from an exterior roadway.

Signage. In height and shall have an area of no more than sixty (60)
percent of the district standard. At the entrance to the building a notice
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shall be posted indicating that this is an adult use which may involve
activities or materials that do not meet community decency standards.

g. Alcohol. Adult uses shall not serve alcohol or allow the consumption of
alcohol anywhere on the property.

Airport or aircraft landing fields.

Any use permitted in the B-3 Business District, provided the Performance
Standards of Section 9.03 can be met in their entirety.

Any use which may be allowed as a Special Use in the B-3 Business District, but
not including house trailer (mobile homes) camps or parks.

Body Piercing establishments.
Motor freight terminals.

Pet Boarding.

Planned Developments, industrial.
Power Generating Facilities.

a. Purpose and Intent. It is the purpose and intent of this Section to protect
and preserve the health safety, and welfare of the Village by regulating
power generating facilities, as defined in Section 3.02 of this Ordinance,
within the Village.

b. General Standards.

1. A separate Special Use Permit, including an approved site
development plan, must be issued for each power generating
facility, as defined in Section 3.02 of the Oswego Zoning
Ordinance, which is proposed to be located within the Village.

il. A petition submitted for approval of a power generating facility
Special Use Permit shall include but is not limited to, the following
information:

a) The name and address of the record owner of the subject
property;

b) The name and address of the firm proposing to construct
and/or operate the facility;

c) A legal description and survey of the subject property
prepared by an Illinois Licensed Surveyor;
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d)

g)

h)

A location map depicting the location of the subject
property and the area surrounding it for a distance of /2
mile;

Detailed information regarding soil type, vegetation,
wetlands, floodplain, ground water features, topography of
undeveloped land, and other natural resource features
present on and within 200 feet of the subject property;

A detailed site development plan depicting how the
property will be developed with the facility, including the
location of proposed buildings and structure, setback
distances for proposed buildings and structures, and lot
coverage;

Architectural renderings depicting the proposed appearance
of the facility, including length, width, and height of
proposed structures; and

Detailed information regarding the environmental impact of
the facility on the subject site and adjacent land parcel,
including information pertaining to noise, and the pollution
of air, soil, and ground water (This information should
include a Permit application, an air dispersion modeling
study for NOx, CO, SO2PM, and VOMS; a noise study
including existing ambient noise levels for the site, and a
detailed noise abatement plan).

Criteria and factors used by the Plan Commission and Village
Board to determine the appropriateness of the power generating
facility Special Use Permit and whether to approve it, shall consist
of, but not be limited to, the following:

a)

b)

c)

d)

The compatibility of the proposed facility with existing
zoning land use in the surrounding area.

The impact of the facility on adjoined land uses and the
property value of adjoining lands.

The impact of the facility on the owner of the subject site
and the ability to use said site.

The impact of the facility on the area transportation
systems and infrastructure, including the ability to be
served by local utilities.

The need for increased building setbacks based on the
height of the facility and surrounding zoning and land use.

9-8
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2)

h)

»

k)

)

m)

The need to buffer and/or screen adjoining uses from the
facility.

Whether pollution generated by the proposed use creates
health, safety, and nuisance risks.

Days and hours of operation of the facility and whether the
use operates on a year-round or seasonal basis.

The means of access to the facility, including easements
and/or ownership of land necessary to operate said facility.

The availability of alternative sites within and around the
Village for a facility and whether a public and /or
community need is met by it.

Location of the proposed facility relative to supportive
services and facilities, including but not limited to natural
gas lines and electric transmission lines, and its ability to
utilize underground utility lines for support purposes.

The noise impact from the proposed facility experienced on
surrounding properties and land uses.

The visual impact of the proposed power generating
facility, when considered in the context of the surrounding
properties.

iv. The individual and relative weight to be accorded each of these
criteria and factors listed in Section 9.01C above may vary
depending upon the facts presented in each petition and it shall be
the province of the Plan Commission to make that determination in
each case.

10. Sanitary land fills.

11. Stadiums, auditoriums and arenas.

12. Tattoo establishments.

Yard Areas. No building or structure shall hereafter be erected or structurally altered
unless the following yards are provided and maintained in connection with such building.

1. Front Yard. On every zoning lot a front yard of not less than twenty-five (25) feet
in depth shall be provided. However, where lots within the same block and
comprising forty (40) percent of the frontage on the same street are already
developed on the effective date of this Ordinance with front yards with an average
depth of less than twenty-five (25) feet, then such average depth shall be the
required front yard depth for such frontage in said block.
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2. Side Yards. On every zoning lot a side yard shall be provided along each side lot
line. Each side yard shall be not less in width than ten (10) percent of the lot
width, but need not exceed twenty (20) feet in width.

% Rear Yard. On every zoning lot a rear yard shall be provided and maintained of
not less than twenty (20) feet in depth, except that the inner ten (10) feet may be
used for off-street parking.

Lot Coverage. Not more than sixty (60) percent of the area of a lot may be covered by
buildings or structures, including accessory buildings.

Floor Area Ratio. Not more than 0.8.
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COMMUNITY SERVICE AND WHOLESALE DISTRICT

Permitted Uses

1.

R

10.
11.
12
13.
14.
13
16.
17.
18.
19

20.
21,

Any use permitted in the B-1 Neighborhood Business District and in the B-2
Community Shopping District.

Agricultural implement sales and services when conducted wholly within an
enclosed building.

Air conditioning and heating sales and service.
Animal hospitals and veterinarian offices.
Art galleries and studios.

Automobile sales and service, but not including automobile body repair and
rebuilding, or painting of automobiles.

Automobiles and truck (under one and one-half (1'2) ton capacity) minor motor
repair and service shops, but not including body repair and rebuilding or painting.

Automobile service stations.

Battery and tire service stations.

Beverage, non-alcoholic, bottling and distributing.

Bicycle and motorcycle sales and repair.

Billiard and pool rooms, bowling alleys, dance halls and gymnasiums.
Blueprinting and Photostatting establishments.

Boat showrooms.

Book binding.

Building materials sales, when conducted wholly within a building.
Catering establishments.

Clubs and fraternal organizations.

Contractors’ offices and shops where no fabricating is done on the premises and
where all storage of material is within a building.

Costume rental shops.

Dwelling units provided they are located above the first floor and above a
permitted business use. Dwelling units shall not be permitted on the ground floor
of a business or in the rear of business buildings or in the rear of business
establishments on the ground floor.
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22,
23,
24,
25.

26.
27.
28.
29,

30.

31.
32,
33,

34.
35.
36.
3k

38.
39,
40.
41,
}g/ 42,
43,
44,
45,
46.

VILLAGE OF OSWEGO ZONING ORDINANCE

Employment agencies.
Exterminating shops.
Feed and seed stores, wholesale.

Garages, public, for storage of private passenger automobiles and commercial
vehicles under one and one half (1 '2) ton capacity.

Glass cutting and glazing establishments.
Greenhouse, wholesale growers.
Household appliance repair shops.

Laboratories, commercial (medical, dental, research, experimental and testing),
provided no production or manufacturing of products takes place).

Orthopedic and medical appliance stores, but not including the assembly or
manufacturing of such articles.

Parcel delivery station.
Pawn shops.

Pet shops, kennels or animal hospitals when conducted wholly within an enclosed
building.

Photograph developing and processing.
Plumbing showrooms, heating and roofing supply shops.
Poultry and rabbit killing for retail sale on premises only.

Printing, publishing and issuing of newspapers, periodicals, books, stationery and
other reading matter.

Public auction rooms.

Radio and television broadcasting stations.
Restaurants; drive-in, car service.

Riding academics.

Schools; music, dance, business, commercial or trade.
Second-hand stores and rummage shops.

Silver plating and repair shops.

Smoking and processing of meat products.

Taverns.
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47.
48.
49.

50.
51.

VILLAGE OF OSWEGO ZONING ORDINANCE

Theatres, indoor.
Undertaking establishments.

Wholesale business, excluding a building, the principal use of which is for a
storage warehouse.

Leasing or renting of real estate, household goods or office products.

Leasing commercial, industrial machinery, and equipment.

Special Uses

1
2.

© 0 =y kW

10.
11.

Other uses similar to the above permitted uses.

Amusement establishments; bowling alleys, billiard parlors, gymnasiums, ice
skating rinks, swimming pools, clubs and recreation centers containing one or
more of the above uses.

Automobile laundries.

Cigar, cigarette and/or tobacco stores.

Day care center

Garages, public including painting, body and fender work and motor rebuilding.
Liquor store, packaged goods only.

Open sales lots.

Outdoor Entertainment, including but not limited to, live performances by groups
and/or individuals, karaoke, etc. A Special Use Permit shall be established when
a business has more than four (4) separate occurrences in any twelve (12) month
period, and each occurrence shall not exceed four (4) consecutive days.

Public utility and governmental service uses.

Processing or assembly limited to the following, provided that space occupied in a
building does not exceed six thousand (6,000) square feet of total floor and
basement space, not including stairwells, or elevator shafts; and provided such
processing or assembly can be conducted without noise, vibration, odor, dust or
any other condition which might be disturbing to occupants of adjacent buildings.
When manufacturing operations of the same or similar products demand space
exceeding six thousand (6,000) square feet, they shall then be located in the M-1
Limited Manufacturing District:

a. Advertising displays.
b. Awnings, Venetian blinds and window shades.

(] Bakeries, wholesale.
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12.
13,

VILLAGE OF OSWEGO ZONING ORDINANCE

d. Brushes and brooms.
e Cosmetics, drugs and perfumes.
f. Electrical equipment appliances.

Food processing, packaging and distribution.

Jewelry.
i. Medical and dental supplies.
J- Optical goods and equipment.
k. Pattern-making.
1. Products from finished materials such as bond, plastic, cloth, cork,

feathers, felt, fiber, paper, fur, glass, hair, horn leather, precious
or semi-precious stone, rubber, shell or yarn.

m. Scientific and precision instruments.
Radio and television towers, receiving and transmitting.

Accessory uses to the above conditional uses including, but not limited to: off-
street parking and off-street loading as regulated in Section 12.00.

Yards. Same as required in the B-1 Neighborhood Business District.

Floor Area Ratio. Not to exceed 1.5.

Off-Street Parking and Loading. Off-street parking and loading facilities shall be
provided as required or permitted in Section 12.00.
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11.02 MANUFACTURING ZONING STANDARDS, BULK REGULATIONS AND USE TABLES

Zoning Standards and Bulk Regulations Table

Zoning | Front Yard Side/ Corner Rear Yard | Transitional | Floor Maximum
District | Setback* Side Yard Setback*® | Yard Area Building
Setback* Setback*+ Ratio Height
M-I Min 25 ft Min 10% of lot Min 20 ft | Min 30 ft 1.5 45 fot*
width but no
greater than 20
ft/ 25 ft
M-2 Min 25 ft Min 10% of lot Min20ft | Min 30 ft 3.0 45 for*
width but no
greater than 20
f/ 25 ft

*All yard setbacks shall be landscaped and meet the Village's landscaping requirements except that curb
cuts/drive entrances are permitted from the street and between lots for cross access. Parking/pavement
areas and structures are prohibited in all yard setbacks except that the inner ten feet of the rear yard

setback can be used for parking.

+A Transitional Yard shall be defined as a yard that abuts a residential use at the time of plan review and

approval.

**Table of Maximum Building Height Restrictions in Manufacturing Districts.

Zoning District

Within 500 feet of a

Beyond 500 feet of a

Residential or Commercial
zoned parcel (setback
measured at the base of the

Residential or Commercial
zoned parcel (setback
measured at the base of

structure) the structure)
M-1 45 feet 65 feet
M-2 45 feet 100 feet, for buildings

higher than 100 feet the
setback is 500 feet plus two
(2) feet per each one (1)
foot above 100 feet.

OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING FACILITIES. Off-street parking and loading facilities shall be

provided as permitted or required in Section 13.00.

PERMITTED & SPECIAL USES.

Permitted, Special and Prohibited Use Table
P=Permitted Use

S=Special Use

X=Prohibited Use

Land Use Types

Accessory Uses

Agricultural Uses

Distribution Uses

Drive Through/In Establishment

Entertainment Uses

Adult Business Uses — subject to Montgomery Code of

Xl X|wn|w|o

wn| X[ X|wn|wl o
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Ordinances

Finance Service P X
Currency Exchanges X X
Food Sales X X
Ground Mounted Solar Energy Systems in accordance with Section P P
4.06(11)
Health Services P X
Tattoo Parlor P X
Manufacturing Uses P P
Concrete or Asphalt Batching Plants including mining, loading X S
and hauling of sand, gravel, topsoil or other aggregate
Fuel manufacturing/production/storage/sales X S
Food Processing P P
Miscellaneous X X
Construction Trailer — temporary during construction P P
Distribution Uses (Distribution Uses are Permitted Uses, P P

except a Distribution Use shall be a Special Use when
access to the proposed site is through an area zoned
residential.)

(S if access is
through
Residential)

(S if access is
through
Residential)

Sanitary Landfill/Vaste Transfer Station/Recycling Facility

Sewage Treatment Plants (permitted as an accessory use)

Sewage Pre-Treatment System

Motor Vehicle Service

Gas Station

v ool vl wn

Office Uses

u| | v v X| X

-3

Outdoor Sales accessory to principle use

Outdoor Use/Service accessory to principle use

Alternative Surfaces

v
+*

[%2]
*

Outdoor Storage accessory to principle use

L ¥ nluv

WV ¥ v

Alternative Surfaces

v
¥

Outdoor Sales/Use/Service/Storage (Principle Use)

[75]

w4
*

Alternative Surfaces

w
*
*

Gk

Personal & Business Services

Planned Unit Development

Private Schools and Universities

Private Utilities

Public Uses

Large Active Park

Recreation, Commercial

Religious Use/Service

Residential Uses

Retail Sales

Pawnbroker

Sign: Off Premises/Billboard (subject to the requirements below in
note d.)

| | vl X| X| v BB X o

Transportation Services

-

Utility Scale Solar Energy Systems in accordance with Section
4.06(11)

w

X XX X|X|X|wn w»v oo X|wn X

Woarehouse Uses

P
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Self Service Storage Warehouse S

S
Wholesale Establishment P P

Fuel Sales S S

* Where a given use can fit in more than one category, the more specific category shall regulate and
control said use.

** A special use for Alternative Surfaces may only be granted in conjunction with a special use for the
category that it is a subset of.

Standards:

Outdoor storage areas for materials, products, and equipment that are not vehicles or piece of
equipment offered for sale shall comply with the following requirements:

The owner or operator is required to submit a detailed plan describing the intended
purpose of the use. This plan shall include but is not limited to the following: type and
weight of vehicles, items to be stored on the surface, average daily vehicle trips conducted
on the surface, other operations conducted on the site and dust mitigation activities.

Storage spaces or areas, drives and aisles shall be constructed of a minimum of 10 inches of
material uniformly compacted to a minimum of ninety-five (95) percent standard proctor
density or methods approved by the Village Engineer. Specified material shall be approved
by the Village Engineer. Additional material depth may be required based on the use of the
site subject to Village Engineer approval.

The owner or operator is required to engage in periodic dust control measures, including
treating the alternative surface with calcium chloride on an as needed basis.

The owner or operator shall provide the Village an access easement over all areas utilizing
an alternative surface pursuant to these provisions. In accordance with said easement, the
Village will conduct periodic reviews of the site’s dust control and to perform any mitigation
actions it deems necessary. Prior to engaging in site remediation, the Village will provide the
owner or operator with written notice identifying the violation and the owner or operator
will be afforded seventy-two (72) hours to resolve. To the extent that the owner or
operator fails to adequately address said violation to the satisfaction of the Village, thereby
requiring Village to remediate said nuisance, the Village will deduct all applicable funds from
the owner or operator’s deposit. The owner or operator will be required to replenish said
deposit within fifteen (15) days of receiving notice so that the account remains its proper
balance of $5,000.00.

The alternative surface cannot be located closer than 250 feet from a public right of way.

The alternative surface cannot be located closer than 250 feet from commercial or
residential zoned property.

The alternative surface shall be maintained by the owner or operator to the satisfaction of
the Director of the Community Development Department or other designee of the Village
Administrator, including re-grading or restoration as needed due to traffic use, or storm
related degradation. In the event that the alternative surface material degrades to a point
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that increases the nuisance occurrences the material shall be removed and replaced with
fresh material.

New Compatible Uses:

The Director of Community Development, or appointed designee, may allow a land use to be
considered as a permitted or special use which, though not identified by name in a zoning
district list of permitted or special uses, is deemed to be similar in nature, and clearly compatible
with the listed uses. The officer shall consult the North American Industry Classification System
(NAICS) to determine similarity or compatibility. However, such non-listed uses shall not be
approved until the application for such use has been reviewed by the village attorney.

Addition of Non-listed Uses to Zoning Ordinance:

All non-listed uses that may be approved may be added to the appropriate use list at the time of
periodic updating and revision. The officer shall, upon approving a use not specifically listed in
this title, notify the planning commission and village board of trustees.

Adult Business Uses Restrictions:
Dispersion restriction:
No regulated use hereunder shall be located within 1000 feet of any other such use.

Location restriction:

No regulated use shall be permitted to operate on a parcel of land of which any portion of that
parcel falls within three hundred feet (300’) of the right-of-way line of Route 30, Route 31, and
Orchard Road.

The structure in which is located any regulated use hereunder shall be located at least 1100 feet
from the nearest property line of any land in any residential zone, or of any public, private or
parochial school, park, playground, or church, convent, monastery, synagogue or similar place of
worship, in any other zone.

However, the prohibition of this section shall be specially waived in any particular case upon the
presentment to the village clerk and verification of a validated petition requesting such waiver
signed by 51 percent of those persons owning real property, or otherwise residing or operating
a business, within 1100 feet of the proposed location of the regulated use hereunder.

Sign: Off Premises/Billboard must meet the following requirements:

1) must be within 100 feet of an on/off ramp leaving a limited access highway owned or
controlled by the State of lllinois or The United States of America (roads or highways
owned or controlled by a County, Township or Municipality do not satisfy this provision),
an

2) Must be more than 950 feet away from any property zoning Residential (R) District, and
3) Must be a non-electronic static sign (the sign is allowed to be illuminated in a manner that

does not impair automobile driver’s vision or is broadcasted toward residential structures),
and
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4) Must be separated from any other Off Premises/Billboard sign by at least 1,000 feet that is
within the Village jurisdiction and is on the same side of the right of way that the proposed
sign is on, and

5) Overall Size: Max 300 sq ft. and Minimum 200 sq. ft, and
6) Overall Height: Max 35 ft., and

7) Max. Allowable Surface Display Area: 300 sq. ft.

11.03 ADDITIONAL LAND USE DEFINITIONS

I. The definitions below are intended to provide an understanding and scope of each
general land use category listed above. The definitions are not all inclusive and the zoning
enforcement officer has the discretion to review and deny a use if in their opinion it does
not meet the intent of the definition.

a. Alternative Surfaces: Acceptable alternative surfaces that will be considered are
Crushed Limestone Aggregate meeting the IDOT standard gradation CA-1 or CA-7.
Other materials may be considered for use as alternative surfaces subject to Village
engineer approval.

b. Agricultural Uses: Any use which includes farming, plowing, tillage, cropping, installation
of best management practices, seeding, cultivating, or harvesting for the production of
food and fiber products such as fruits, vegetables, grains, trees, sod, landscape plants
etc. This uses excludes animal husbandry, the use of animals for production of food or
fiber products, grazing and raising of livestock or any other use involving animals.

c. Distribution Uses: A building, structure, parcel of land, or portion therefore in which:
I) freight is shipped by airplane, motor truck or railroad: or 2) freight is received,
assembled, sorted and/or rerouted for local, intrastate, or interstate shipment.

d. Drive Through/In Establishment: An establishment or part thereof in which patrons
order commodities or process transactions at a window or electronic device used for
communication or are served while still in their vehicles (for example, fast food
restaurants, banks, pharmacies etc.).

e. Entertainment Uses: An establishment which provides indoor entertainment on site
(for example, bowling alley, arcades, skate rinks, clubs etc).

f.  Financial Services: An establishment which provides financial services (for example,
banks, credit unions, savings and loans, etc.).

g Food Sales: Any food service use that sells or serves foodstuff articles directly to
patrons on site or off site for human consumption (for example, restaurant, grocery
store, alcoholic beverages, etc). This excludes off-site catering services and
manufacturing and distribution facilities of food products.
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h. Health Services: An establishment that provides health care services to people, not
animals (for example, hospitals, emergency rooms, clinics, doctor offices, etc.).

. Tattoo Parlor: An Establishment whose principal business activity, either in
terms of operation or as held out to the public, is the practice of placing
designs, letters, figures, symbols, or other marks upon or under the skin of any
person , using ink or other substances that result in the permanent coloration of
the skin by means of the use of needles of other instruments designed to
contact or puncture the skin.

i. Manufacturing Use: Any manufacturing use or process including assembling, fabricating,
altering, converting, finishing, processing, treating and packaging, except any use or
process hereinafter specifically excluded, and providing that such use will not be
hazardous, offensive or objectionable by reason of odor, dust, cinders, gas, fumes, noise,
vibrations, radiation, refuse matter or water-carried waste.

. Food Processing: The preparation, processing, or canning and packaging of food
products. Examples of activities included are bakeries and meat, poultry, and
seafood canning curing and byproduct processing (not including facilities that
also slaughter animals).

j. Motor Vehicle Service/Gas Station: An establishment that services, sells, buys, trades or
rents motor vehicles on site (for example, gas station, service of oil, brakes, tires,
mufflers, transmissions, body shops, car sales/rental, car washes, etc.). All vehicles
under service by a body shop shall be kept indoors at all times.

k. Office/Service Uses: An establishment that uses space for conducting the affairs of a
business, profession, service industry or government.

I.  Outdoor Sales/Service/Use: Any use that has outdoor sales or service/processing areas
or any use that is not fully enclosed within a building on site and is accessory to the
principle use on site.

ii. Outdoor Sales/Use/Service/Storage as a Principle Use: Any use which the primary
purpose is to sell, use, service, and/or store products or activities outdoors, without
any other principle use.

m. Outdoor Storage: An establishment that stores products or goods outdoors on site
and is accessory to the principle use; this excludes vehicles used as part of the business
operation (for example, dump trucks, backhoes, bulldozers etc.).

n. Personal & Business Services: An establishment that provides services to consumers
(for example, insurance, salon, attorney, veterinarian, teaching facilities for trades,
gymnastics, martial arts etc., consulting and contracting firms etc.).

o. Planned Unit Development: As defined in Section 3.02.
p. Private Schools and Universities: Any school or teaching institution that is not an lllinois

public school as defined under lllinois State law (for example, parochial schools, private
universities, excluding businesses teaching martial arts, ballot, gymnastics, trades etc.).
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Private Utilities: Facilities or their apparatus that provide transmission, transfer, and
distribution of utility services that are owned and operated by non-public entities (for
example, ComEd electrical substation, Nicor gas utility, AT&T phone utility, Comcast
cable utility, radio, cellular and television towers etc.).

Public Uses: Any local, state, or federal agency, office or service (for example, Village
Hall, Police Station, Fire Station, Library, Post Office, Public School, public utility etc.).

Recreation, Commercial: Any commercial enterprise which receives a fee in return for
the provision of some recreational activity including but not limited to: indoor and
outdoor athletic training facilities, paintball courses, and batting cages, but not including
entertainment uses.

Religious Use/Service: An establishment that provides religious or spiritual services for
worship and congregation including administrative offices and other meeting rooms (for
example, churches, parishes, rectories, temples, etc.).

Residential Uses: An establishment that permit persons on premises to sleep on site or
use as a permanent or semi-permanent residence (for example, apartment, loft, condo,
nursing home, bed & breakfast, etc.).

Retail Sales: An establishment that sells or rents goods and commodities to consumers
(for example, clothing, pharmacy, home goods etc.).

Sewage Pre-Treatment System: A system that reduces, eliminates or alters the nature
or amount of pollutants or its properties prior to or in lieu of introducing such
pollutants into the Publically Owned Treatment Works (POTW). This reduction or
alteration can be obtained by physical, chemical or biological processes; by process
changes; or by other means, except by diluting the concentration of the pollutants
unless allowed by an applicable pretreatment standard.

Transportation Service: An establishment that offers transportation services directly to
the consumer (for example, livery, taxi, limousine, bus, train, ambulance etc.).

Warehouse Uses: Any use which stores manufactured goods and products in
completely enclosed buildings; this excludes self-service storage warehouses/facilities.

Wholesale Establishment: An establishment or business that primarily engages in selling
and/or distributing merchandise to retailers, industrial, commercial, institutional, or
professional business users or to other wholesalers or acting as agents or brokers and
buying merchandise for, or selling merchandise to, such individual or companies; sales to
individual consumers is permitted but should not be the primary use of the business.
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Plainfield, IL. Code of Ordinances

Sec. 9-13. - Uses.

Page 1 of 5

(1) Table of permitted and special uses. Table II-1 (Permitted and Special Uses in All Zoning Districts) of this article lists the uses that are permitted as-of-right, by special uses
approval, and by revocable permit approval for each zoning district. The table is divided by general land use categories (e.g., residential, commercial). These general
land use categories are subdivided into groups of similar land uses (e.g., eating and drinking establishments) and these groups are subdivided into the specific land

uses (e.g., the eating and drinking establishment group lists café, restaurant, and tavern).

(2) Permitted uses, Uses identified with a "P" in Table II-1 are permitted as of right in the subject district, provided the uses comply with all other applicable standards of this
ordinance. No building or parcel of land shall be devoted to any use other than a use permitted in the zoning district in which it is located, except for:

a. Uses lawfully established prior to the effective date of this zoning ordinance in accordance with Article XIl, Nonconformities, of this ordinance.
b. Special uses allowed in accordance with section 9-37, Special uses, and paragraph (2) of this section.

¢ Uses permitted by revocable permit in accordance with section 9-61(9)(g), Standards for the B Districts, and paragraph (2) of this section,
(3) Special uses. Uses identified with an "S" in Table II-1 are considered special uses and may be permitted in the subject district only after review and approval in
accordance with_section 9-37, Special Uses, of this Ordinance.
(4) Uses permitted by revocable permit. Uses identified with an "R" in Table 1I-1 may be permitted in the subject district only after review and approval in accordance with
section 9-61(9)(g), Standards for the B Districts, of this ordinance.
(5) Prohibited uses. Uses identified with a "-" in Table II-1 are expressly prohibited in the subject district. Uses that are not listed may also be prohibited; determination of

whether an unlisted use may be permitted shall be made by the village planner in accordance with section 9-25, Interpretation.

(6) Notes. A note within a cell in the table, e.g., "(1)", indicated that the use may be allowed under certain conditions. The explanation or reference is found at the bottom of

the table,

Use Category

RESIDENTIAL

Household living

Single-family dwelling

Duplex
Townhouse

Multi-family dwelling

Group living

Assisted living facility
Group home
Nursing home

Transitional shelter

Group living not otherwise classified

COMMERCIAL
Adult use
Animal services

Animal grooming sales and service

‘ Animal hospital/veterinarian
‘ Animal shelter/kennel
Artist studio
Auction house
Bakery, retail
Building maintenance service

Business support service

about:blank

Table 11, Permitted and Special Uses in All Zoning Districts
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Plainfield, IL Code of Ordinances Page 2 of 5

Communications sales and service P P P

Construction sales and service

I Building material sales P

‘ Construction/contractor storage yard P P P
Drive-through facility & S S
Dry cleaning, laundry pickup, and plant S P P P
serving not more than one retail outlet
Dry cleaning plant serving more than one 5 P P
retail outlet

Eating and drinking establishments

Brew-pub p P P
Microbrewery P P P

Cafe, coffee shop, soda fountain S P P P S

Restaurant p P P S

Specialty food shop/carry-out p [ p S
Tavern p p p

Entertainment and recreation

Arcade, amusement, billiard/pool hall P S
Camp, day or youth S S
Health club P S P
Recreation facility, private 5 S S S S S S S S P S S
Stable S S S P P
Theater S P S

Financial services

Bank, credit union, savings and loan S P P =]

Brokerage or financial advising P P P
Currency exchange p

Flea market S P S

Food and beverage retail sales

Convenience store ) S P P

Grocery store S P P P

Liquor store (package goods) S P P

Liquor store (as accessory use) S S P P
Supermarket P

Funeral and internment services

Cemetery S S ) S 5 S S S S
Cremating 5 P P
Funeral home or undertaking S LY P S
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Plainfield, IL Code of Ordinances

Page 3 of 5

Garden center p
Home occupations 2) (2) (2) (2) 2) (2) (2) (2)
Lodging
Bed and breakfast S S S S S S S S S
Campground
Hotel/motel p
Youth hostel S
Medical clinic or service, massage therapy S P
Newspaper printing presses P
Office (except as more specifically regulated)
| GFA less than/equal to 10,000 sq. ft. S P
GFA over 10,000 sq. ft. P
Outdoor sales display (except as otherwise S
permitted, see section 9-61)
Qutdoor uses within public right-of-way
Parking
Garage as principle use P
Non-accessory parking lot P P
Personal services
Barber shop/hair salon ) P
Beauty, nail, or tanning salon S P
Body art service P
Fertune telling service P
Repair service, consumer P
Retail sales and service (except as more
specifically regulated)
GFA less than 15,000 sq. ft. S p
GFA 15,000—24,999 sq. ft. P
GFA 25,000 or more sq. ft. P
Services, consumer
Car and light truck rental P
Car wash P
Catering P
Laundromat 5 P
Taxidermist P
Service station, automotive P
Vehicle sales and service
Auto body and/or repair l S ‘
about:blank 3/3/2016
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Auto supply or auto accessory

Page 4 of 5

Auto/light truck sales and service
Boat/RV sales, service or storage
Heavy equipment sales or service

Motorcycle sales or service

Vehicle storage and towing
Wholesale establishments
INDUSTRIAL
Asphalt plant
Brewery
Concrete plant—Indoor
Concrete plant—Outdoor
Hazardous material storage/disposal
Incinerator
Industry and manufacturing

Light

Medium

Heavy
Junk/salvage yard
Recycling facility

Warehouse, storage, and freight
transportation

Freight terminal, truck
Freight terminal, rail or intermodel
Moving and storage
Outdoor storage, contained material

Outdoor storage, uncontained raw
materials

Self-storage facilities

Warehouse

PUBLIC, CIVIC, EDUCATIONAL, OTHER
Agriculture
Dairy farm including processing

Farming on lot 40 or more acres

0.5—40 acres
Farm stand
Feedlot

Grain storage

about:blank

Farming, field and garden crops, less than
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Greenhouse, commercial P P P P
Hatchery, poultry P
Roadside market P P
Child care facilities
Child care facility other than day care 5 S S S S ) S S P ) P
home and foster home
Preschool S S S S S S S S P S P
Day care home and foster home P P P P P P P P P P P P
Community center S S S ) S S S S P P P
Donation box(es) 3 3|6 3| 3
Educational facility
College and university S S S S
School, kindergarten thru high school S S S S S S S 5 S S
Trade school, music school, dance school S S P S
Heliport S S S 5 S 5
Hospital S S
Library ) 5 5 5 S S S S 5 S S
Lodge, fraternal and civic assembly S P P S
Parks and playgrounds P P P P P P p P P P P
Police and fire stations 5 S S S S S 5 S P P P P P
Postal service S S S S 5 8 S S S S S S 5
Planned development S S 5 S S S S S S S S S S S
Religious use
Religious assembly S S ) ) S S S S S 5 5 S S
Religious institution S S S S S S S
Utilities
As part of subdivision plat P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Not as part of subdivision plat ) S S S S S S S S S S S P P S
Cannabis
Cannabis dispensaries S S S
Cannabis cultivation centers S S
Notes:

(1) Only if an accessory use to agriculture.
(2) Permitted, subject to provisions of section 9-19,
(3) Permitted, subject to provisions of section 9-16(8).

(Ord. No. 2848, § 1, 3-16-09; Ord. No. 3165, § 2(Exh.A), 7-7-14; Ord. No. 3216, 81, 6-1-15)

about:blank 3/3/2016



PUBLIC NOTICE
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
BEFORE
THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
PLAN COMMISSION
PC 2016-06

NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN THAT the United City of Yorkville, Kendall
County, Illinois, petitioner, is proposing a text amendment to Chapter 6: Permitted
and Special Uses in the Zoning Ordinance to identify Commercial school, trade
school as special uses in the M-1 Limited Manufacturing and M-2 General
Manufacturing districts and proposing a text amendment to Chapter 2: Rules and
Definitions in the Zoning Ordinance to redefine the definition of trade school to “A
school established to provide for the teaching of academic, industrial, clerical,
managerial, artistic skills, or alternative education. This definition applies to
schools that are owned and operated privately for profit or non profit and that may
offer a complete education curriculum.” This text amendment will provide
regulations for the establishment and operation of such uses in these zoning
districts.

NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN THAT the Plan Commission for the United City
of Yorkville will conduct a public hearing on said application on Wednesday, April
13, 2016 at 7 p.m. at the United City of Yorkville, City Hall, located at 800 Game
Farm Road, Yorkville, Illinois 60560.

The public hearing may be continued from time to time to dates certain without
further notice being published.

All interested parties are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an
opportunity to be heard. Any written comments should be addressed to the United
City of Yorkville City Clerk, City Hall, 800 Game Farm Road, Yorkville, Illinois,
and will be accepted up to the date of the public hearing.

By order of the Corporate Authorities of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall
County, Hlinois.

BETH WARREN
City Clerk

BY: Lisa Pickering
Deputy Clerk



Memorandum

To: Plan Commission
From: Chris Heinen, Planner
CC: Bart Olson, City Administrator

Krysti J. Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director
Date: March 31, 2016
Subject: PC 2016-07 — Self Storage Facility (Special Use Amendment) —
Lot 19 Commercial Drive

Background & Request:

The petitioner, Terry Richards, petitioner, has filed an application with the United City of
Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting to amend a special use approved for a public
storage facility pursuant to Chapter 6, Table 10.06.03 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance. The
amendments to the special use include relocation of the buildings on the property, increasing the
number of buildings on the property and increasing the landscape materials, all as shown on a
new site plan for the development of the property. The real property is located at 147
Commercial Drive in Yorkville, Illinois.




The property was
annexed pursuant to an
annexation agreement on
March 23, 1995 to the City of
Yorkville by the Inland Land
Appreciation Fund, L.P as part
of a larger land development
plan subsequently zoned R-2,
B-3 and M-1. The property in
question fell under the B-3
zoning classification upon
annexation.  The petitioner
originally submitted plans in
storage facility. During these
petitions, City Council
approved the  following:
Ordinance 2015-41, rezoning
the property from B-3 to M-1;
Ordinance 2015-42, granting a

— 265,00 STOUAGE BULDING "€

o DERE RSO I I W Salo

Approved
Site Plan
(Ord.
2015-42)

special use for the public storage facility; Ordinance 2015-44, granting a lot coverage variance.
Since the original approval, the petitioner has been working on completing the final engineering
for the site. Upon reviewing the final engineering plans, staff noticed that the layout of the

buildings and the number of buildings had changed from the approved plans.

brought forth the petition before you for a special use amendment.

The petitioner is looking
to construct ten (10) self
storage buildings. The main
entrance will be located on
Commercial Drive. The
petitioner is proposing five (5)
parking stalls, which includes
one (1) handicapped accessible
stall. The plan also indicates an
additional three (3) parking
stalls for the future, if needed.
The property will be secured by
fencing and an entry gate that
will be accessible by the Fire
Department via a Knox Box.
The overall lot coverage, which
includes buildings and
pavement, has decreased from
approximately 80% in the

original plan to 79% in this current plan.

This change

sear

Site Plan

The 20 foot landscape buffer along the northern

property line will remain the same as the original plan. Additional buffering/landscaping is
proposed along the eastern and western property lines as part of the new site layout.




EXISTING CONDITIONS:

The existing zoning and land use for properties surrounding the subject property are as
indicated below:

Zoning Land Use
North | Kendall County County Residences
East B-3, General Business District Vacant/Commercial Building
South | B-3, General Business District Vacant/Commercial Building
West M-1, Limited Manufacturing Vacant Parcel

SPECIAL USE CRITERIA:

Section 10-4-9F of the City’s Zoning Ordinance establishes standards for special use
requests. No special use shall be recommended by the plan commission unless said commission
shall find that:

1. The establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be unreasonably
detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.

2. The special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for the purpose already permitted, nor substantially diminish and
impair property values within the neighborhood.

3. The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development
and improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.

4. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities have been or are
being provided.

5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress or egress so designed as
to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.

6. The special use shall in all other respects conform to the applicable regulations of the
district in which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified
by the city council pursuant to the recommendations of the plan commission.

The applicant has provided written responses to these special use and amendment
standards as part of their application and requests inclusion of those responses into the
public record.

Staff Comments:

The proposed change in the site layout of the property is supported by staff. The
buildings located along the northern and eastern property lines are consistent with the previously
approved plans. Additionally, the landscaping along the northern property line will remain the
same, which was a condition as part of the previous plan. This was a concern with the property
owner to the north and will be maintained. This petition was reviewed at the Economic
Development Committee on April 5, 2016. A recommendation from the Plan Commission will
be forwarded to the City Council for consideration at the April 26, 2016 regularly scheduled
meeting.  Staff will be available to answer any question the Plan Commission may have at
Wednesday night’s meeting.



Proposed Motion for Special Use:

In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on April 13, 2016 and
discussions conducted at that meeting, the Plan Commission recommends approval to the City
Council a request to amend a special use approved for a public storage facility pursuant to
Chapter 6, Table 10.06.03 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance. The amendments to the special use
include relocation of the buildings on the property, increasing the number of buildings on the
property and increasing the landscape materials, all as shown on a new site plan for the
development of the property. The real property is located at 147 Commercial Drive in Yorkville,
Illinois, subject to staff recommendations and conditions in a memo dated March 31, 2016, and
further subject to {insert any additional conditions of the Plan Commission}...

Attachments:

1. Copy of Petitioner’s Application w/exhibits.
2. Copy of Public Notice.



United City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, Illinois 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
Fax: 630-553-3436

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL USE

Purpose of Application

The purpose of the zoning code is based upon the authority of the city to divide its land into districts by use,
bulk, location of building and structures, in a substantially uniform manner. It is recognized that while some
uses are permitted under the zoning code to keep uniformity, a case-by-case analysis must be conducted for
certain permitted uses to discover the impact of those uses on neighboring land and of the public need for the
particular use at the particular location. In these cases a special use must be granted.

This packet explains the process to successfully submit and complete an Application for Special Use. It includes
a detailed description of the process and the actual application itself (Pages 6 to 10). Please type the required
information in the application on your computer. The application will need to be printed and signed by the
applicant. The only item that needs to be submitted to the city from this packet is the application. The rest of
the packet is to help guide you through the process unto completion.

For a complete explanation of what is legally required throughout the Special Use process, please refer to
“Title 10, Chapter 4, Section 9 Special Uses” of the Yorkville, Illinois City Code.




Application Procedure

(HEER BN ORI '

Step 1
Submit Application, Fees, and All Pertinent Information to the
Community Development Department

4

Step 2
Plan Council Review
(Meets 2nd and 4th Thursday of the month)

4

Step 3
Plan Commission Public Hearing
(Meets 2nd Wednesday of the Month)

g

Step 4
City Council Public Hearing
(Meets 2nd and 4th Tuesday of the Month)




Application Procedure

. Step 1
Application Submittal
The following must be submitted to the Community Development Department:

« 2 original signed applications with legal description.

+ 5 copies each of the application and exhibits, proposed drawings, location map, and site plan.
Large items must be folded to fitina 10” x 13 envelope.

+ Appropriate filing fee. (See attached Fee Sheet on page 5)

+ 1 CD containing an electronic copy (pdf) of each of the signed application (complete with ex-
hibit), proposed drawings, location map, and site plan. A Microsoft Word document with the
legal description is required on the CD.

Within one (1) week of submittal, the Community Development Department will determine if the application
is complete or if additional information is needed. These materials must be submitted a minimum of 45 days
prior to the targeted Plan Commission meeting. An incomplete submittal could delay the scheduling of the
project.

Applicant will be responsible for payment of recording fees and public hearing costs, including written
transcripts of the public hearing and outside consultant costs (i.e. legal review, land planner, zoning coordinator,
environmental, etc.). The applicant will be required to establish a deposit account with the city to cover these
fees. The Petitioner Deposit Account/Acknowledgement of Financial Responsibility form is attached to this

document and must be submitted with the application.

Step 2

Plan Council

Applicant must present the proposed plan to the Plan Council. The Plan Council meets on the 2nd and 4th
Thursday of the month. The members of the Council include the Community Development Director, City
Engineer, the Building Department Official, the Public Works Director, the Director of Parks and Recreation, a
Fire Department Representative, and a Police Department Representative. Upon recommendation by the Plan
Council, applicant will move forward to the Plan Commission hearing.

L Step 3
Plan Commission

Applicant will attend a public hearing conducted by the Plan Commission. The Plan Commission meets on the
2nd Wednesday of the Month at 7:00pm. Notice will be placed in the Kendall County Record by the United
City of Yorkville. The applicant is responsible for sending certified public hearing notices to adjacent property
owners within 500 feet of the subject property no less than 15 days and no more than 30 days prior to the
public hearing date. Twenty Four (24) hours prior to the public hearing, a certified affidavit must be filed by
the applicant with the Community Development Department containing the names, addresses and permanent
parcel numbers of all parties that were notified.

The Plan Commission will conduct a public hearing on the request, take public comments, discuss the request,
and make a recommendation to City Council. No special use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission
unless it follows the standards (page 8 and 9) set forth in city’s zoning code.

3



Stepd

City Council

Applicant will attend the City Council meeting where the recommendation of the special use will be considered.
The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Tuesdays of the month at 7:00pm. City Council will make the final
approval of the special use.

- Dormant Applications

The Community Development Director shall determine if an application meets or fails to meet the requirements
stated above. If the Director determines that the application is incomplete it will become dormant under these
circumstances:

* The applicant has been notified of such deficiencies and has not responded or provided a time line for
completing the application within ninety (90) days from the time of notification.

* The applicant has not responded in writing to a request for information or documentation from the
initial plan commission review within six (6) months from the date of that request.

* The applicant has not responded to a request for legal or engineering deposit replenishment for city
incurred costs and fees within ninety (90) days from the date of the request.

If the Community Development Director has sent the required notice and the applicant has not withdrawn their
application or brought it into compliance, then the director shall terminate the application. After termination,
the application shall not be reconsidered except after the filing of a completely new application.

Withdrawal or termination of an application shall not affect the applicant’s responsibility for payment of any
costs and fees, or any other outstanding debt owed to the city. The balance of any funds deposited with the city
that is not needed to pay for costs and fees shall be returned to the applicant. (Ord. 2011-34, 7-26-2011)




United City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, llinois 60560

Telephone:  630-553-4350
Fax: 630-553-7575
INVOICE & WORKSHEET
PETITION APPLICATION
CONTACT: DEVELOPMENT/ PROPERTY:
Aicwer ds
Acreage: 2§ (OQ
Date: 212 [
Concept Plan Review: []Yes [ ] No S
Engineering Plan Review Deposit of $500 due
Amendment: |[] Yes [] Ne $
$500.00 Fee due for each: (Annexation) (Plan) (Plat) (PUD)
Annexation: [] Yes | ] No S
$250.00, plus $10/acre for each acre over 5.
# of acres: -5= x $10= + $250
Rezoning: []Yes [ ] No $
$200.00, plus $10/acre for each acre over 5.
# of acres: -5= x$10= + 5200
If annexing and rezoning, charge only 1 per acre fee.
If rezoning to a PUD, charge PUD Development Fee- not Rezoning Fee.
Special Use: [] Yes [ ] No S
$250.00, plus $10/acre for each acre over 5.
# of acres: -5= x$10= + $250
Zoning Variance: $85.00 ] Yes [ ] No ]
Outside Consultants deposit of $500.00 due
Preliminary Plan Fee: $500.00 [] Yes [ ] No h)
P.U.D. Fee: $500.00 []Yes [ ] No S
Final Plat Fee: $500.00 |] Yes | ] No $
Engineering Plan Review Deposit: [ ] Yes [ ] No $
[ ] Less than | acre = $1,000 due
[ ] Over 1 acre and less than 10 acres = $2,500 due
| | Over 10 acres and less than 40 acres = $5,000 due
[ ] Over 40 acres and less than 100 acres = $10.000 due
| ] Over 100 acres = $20,000 due
Outside Consultants Deposit: [] Yes | ] No S
Legal, Land Planner, Zoning Coordinator, Environmental Services
Annexation, Subdivision, Rezoning. and Special Use:
[ ] Less than 2 acres = $1,000 due
| ] Over 2 acres and less than 10 acres = $2,500 due
[ ] Over 10 acres = $5.000 due
5

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE:

Word/ O Drive/ Dev. Dep. ARQ/ Fee Sheet Wkst



Application For Special Use

STAFF USE ONLY
Date of Submission l I PC# l |

Development Name | 1

" App ant Information

Name of Applicant(s) ITerry Richards

|

Business Address {1975 Bucktail Lane |
City [Sugar Grove | State {lllinois | ZIP 60554 |
|

|

Business Phone [630-466-7115 |  Business Fax |
Business Cell 1630-330-8003 | Business E-mail |

Property Information

Name of Holder of Legal Title [Urness Land Company, LLC |

If Legal Title is held by a Land Trust, list the names of all holders of any beneficial interest therein:

Property Street Address [Lot 19 Commerical Drive, Yorkville, IL 60560 |

Description of Property’s Physical Location

L I

Zoning and Land Use of Surrounding Parcels

North R2
East M1
South B3
West B3

Current Zoning Classification |B-3 Business District

Kendall County Parcel Number(s) of Property

02-17-277-003
02-16-153-001




Application For Special Use

. Additional Contact Information

Attorney
Name |Kelly A. Helland

Address lﬂO?A. Bridge Street
City IYorkvilIe | State lllinois jZIP |60560
Phone |630-553-9500 | Fax [630-553-5764

S S R Y R Y| A

E-mail ]kkramer@dankramerlaw.com

Engineer
Name lJohn Tebrugge

Address [146 Hunstman Drive
City [Plano | State [lllinois | zIP 60545
Phone {630-552-4390 | Fax [630-552-4392

E-mail [tebruggeengineering@comcast.net

Land Planner/Surveyor

Name l 1
Address , —|
City | | State | |zIP | |
Phone L | Fax [ [
E-mail | l

Attachments

Applicant must attach a legal description of the property to this application and title it as “Exhibit A”.

Applicant must list the names and addresses of any adjoining or contiguous landowners within 500 feet of the
property that are entitled notice of application under any applicable City Ordinance or State Statute. Attach a
separate list to this application and title it as “Exhibit B”,




Application For Special Use

 Special Use Standards

Please state how the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be unreasonably
detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare:

The project will not be detrimental to the public health as it will be constructed in an Industrial
Park. Furthermore the Petitioner proposes to construct a fence around the lot so that the self
storage buildings and units are not accessible by the public. The Petitioner furthermore is
constructing a gate so that only patrons can access the self storage facility.

Please state how the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate

vicinity for the purpose already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within the
neighborhood:

The project will not be detrimental to the public health as it will be constructed in an Industrial
Park. Furthermore the Petitioner proposes to construct a fence around the lot so that the self
storage buildings and units are not accessible by the public. The Petitioner furthermore is

constructing a gate so that only patrons can access the self storage facility. Additionally there is a
landscape berm proposed on the rear north line of the subject property.

Please state how the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district:

The surrounding properties in the Industrial Park are primarily industrial uses. The construction of
a self storage facility will not impede the normal and orderly development an improvement of the
surrounding properties for permitted uses in the District as individuals do not access their self
storage units on a daily basis. The Petitioner hereby contends that the establishment of the

Special Use to allow for the construction of a self storage facility is complimentary to the Industrial
uses currently established in the Industrial Park.

Please state how adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities have been or are being
provided:

The subject property is located on a cul-de-sac and would be destination point for a customer.
The utilities currently servicing the Industrial Park along with the roadways accessing the Industrial
Park are adequate for the intended customers of the self storage facility. The Industrial Park is
accessible from Route 47 and there currently exists a stop light to allow patrons of the Industrial

Park and patrons and employees of the subject facility to access Route 47 after leaving the
Industrial Park.




Application For Special Use

Swpemal Use Standards.

Please state how adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress or egress so designed as to
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets:

The Petitioner does not believe that approving the M-1 Special Use to construct a self storage

facility will cause any traffic congestion on public streets. Patrons of a self storage facility are not
at the facility on a daily basis typically.

Please state how the special use shall in all other respects conform to the applicable regulations of the district in

which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the City Council pursuant
to the recommendations of the Plan Commission:

A self storage facility is a Special Use in the M-1 Zoning District and therefore necessitates an

approval for the Special Use. The Petitioner will conform with the balance of the Regulations and
Codes contained in the united City of Yorkville Zoning Code.

_ Agreement ,

[ verify that all the information in this application is true to the best of my knowledge. I understand and accept
all requirements and fees as outlined as well as any incurred administrative and planning consultant fees which
must be current before this project can proceed to the next scheduled committee meeting.

[ 'understand all of the information presented in this document and understand that if an application becomes
dormant it is through my own fault and I must therefore follow the requirements outlined above.

Appljcant Signature Date
X.mr MM 3[/5’(/201%

THIS APPLICATION MUST BE NOTARIZED
PLEASE NOTARIZE IN THE SPACE BELOW:
Suboscrhed ond Spars bifn e

"OFFICIAL SEAL"

KELLY A. HELLAND
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 8/3/2019 |




Exhibit A

Legal Description of Subject Property

Lot 19 Final Plat of Subdivision Yorkville Business Center Unit 3 being a part of the
west half of Section 16 and part of the east half of Section 17, all in the Township 37
North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian according to the plat thereof
recorded May 21, 2001 as Document 200100008620 in Kendall County, Illinois.

PIN 02-17-277-003 and 02-16-153-001
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GENERAL NOTES & DETAILS
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TERRY & ADAM RICHARDS
PO BOX 432 SUGAR GROVE, IL
PHONE: (630) 330-8003
TCRBUILDERSOGMAIL COM
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(630) 5524390
(630) 552.4392
TEBRUGGEENGINEERINGOCOMCAST.NET
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SOIL EROSION / SEDIMENT CONTROL
OPERATION TIME SCHEDULE

CoRSTRICTION

NOTE: _GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO COMPLETE TABLE WTH THEIR SPECIFIC PROJECT SCHEDULE

TEMPORARY COMSTRUCTION E4TS

TEMPORARY CONTROL MEASURES

SEPMENT CONTROL BASIS

STHP & STOCKPAE ToPSoe.

OGN GRADE

‘ST0RM FAGLITES

1) CONTRACTOR SHALL UPDATE TME TALE 0 SHADING OR DATHG THE APPLICABLE ACTIMTIES. AS PROLECT PROGRESSES.

2) TMEC SCHEDULE WMUST CONCDE WTH SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION.

GES MANAGEMINT PRACTICE MOTES.

1. SEE STABLTED CONSTRUCTION ENTIANCE DETAL THE CONSTRUCTION £XIT SHALL BE A MINSARI OF 14 B WOTH AND 50 M LENGTH FROM DOSTING P

SURTACE AL CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC MUST UTLIZE COMSTRUCTION T PER DETAIL TO ACCESS THE PUBLIC RACAD. DURNG L

EATS MAY BT SHFTED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S OISCRETION TO FACLITATE GRADMG OFERATION. EXIT WUST TERWNATE AT £XSTING PAVED SURS)
DAL BF RESPONGELE e

coNTATTOn FOR EHSURING THAT TIE RUNCFF FROM THE CONSTRUCTION EXT 15 DIRECTED BAGK TOwARD OR AT THE
THE CONTRACTOR MAY PERMAMENTLY REMOVE ANY PORRON PERMETER SLY FINCE ATTER CTABUSHUENT OF DAL GRACE AMD/OR FIHAL STAI
RENOERS. OF A DISTURBANCE. AND,/OR MEFFECTIVE AS A DEST R

AVED

s CONTROL FABRIC WAG SC150 SHALL BE APPLED TO ALL SLOPTS &1 DR CREATER. FOLLOW WAMNACTURIR SPECINCATIONS FOR
BSTALLATICN. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTE AL AREAS WHERE MAG SC1S0 HAS BEFM WSTALLID RELATIVE 10 AS-DULT CRADES. AND FURMEH THESE BOUNORRES
o e av P AL

5 perscOn w000 B SOON AS IT 1S PRACTICAL TO ENSURE PROPER CIFMNATION P08 TD TERMNATION OF PLRMT COMRAGE. THE.
COMTRACTOR PUNT PERIANCNT SELDNG AS SPECTEED ON THE LANDSCAFING PLAN AS SOCH AS FINAL BASM GRADCS ARE ESTABLISHED AS SPECFED OM
THE CRADNG PLAN. SET. SITE LANGSCAPRNG PLAN £0R EXAGT GROUMD COVER TYPE AND LOCATION.

B STOCKPLE SHOULD BE LOCATED [N ARFAS THAT DO MOT MAVE 104 POTENTIAL FOR CONTRE/TNG SEDIMENTS TD STORMWATER FACLITES.

7. STOCKPLES OF SOL AND DTHER BLILDMG WATERALS 70 RIMAM M PLACE WORE THAN
COMTROL MEASURES. STOCK PES WOT ACTIVELY WORKED AND T0 REMAN N PLACE FOR 14 DAYS O MORL SEEDMO.
B THE COMDTION OF THE CONSTRUCTION SITT. FOR WIMTIR SUTDOWM SHALL BE ADDRESSED EARLY M THE FALL CROWNG SEASON SO THAT SLOPES.
BARE [ARTH AREAS MAY 6 STALITED WTH TEMPORART AND/CR PERMAMENT VIGETATVE COWER FOR PROPER EROSIN AND SLDMIENT COMTROL.
THAT ARE TD REMAN DLE THROUGHCUT THE WNTER SHALL RECENE TEMPORARY

STORMWATER OUTFLOW
CONTRIBUTING /RECEIVING WATERS

o e e o L. v -
15 e - e

STE DENTFED AS PART OF THE CIRTINCATION.

CONTRACTOR NANE & TINLE:

THRCE (3) DAYS SHALL BE FURBISHED WTH EROSION AND SEDMINT

e
AL CONTRACTORS AND EOMAM A ST WATER POLUTGN e DETRLLTAL T AR fus Wt
PREVENTION PLAN SHALL SIGH A COPY OF TWE FOLLOWNG CERTIICATION STATEMENT TTERNS GRADNG

oy . ToL v s PATTERGS GHLY. ST PLAN FOR FIAL GRADMG CETALS.
o wATER PORLUTOH i S

friH ACREAGE SUMMARY
e
EIGNA TURE DATE w_un-n.nuu-
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e SITE DATA TABLE
©
c
A TOTAL BUILDING AREA = 57,325 SF 1.31 AC  37%
_ S : /3 T TOTAL PAVEMENT AREA = 66,596 SF 153 AC  42%
T =~ g oo SN LV T4 ~' [TOTAL LANDSCAPING / TURF AREA = 32,909 SF 0.76 AC 21%
TOTAL SITE AREA = 156,830 SF 360 AC __ 100%
TOTAL BLDG AREA + TOTAL PVMT AREA / TOTAL SITE AREA
o TOTAL LOT COVERAGE: 1.31 AC + 1.53 AC = 2.84 AC / 3.60 AC = 79%
T e R
TOTAL BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE / TOTAL SITE AREA
= e o b FLOOR AREA RATIO = 57,325 SF / 156,830 SF = 0.37
e eyl S s | EMPLOYEE PER SHIFT
Er ; oo Rk dhe
Ot T @ T L e
0 UF OF 8 CHAmUNK FENCE | Rt L S P T
e g
% -
546.79 L 6" CLASS 9 CONCRE TE
A ‘___a.s‘ IK 47 CA-6 BASE COURSE
] e A “hened
O e =] T
s Vooad [ ——
“l o ] | e B et TYPICAL CONCRETE APPROACH DETAIL
—+ FF e -7
o B ) ) LB
4 3 | e - 37 HMA IL-9.5, NS0 SURFACE COURSE
vt : sl (8 <L A e
a2 e ‘ Pon 7 52 107 AGEREGATE COURSE, TYPE A, CA-6 SRLPUR IR TRID
%2 I i ¥ IR
il ] i o o
{' ]y G TYPICAL HMA PAVEMENT DETAL R AR
E ] (s a P ar NTS.
o B sat g 5
o ™ ° H ey
% ’\ - R “)_5
4 : S
iz [ SRR
642,53 kg |
(i "‘@ ¢‘§
] |f
o
\ |
s | 4 g
N T e o ‘-
roee mstaies f ;eh/:s'nmoxum FENCE
e
PROPOSED STORM SEWER.
gAY
PROPOSED 2" TYPE A INLET

42 571 wlin def
EnsTvG maTOn ikt vanL T S
TS
ehim ey
A\ Erswe stonu wur1642.
Fiw - 8423

W/ FRAME & GRATE
RIM = 646.00
SE 127 RCP INV = 643.00

B 139 IF 12° €L IV RCP © 1.0%
12 ROP . BlADS

oo oz S s - 8%
/ ey T ko J PROPOSED 4" MANHOLE
T 3 W/ FRAME & GRATE

T o 8 & 24 RiM = 645.00 TRARSCRTA TSN
L . By P — F a0 NE 15 RCP NV = 641.61 o Staoarn ||RESERVEDIL o
" 5ny 843 SW 15" RCP INV = 641.61 L) PARKING

90 LF 127 CL IV RCP @ 1.0%
ERISTNG STORM INET
frpr ]

107 RCR NV - 63849

o
—
i
H
H

PROPOSED 4" CATCHBASIN

PROPOSED UTILITY CROSSINGS W/ FRAME & CRATE
POSTNG 4 ST0M MawLE - RiM = 644,20
R e i 127 WATERMAIN T/P = £38.00 NE 15" RCP INV = 640.71
A 07 17" SToRw Sever Y = 63873 S 15 P WY = G40 s suvoutp s
ST ADS W - anen 173 CLEARANCE 126 (F 12 CL IV RCP @ 1 6% FORR T
TOSTIG SAMTARY uaNHOLE SR SRS Bl
= sazem. 6" SAMITARY S VI - 3 PROPOSED 4' CATCHBASIN
Fube 1 é?ws' STORM SEWER T/P = 637.93 [{] W/ FRAME & GRATE
0.55" CLEARANCE RiM = 643.30
- NE 15° RCP INV = 638.65
N 0P 187 WY 2 83530 15" STORM SEWER T/P = 637.10 SE 15" RCP INV = 636.99
SE 1 P Y - 03811 ﬁfr WATER SERVICE B/P = 638,60 57 LF 157 CL IV RCP @ 3.30%
G 149 1f 15 Rep 8 079 .
PROPORT N 18" RCP s = 63011 1 CLEARAE

E PROPOSED 2' TYPE A INLET

1.50° MINIMUM CLEARANCE BETWEEN ALL SEWER W/ FRAME & GRATE
ES

& WATER SERWC RIM = 64310 v

A . : 2 LOCATE SIGN AT EACH END OF
. o . B e W e 8 20s el e A
e —— A
SCALE 111 FEET MNTS HANDICAP PARKING SIGN
==..., TEBRUGGE ENGINEERING |2f et s o mze—| EREPARED FOR: 147 COMMERCIAL DRIVE YORKVILLE, IL 60560 frasrie S w T wer
W‘F 0 BT A8 PLAN, L 055 [ — TERRY & ADAM RICHARDS - 5
e L, e |8 PO BOX 432 SUGAR GROVE, IL 60554 CIVIL SITE PLAN iz ] o o serrs




CENERML COPCERENS.

L AL EARTXRORY. ROADWAY mORK. ORARAGE WORX OR $108 STWR WORK Sehil B PUMORMD UTLIIIG MATERULS AKO
M08 W ST T WU OCPARTMINT OF TRANGORTATION “STANDARD SPECHCATONS 108 ADAD
ARD PRIDE COTRUCTCN" LATEST EOTHN, 4% WELL A5 T STAMOARD O TAk LTS ATTACHED 10 THCIE Fuaard, adl
PSCPAL COUNTY, STATE AND ITOCRAL BLCLREMCNIS AKD TTAWDARDS SHALL B SWICTY ADERED 104 WA
RORUAD R TS COMTRALT.

2 au swaraar ks wom wamas W ST

stwon e wama BAL BE PIRIORMED UTB 10 S A0
DANCE WTH THE LATEST CIATON (8 “STAHDARD SPECKICACHS FGR RATIH AND SEWER seam -
LMOIS CATEST JDITOR, A5 WELL AT THE STANGARD GUTML SEETS ATTACHED 10 TS MANS, AL IRMGRAL Gy,
SIATE Wb TEDCRAL I GURDRTS MG STANDARDS. SHALL D STCILY ALVERED 10 o WORK. PUSCRVED NDCH T

Conazt
Sy sptGGaTONS. T P Tt P easr or & counct
EI T STARDARD SR 3 JGOV | T ROV $TAND &
Ton CONTRACT BCHCMTAL 1TEUS 0 ABcTsSos
NeCTS AR 1o HOFD BT AST RO O CONSIARED A PART OF
ConmAZT.
. T CONTRACTON SUALL WO Y ALL BAENONS werccimg
Tt wo wi T ACTUAL ORI FTMERE AR ANY CLPANGES TR WIAT 13 SO (3
Tt Coms e . EGNEER B FORT. v WORK. OTHERwEE D
CONTAZIOR Wi B CONGOURID, B AND [OFEHE W D CVINT O ANY DOUBT O
‘COMSTRUCTION PLAS. O SPTCINCATINS, THE C4020M OF

AFORMD OER T COMTRACT D ACANIT AL DIFECTS i MATDHALS: A
O IATOVER WATUEL T T COMTUAZTON WD 145 SURETY SOk & PLGO OF 17 WOATHS Fioas DL OATE OF
o ne wom &Y T WPRCEALITY. TR APPLCARE GOVERMAINTAL ACENOTS. AR

&i

B THE CONTHACION Shiul (. GESMMSELE TER (8 VARG
EESTNG STREETS OR wrdmAvs | o SaLL

PROTLCTON I 4ol Bsbmars beF et
SHALL O BESPONSIBLL TOR ANT DAUAGE 10 TG
REPARS AT WCESSARY 10 Tl 48118 AGHON OF

7T UTUTY LOCATIOR. A THE OFPTIS 0w ow FLINS AT WPIDMATE Oy, 400 B4, B WRIAD B
THE COmRACTOR Wi AL AFTEC v o TO MTATNG CONATEUCTION GPLIATONS Tl (HGHILE WD
R ASSUL KO SCSPOMDIBLITY OB T{ ADIOUAET. SUFTICINCY O CAACTESS OF DA SE UTLATT RCPPYSONTATCNS.
cou
i

B PROR TO STARTMG CONSTRUCTION THE CONTRAL 080 ITACT T OVCE OF JULLE. AT 1-B00- 092-0023 f0R

EXACT LD VGCAON O Al FROMATY O, A0 %, 140 FRGEET ST Rt
CONTRACIER Sl M SOAELT R POHSERE 108

T MELD LOCATED.

AT, AN UPLITES Wl PLBLE TS OF - maY
T CONTRAGTON SiALL BE RUSPOWSRLE 108 OETEMMSG 1

Ly
b mc O] b LDCATO
O ROUOCATMG DO FADAI TS AT

BHALL BE COREGIED 10 THE PROPOSED. S1c StMLF
"B Gt B IBAD, TN 1 Sl 8 REPARD
S AND PUT i ACCIPLABLE OPUIATCNAL COMDITCR. 4
T Oum T ENCOUNTLRED Siscl, B KLY BY T CONTRACTOR, an0
COS1 OF TS Wk Bin B CORSINRD A3
A,

i
L
5
i
H
:
]
wi

1111 SHAL B N SCSPORSILITY 06 £AG RESPECTYE CONTRACTON 1 RIMOWE FROU S STE AKY AND ALL MATLRIALS
AND DLIRUS W4 RETAT TROn 143 CONSTRUC TGN GPLRATINS. A1 RO ADCHMCRAL LXPENGE TO M OWHER.

12 DNGRELR 4D DWR AXE NOT RESAOMTELE FOR S GONSTIVK TN MEARS, METODS, TICHOUES, ST OuhCES
PROCIDURCS. Thal Or PURFORMANGE, PROGRMIS OO 1OR 4Ny SAETY PRCALTONS USID BY DE CONTRACION it
CMACIN 13 ALY APV F3 DECUBEN GF b WOt 0 ACCORDAMCE Wi W, GOMRACT DOCAENTS, 0

13 DL CONTHACTON SHALL EOUPLY Wi 4Ll STAIL MW0 FEDORAL SA/TTY RECIAATANS A3 CUTLMED M THE LATEST
REVRMS OF T FIDERAL CONSTRUCTION EATTTY STAnbARDS. (SLRES 1338) D Mt
REGRATORS o T corRi HEATH Al TRa DN (05a)

GCCUPADONAL HEAL™M STATE SAETY ACT OF VBTL{RFWSID). et CONTRAC T
RUSPONEILL 1O I 0% RESPICTIV ACINTS AND (WAL

14T CONTACTOR UL WOlMT DI OWER, T HCREIR, A0 AL
s e

SUMOARDS OF T WLLIANS. STRLCOR
EMGREERS. NG RN DAL EACH BE

DOVERNG AUTKORITLS, TR AGEONTS
st ASSIACS THCM ANT AMD ALL LABLITY Wik RESPLCT 10 THE CONSTRUC P, BISTALLUTON AMD TESTRG CF
P D T PROSCL T GHAGL B M SILE RLSPOMERLTY OF D4 CONTRACTOR 10 PERY O T Wi

COMSTRCTER. 40 TATETY CODES: M (MGRA (R QWM. A0 CONENNOR: A JIRCRITE S ARE MO RESEONSIE. O DhSiies
COMPLANCE fi7 T CONTRACTER Wi S0 CCOC3 4D ASSUMT MO LABRTT TOR ACCORR: ‘om DeaTE, O
CUAMS RILATWG DRETD WaCH NAY RESUAT FRGM LALK 0F ADHERCHCE 10 %Al CO0LS.
OLACAOUKD WTLITES
1w S BOMCATH PROROSID O8 [0STIG WTLITICS, PROROSED DR XA PAVEMINT, GV maTs,

s awe SOv & OSTART FIET (v DIVM(R SO O SAME. ANO,/TH wEBEWR 1SH SOw1 04 T

41
i
H

v
CONSTRUCTION P SsiaLs B 0 W SELICT CRiomtAR BACKTHL {CA-6 OR CA-7) AMD
COMPACTED 3 ACCOROANCE M1 1 | ARTIMCRN. SPEGIEADCHS.

2 UMLCYS QNS MENCATID O T FLANA STOR SMER PR SHALL 6 RONORCLD
CLASS AS MOMCATID 04 Th{ PLWKS. 4D CONFORMIG 10 ASTM C-78  AINIS SHALL TYACALLY B A “ThOmEL
AR WASTR: CEMPRRE) W ST C-78 (CR =14 AG MAT DE APPUICAPLE OR WLORLR "0 ~ADNC
GASTT miFS COMTOMISG TO ASTW C-.443) LOCATION R THE TCHM UM CAGSSTS. WATEPARS dn Ot
JOINT m ACCTROANCL WTW A3TM C-341 SAML BE VRO

3 STOMM SEWR WAMNOLES SHALL B PRCATT STRUCTRTS, Wi I CIAMCTCR GOPONECNT ON Tt Py ST
APPRCPUIATL FRAME AND LIS (ST CONSTRUCTON STAMDASDS] (D5 SHALL §1 MM 5108 SCRH"

4, STPLCTURES FOR SAMTARY A0 S10M SEWERS AND VALY VHULTS TOR WATER Sald BE v ACCORDANCE WD 1MESE
MPROVIMENT FLAS WD DAL APPLCABLE $TANDARD SPLCFICATIONS. RO BACTLL 15 REGUAED
AROLME TMEST STRCTURLS. I COBT SHALL B CINSEORID A% WODENTAL AND. SeILL B8 PHEAGND. i PHC COMTRALY Unat
ek FoR T ST

5 AL STOMY STWNS 4ND WATERMAMS SHALL WAV COMPACIED CA~7 GRIAMULAR BDONG A VRAAM OF 4° BELOW 0
BOTION OF TW P 10% T LU LCNGTH _ BCOMG SHALL (XIMG. 10 THC SPRING Ll OF T PP GO FOR e
OORG SHALL B WELUOE, Wik B 14T PROCE B §CR B P

& M OXRGROND CONTRACTIR DAL I MSPOMSILE FOR DEWATERNG ANY [XCAYATON FOR B WSTALLATION OF THE
MR OF WATIR SYSRENS. AKY OFWATURNG DVCOUNTERED SHALL 66 NCOONTAL T3 g RESPECTIA (SDONSAOUND Ty,

T.ALL STRUCTUATS SIS WAV & WATRAN OF B OF ADW/STRG MOICS, LTSS GTHERWSE MITED.

s

EOMCRITE CLLVERT PP OF B
o

o

UPON COMPETION OF FIAD CRADC AND TWAL WEPLCTIONS | o5,
CONTRALION a0 Tk CaaT 15 10 BE CDRNTAL icn

PAVIMENT TS OR STRUCTURES. AEL AT IS CRAGL AN ADOASS TUNTS NECESSIATID Y THE CUBE OF FAVoes
CONTRAZIOR 10 ACP#YE TiMAL F GRADK, RESULTWG 0 AN [XTRA FOR SAD ADASTMNTS. WL B CHARGED. 10 Mo
IMDCRCROMD OMTIAZIOR.

T AL LD DA AD LEDS DAAM UMY PR DI GISGUAROE ST T SASSTARY SERER.
10 ALL ODMSPOUTS, FOOTING DAANS AND SUBSLATACE
T CAUMD AMO S DRECTLD TOWARDS. & S50 STWE
10 Ay AATOPATTD COST OF ST SHALL BE RUALLCTID & TME CONTRATT AUDINTS. MO ADOrIANAL COST Ll B
ALLOWD T8 SHLLING O DRADNG

13 TME CONTRACION Sl BSTALL A T6t"e’ FOST ADMCINT T0 Tl TCRAASS OF THE SaTaRY SCEWGE, WATIRMAR
SOICL SITAPY MAMHOLLS, STORU STRUCTURCS. A0 WATIR VALTL DR FOST SHALL LMD & WbmaM OF 4 11
OV T ROUMD. SAD POST SHALL B PANTED AS FOLLDWS.  SURTAR-GREEN. WATEA-BLUK. MG STOPU_ACh

1317 SHALL BT THE MESPENGIBUITY OF T LACERCIMUNG COMTRACTOR 70 BPWOY. FRON THE STE ANY AMD ALL MATERALS
AN DCPRYS e RESIALT FOM b COMSTRLCTAON OFERATKME AT M0 ACGHTIONAL £ SENSE 10 T DRl

S0 WATERS a4l DAICHARGE T THE STORM SEMER O 01O
SRR

[y

1 ML LARTIORX DFERATCOME S4AL B0 % ACCOROANGE WIh4 SECTION 100 OF 70 (D01, SPCOMCATONS.

2 TE CONRALION Duall PROTECT AL PAOBINTY /oS, AND SEVEY MEMAMNTS AN SHALL RESTCRE ANY WHCH 4HE

CHTLRBEG B 148 OPLRAIKR A1 4O ABGIMONAL 031 T T CONTRACT.

301 I CONTRACTIN'S FSPORUMITT TO OTCRAND AL WATIMAL GhanTITES AND APPRE VSILF OF L STT
Tl CONTRACT PRICE SORATIIO §1 Tl CONIRACTUR SHALL B COMSEARD &% LA Suw OB I AL

PRGECT. MO CLAME (R £XTHA Wom: WL BE BECOGMITD (MISS GRDEALD m WG 87 T Comdh.

4_PRIR 10 CHSET OF MASS GRADWE CRORATONS T €
e

e
T Pt O
DRTORE. MASS GRADING LGS, 460 M ACCORDANCE WTH

s o
Gae NEATARL ROMGHAL A5 TS AEPLACEMNT
G o

BT 3 o DRk tn,
5, D AADRG 1D CONSTRUC T CF TSI REROMENTS SALL 01 CAUSE PORDRAC O SHomas WATIR. ML sRCAS
Sl 5 el SRS AL e D 15 Lo PO MR

TN PROPOSID CRAGNG LEVATONS SHOWN CW Tl FLu AR (RS GRADT A MMM OF S RCWS () OF TSGR
750 BE PLACED BEFORS Fmae GRAGE ELEVATONS AR ACHEVID.

© M SICID STAUCTLAAL s WATCRAL SHALL BE PLACED N LCVEL (SEF0R LATINT 50 AT THE COWPACTE
RECINESS 1 APPROMATILY Bx WOMLE (), If COUPAGIXa COUPVENT DEMOTMATLS PR ABLITY 10 COMPACT 4
DFATER THCRMCSS e & GRATIR TMEXMESS MAY O STOFD, AGH LATEA Sl B NOROUGLY Witp OUoNo
SR ARG 10 WS LBUFORATY,

9, [MBANFLENT WATIRA. Mol MOADRAT, PARKSG LOT, AN UTHIR STRUCTURAL CLAY FLL AREAS OALL BE COMPACTED

10 A LA OF b 1IN T 90 oF L) DN ASTU S CNEARDN D-1357
PC T WA DENTY A5 MAT BE OETERAMD APPROPMATL BY TiE SRS CNGRILR

EMBAIMENT MATERIAL FOR DLALDNG PADS SHALL ACTTD O A WA oF waman cowsTY

B ACCORMANCE Wi 451 OFSIGHATIN D- 1351 (MCEW D PROCTOR METOD) OF TO SUCH QMR GOYSTY A5 AT 81

OF TR APPREPRIATL 7 DAL S0 ERGMETR

T UBASK DT WATERIAL (NANOOM TIL) Wt sni- STRUGTUBAL FLL ARCAS SHALL L COMPALTED T0 A MiSAd OF
WORETY PERCENT (30T) OF WAXMAM DENSITY W ACOOROMNCE WM ASTM SPECHIATON D157 (UODFED PROCTOR v HeCE)
11 THE S8 DRADK FOR SRORGNID STREET AMD PAVEMENT ARCAS SAAL B PHOOF-ECLLED BY ML CONTHACTON AND ANT
UNSTABLE AREAS. ENCOUNTIRD SUCL BE ATMOVTD AW ATPUACID. A% DRECTED 81 M€ $00% CaaPiEls
RIPORTS, o AVALAIK, AP SOLELY FOR THE WTRMATON AMD GUDANCE OF WL CONTRACTOTS.
LR A0 CNGRECR MAXE W0 KPR SINTATCH DR WARANTY WLGARORNG MG INFORUATCR CONTARED 5 T [ORMG: L0GS.
T coumActoR o ey a5 WO ACCORDGLY  ARRAMGEMENTS 1o CNTER
FROMATY Dot T e OF I OMER TERE Wi B MO ADEITENAL
PATOT 108 CXINSES WCLURRED 87 1M CONTRACTON AL THG 1M ADURSE S0 08 GRUAAD. HATER EODITOIL
TN SHAL B W RSPONSIAITY OF THE EXCavATKN CONTRAGIOR 10 RCUOVE FROU THE STL ANY AMD i WATERIALE
ARD DEBAIS WA BI%AT FROM 195 CONSTRUCTION OPURATON AT D ADBTICMAL [XP{NSE 15 . DS

SHAPIG KNG PREPARATCN. FCRUSGC. CMTMG. PLACIUENT
PR AN OR SR ACK COUNSES. PLACTMENT,

3 e oo B FPESD BT B OCAVATON CONTRACION 1O WMk 01 FOOT. FUS O
MMUS OF VG PLuG DLEVAOM. THE PAVIG COMTRACTOR Sakl SATRFY MASLLF THAT N SUBGRATC rkq BN
D KMD THAT T (WS T0P GBCRADE (LIVATIGN 1A BUEN GRADED, WM ILTAMCES ALLWED M
TRREToR Be 6D ENCHMEN T PR 10 T
TRUETON, I 1 UARSIONG TNAT 1S 1iAS APPROVED AND ACCIPTS DE M5 SPONSITY
OF PAYIMENT BASE UATCRALS, THE FAVNO CONTRACTON Sk Fodd GRACE Tt
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UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-41

AN ORDINANCE OF THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS,
APPROVING THE REZONING TO THE M-1 LIMITED MANUFACTURING DISTRICT
OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 147 COMMERCIAL DRIVE
(Lot 19 of Unit 3 Yorkville Business Center Subdivision)

Passed by the City Council of the
United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois
This 28" day of July, 2015

Prepared by and Return to:

United City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, IL 60560

Published in pamphlet form by the
authority of the Mayor and City Council
of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall
County, Illinois on August 11, 2015,



Ordinance No. ZOIS—i

AN ORDINANCE OF THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS,
APPROVING THE REZONING TO THE M-1 LIMITED MANUFACTURING DISTRICT
OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 147 COMMERCIAL DRIVE
(Lot 19 of Unit 3 Yorkville Business Center Subdivision)

WHEREAS, the United City of Yorkville (the “City”) is a duly organized and validly
existing non home-rule municipality created in accordance with the Constitution of the State of
Mlinois of 1970 and the laws of the State; and,

WHEREAS, Urness Land Company, LLC (the “Applicant”) is the owner (the “Owner™)
of a vacant parcel located at 147 Commercial Drive, Yorkville, Illinois, (the “Subject Property™)
legally described in Section 2, and is seeking rezoning of the Subject Property from the B-3
General Business District to the M-1 Limited Manufacturing District; and,

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission convened and held a public hearing on the 8th day of
July, 2015, to consider the rezoning after publication of notice and notice to property owners
within five hundred (500) feet of the Subject Property; and,

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission reviewed the standards set forth in Section 10-4-
10B.4 and made findings of fact and recommendation to the Mayor and City Council (the
“Corporate Authorities™) for approval of the rezoning.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the
United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The above recitals are incorporated herein and made a part of this Ordinance.

Section 2: That the Corporate Authorities hereby approve the rezoning of the Subject
Property, legally described as:
Lot 19 Final Plat of Subdivision Yorkville Business Center Unit 3 being a part of the west half of
Section 16 and part of the east half of Section 17, all in the Township 37 North, Range 7 East of

the Third Principal Meridian according to the plat thereof recorded May 21, 2001 as Document
200100008620 in Kendall County, Illinois,

PIN 02-17-277-003 and 02-16-153-001,
from B-3 General Business District to the M-1 Limited Manufacturing District.

Section 3: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval, and
publication as provided by law.

Ordinance No. 2015- 4 {
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Passed by the City Council of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, [llinois this

Y dayor | / ,2015.
oo Jucly Lot fimen

CITY CLERK

CARLO COLOSIMO KEN KOCH

JACKIE MILSCHEWSKI LARRY KOT

CHRIS FUNKHOUSER JOEL FRIEDERS

\?
SEAVER TARULIS ;

Approved by me, as Mayor of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, this
[l dayof AUGUST 2015,

ek

DIANE TEELING

Ordinance No. 2015- 4 {
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Legal Description of Subject Property

Lot 19 Final Plat of Subdivision Yorkville Business Center Unit 3 being a part of the
west half of Section 16 and part of the east half of Section 17, all in the Township 37
North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian according to the plat thereof
recorded May 21, 2001 as Document 200100008620 in Kendall County, Illinois.

PIN 02-17-277-003 and 02-16-153-001
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UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-42

AN ORDINANCE OF THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, APPROVING A SPECIAL USE

FOR A PUBLIC STORAGE FACILITIES/MINIWAREHOUSE STORAGE
(Lot 19 of Unit 3 Yorkville Business Center Subdivision)

Passed by the City Council of the
United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois
This 28" day of July, 2015

Prepared by and Return to:

United City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, IL 60560

Published in pamphlet form by the
authority of the Mayor and City Council
of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall
County, Illinois on August 11, 2015.



Ordinance No. 2015- EZ ;2

AN ORDINANCE OF THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, APPROVING A SPECIAL USE
FOR A PUBLIC STORAGE FACILITIES/MINIWAREHOUSE STORAGE
(Lot 19 of Unit 3 Yorkville Business Center Subdivision)

WHEREAS, the United City of Yorkville (the “City™) is a duly organized and
validly existing non home-rule municipality created in accordance with the Constitution
of the State of Illinois of 1970 and the laws of the State; and,

WHEREAS, under section 11-13-1.1 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS
5/1-1-1, et seq.), the Mayor and City Council of the City (collectively, the “Corporate
Authorities™) may provide for the classification of special uses it its zoning ordinances;
and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to the United City of Yorkville Zoning Ordinance (the
“Zoning Code™), any person owning or having an interest in property may file an
application to use such land for one or more of the special uses provided for in the zoning
district in which the land is situated; and,

WHEREAS, Urness Land Company, LLC (“the Owner™) is the owner of the
property located at 147 Commercial Drive, legally described in Section 2 of this
Ordinance (the “Subject Property™); and,

WHEREAS, under the authority of the Zoning Code, the Subject Property is
located in a designated M-l Limited Manufacturing District, and public storage
facilities/miniwarchouse storage is allowed in this district under a special use permit; and,

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have received a request from the Owner
for a special use permit for the Subject Property to allow public storage
facilities/miniwarehouse storage; and,

WHEREAS, a legal notice of publication regarding a public hearing before the
Plan Commission on the proposed special use permit was duly published in a newspaper
of general circulation in the City, not more than thirty (30) nor less than fifteen (15) days
prior to the public hearing; and,

WHEREAS, notice to property owners within 500 feet of the Subject Property
identified for the special use permit was delivered by certified mail; and,

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission convened and held a public hearing on the 8th
day of July, 20135, on the question of the special use application; and,

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission reviewed the standards set forth in Section 10-
4-9(F) of the Zoning Code; and,

Ordinance No. 201 S-iaﬁ)
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WHEREAS, upon conclusion of said public hearing, the Plan Commission
recommended the approval of the special use for the Subject Property for a public storage
facilities/miniwarchouse storage use on the Subject Property.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of
the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The above recitals are incorporated herein and made a part of this
Ordinance.

Section 2: That the Corporate Authorities hereby approve a special use of the
Subject Property, legally described as:

Lot 19 Final Plat of Subdivision Yorkville Business Center Unit 3 being a part of the
west half of Section 16 and part of the east half of Section 17, all in the Township 37
North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian according to the plat thereof
recorded May 21, 2001 as Document 200100008620 in Kendall County, Illinois,

PIN 02-17-277-003 and 02-16-153-001,
for use as a public storage facilities/miniwarehouse storage.

Section 3: That the special use granted herein shall be constructed, operated and
maintained in accordance with the following plans, diagrams and conditions:

A. Final engineering review and approval including compliance with comments

in the May 27, 2015 review letter from Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
B. Final landscape approval.

Section 4: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage,
approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.

Passed by the City Council of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois this

QLY dayor ~7/4 [M , 2015, /

CITY CLERK

CARLO COLOSIMO KEN KOCH

LARRY KOT

<
JOEL FRIEDERS /
LV
SEAVER TARULIS

Ordinance No. 2015-j<_;?
Page 3

JACKIE MILSCHEWSKI

CHRIS FUNKHOUSER

DIANE TEELING

<



Approved by me, as Mayor of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, this

[l dayof AUGUST .2015.

Ordinance No. 201 S—ié\)
Page 4



Exhibit A

Legal Description of Subject Property

Lot 19 Final Plat of Subdivision Yorkville Business Center Unit 3 being a part of the
west half of Section 16 and part of the east half of Section 17, all in the Township 37
North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian according to the plat thereof
recorded May 21, 2001 as Document 200100008620 in Kendall County, Illinois.

PIN 02-17-277-003 and 02-16-153-001
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PUBLIC NOTICE
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
BEFORE
THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
PLAN COMMISSION
PC 2016-07

NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN THAT Terry Richards, petitioner, has filed an
application with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting
to amend a special use approved for a public storage facility pursuant to Chapter 6,
Table 10.06.03 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance. The amendments to the special
use include relocation of the buildings on the property, increasing the number of
buildings on the property and increasing the landscape materials, all as shown on a
new site plan for the development of the property. The real property is located at
147 Commercial Drive in Yorkville, Illinois.

The legal description is as follows:

LOT 19 FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION YORKVILLE BUSINESS CENTER
UNIT 3 BEING A PART OF THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 16 AND PART
OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 17, ALL IN THE TOWNSHIP 37 NORTH,
RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN ACCORDING TO
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED MAY 21, 2001 AS DOCUMENT
200100008620 IN KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

The application materials for the proposed Special Use are on file with the City
Clerk.

NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN THAT the Plan Commission for the United City
of Yorkville will conduct a public hearing on said application on Wednesday, April
13, 2016 at 7 p.m. at the United City of Yorkville, City Hall, located at 800 Game
Farm Road, Yorkville, Illinois 60560.

The public hearing may be continued from time to time to dates certain without
further notice being published.

All interested parties are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an
opportunity to be heard. Any written comments should be addressed to the United
City of Yorkville City Clerk, City Hall, 800 Game Farm Road, Yorkville, Illinois,
and will be accepted up to the date of the public hearing.



By order of the Corporate Authorities of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall

County, Illinois.

BETH WARREN
City Clerk

BY: Lisa Pickering
Deputy Clerk



Memorandum

To: Plan Commission
From: Chris Heinen, Planner
CC: Bart Olson, City Administrator

Krysti J. Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director
Date: March 31, 2016
Subject: PC 2016-08 — Grace Holistic Center for Education (Special Use)

Background & Request:

The petitioner, Tairi Grace, petitioner, has filed an application with the United City of
Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting special use permit approval for a
Commercial/Trade School for a private, non-profit school with an emphasis on holistic health
education within the M-1, Limited Manufacturing District pursuant to Chapter 6, Table 10.06.02
of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance. The real property is located at 319 E. Van Emmon Road, in

Currently, a commercial/trade school is not allowed within the Manufacturing districts.
The City has begun the process of amending the zoning ordinance to allow Commercial/Trade
Schools as a special use in the manufacturing districts. Staff researched several surrounding
municipalities and found that several of them either permitted trade schools as an outright
allowable use or required a special use in manufacturing districts. Staff felt that allowing trade
schools in the Manufacturing Districts as a special use is consistent with current zoning trends

1



and would allow, on a case-by-case basis, additional review of surrounding land uses, site layout,
parking, utilities, and traffic. This petition will accompany the text amendment as the petitioner
would like to have the interior remodel complete by the beginning of fall 2016.

The petitioner is looking to utilize a portion of the building located at 319 Van Emmon
for a private not-for-profit school for special and regular education students. The interior
remodel will consist of constructing seven (7) classrooms and two bathroom facilities. The
school is looking to house approximately 50 children with a staff of 6 adults. The initial primary
focus will be elementary and junior high students. Access for the site will be located off of Van
Emmon and the petitioner is looking to create onsite signage that will outline the flow of traffic
for drop off and pick up traffic. Additionally, school staff will be onsite to direct traffic within
the site for drop off and pick up. All signage will require a permit with the City and will be
reviewed at that time.

Parking
After reviewing the aerial depicted in the location map on page 1, it appears that there are

four (4) parking stalls currently on the property. Per the zoning ordinance, an elementary and
junior high school requires 1 space per classroom. This would require the site to have a
minimum of seven (7) parking stalls. Staff is recommending that as part of the special use
approval, that an additional three (3) parking stalls be striped.

Utilities

The property is in an existing section of Yorkville and water and sewer utilities are
located along Van Emmon. The proposed use will not impact the current water or sewer
capacities. Stormwater management has already been accounted for with the development of the
subdivision and no additional storage would be required as part of this special use.

Existing Conditions:

The existing zoning and land use for properties surrounding the subject property are as
indicated below:

Zoning Land Use
North | OS-2, Open Space District (Recreational) Park/River/Railroad Tracks
East M-1, Limited Manufacturing Manufacturing/Single Family Home

South | R-3, Multi-Family Attached Residence District | Residential Homes

West M-1, Limited Manufacturing Manufacturing/Single Family Home

Comprehensive Plan:

The City’s Comprehensive Plan Update 2008 had designated this parcel as “Traditional
Neighborhood” which is intended primarily for single-family detached residences, “preserving
the existing unique residential neighborhoods in the developed core of the City.” Future
development was envisioned to be in the form of redevelopment of existing sites.

As part of the Comprehensive Plan Update, this area is designated as “Traditional
Neighborhood Residential.” Traditional Neighborhood Residential areas comprise the older
neighborhoods east, west and south of the Downtown Core, and those north of the Fox River
comprising the old Town of Bristol. These areas are largely characterized by historic homes, pre-
War and Post World War Il housing types, and mid-century ranch homes that form cohesive

2



neighborhoods within walking distance of the Fox River and the Downtown. This designation
seeks to preserve and maintain the traditional single family character of these neighborhoods by
encouraging housing maintenance and rehabilitation, and compatible new housing development
that compliment the scale and design of the existing housing stock. Development of some forms
of multi-family housing is encouraged if they maintain the visual and physical character of
adjacent blocks, including building setbacks and architectural materials and treatments.

Both Comprehensive Plan designations are compatible with the use being proposed.
Schools, private or public, are generally found in residential neighborhoods and would therefore
be an acceptable use.

Special Use Criteria:

Section 10-4-9F of the City’s Zoning Ordinance establishes standards for special use
requests. No special use shall be recommended by the plan commission unless said commission
shall find that:

1. The establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be unreasonably
detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.

2. The special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for the purpose already permitted, nor substantially diminish and
impair property values within the neighborhood.

3. The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development
and improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.

4. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities have been or are
being provided.

5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress or egress so designed as
to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.

6. The special use shall in all other respects conform to the applicable regulations of the
district in which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified
by the city council pursuant to the recommendations of the plan commission.

The applicant has provided written responses to these special use and amendment
standards as part of their application and requests inclusion of those responses into the
public record.

Staff Comments:

The special use request for an alternative school is supported by staff. The current bulk
regulations (setbacks, lot coverage, building height) are being met and the proposed use is
consistent with the current comprehensive plan.

This petition was reviewed at the Economic Development Committee meeting on April 5,
2016. Below are a list of comments that were generated from this meeting.

1. Concern of actual use of the rear building, possible conflict with the proposed use.

a. Staff has been in contact with the petitioner and it has been expressed that
the owner of the building will be maintaining it as storage or possibly
demolishing the rear portion.



2. If outdoor activities are proposed, then requiring the rear yard be fenced or
enclosed.

a. It should be noted that the current building has been constructed to the
property line. The vacant green space in the rear is currently part of the
railroad and would not be able to be used. However, if the current owner
wishes to demolish the rear of the building, it would be beneficial to
enclose the rear yard for safety reasons. This can be a condition of
approval of the special use as well.

3. Concern that the use is not compatible with the Comp Plan and the downtown.

a. As stated on Pages 2 and 3 from this memo, the current comprehensive
plan and the proposed plan have this area designated as traditional
neighborhoods. Both Comprehensive Plan designations are compatible
with the use being proposed. Schools, private or public, are generally
found in residential neighborhoods and would therefore be an acceptable
use. Additionally, the downtown will be focusing on possible mixed use
developments with businesses on the first floor with residential above.
These types of uses can foster several different types of uses that are
compatible with the neighborhood, private schools or day cares included.

4. Concern regarding the proposed path to transport the children to the park (will
they cross the railroad tracks?).

a. The petitioner will be available at the meeting to discuss this concern.
5. Will traffic signs for school crossings be required?
a. Staff is researching this question and will have a response at the meeting.

6. How will the students be transported to school (bus)? How will bussing be
accommodated on the site?

a. The petitioner will be available at the meeting to discuss this concern.

A recommendation from Plan Commission will be forwarded to the City Council for
consideration at the April 26, 2016 regularly scheduled meeting.  Staff will be available to
answer any question the Plan Commission may have at Wednesday night’s meeting.

Proposed Motion for Special Use:

In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on April 13, 2016 and
discussions conducted at that meeting, the Plan Commission recommends approval to the City
Council a request for special use permit approval for a Commercial/Trade School for a private,
non-profit school with an emphasis on holistic health education within the M-1, Limited
Manufacturing District pursuant to Chapter 6, Table 10.06.02 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance.
The real property is located at 319 E. Van Emmon Road, in Yorkville, lllinois., subject to staff
recommendations and conditions in a memo dated March 31, 2016, and further subject to {insert
any additional conditions of the Plan Commission}...

Attachments:

1. Copy of Petitioner’s Application w/exhibits.
2. Copy of Public Notice.



Application For Special Use

Applicant Information

Name of Applicant(s) [ G’V‘C\CQ %//S#t L ({/) J{a 5,»—- f(?/(/(a ﬁc)/‘) [
Business Address i l
City \f/’()fl(/\/ \l 2 | State | | L— | ZEPI (0O S(Qd
Business Phone | (@%0 99| lOas j Business Fax [ |
Business Cell | | Business E-mail | Y- KPrns kg

Property Information

Name of Holder of Legal Title | |

[f Legal Title is held by a Land Trust, list the names of a}l holders of anv beneficial interest therein:

[ T hwrme S ]gz/w’h fa 137 / Ty /m«es/ﬁ\/n#(’ |
Property Street Address | j ;9 S Yan éaﬂ,wh 041,0( Lﬂ/4&c//¢/ l }

Description ot Property’s Physical Location

| |

Zoning and Land Use of Surrounding Parcels

North
East
South
West

Current Zoning Classification |

Kendall County Parcel Number(s) of Property

2. -3 - (¥ 00| - 0092
02 -32 - |\ ¥r- W2 -~ CowD
o2 =33~ 3y - 004 - OOYO
A [’}}-—0(3—&:’(7()
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Application For Special Use

Additional Contact Information

Attorney

i"Jame{3 W i b emn - 7’/&75)(90 ]
Address | 227 £ /)’/,w,f/l-\ St Dadic Lv |
City | St cln | /L |20 [Gos 78|
Phone | 7S 7% 1190 @IS 24 - )3 ]
Email| W { //107‘000@ Com eSS ne 7& l

Engineer / {fﬂc’w / Cprﬁ‘?f A .
Name { L—-o’h}tﬁ '?TLA’/( l
Addeess| 32|  Spremg bpo 17 5 |
City [ (S D - I Statel 1/ JZIP g5 =

Phonei o2y - ’()-—\}C% QC/] 2D ] Fax l
E-mail | A& [ sn SHectoe @ Ly by » (D7)

Land Planner/Survevor

Name [

|

Address l ]
City I | State i IZIP 1 i
|

|

| Fax[

E-mail [

Applicant must attach a legal description of the property to this application and title it as “Exhibit A™.
Applicant must list the names and addresses of any adjoining or contiguous landowners within 500 feet of the

property that are entitled notice of application under any applicable City Ordinance or State Statute. Attach a
separate list to this application and title it as “Exhibit B”.

“—7% Q/S S
M&A" ”é/




Application For Special Use

Special Use Standards

Please state how the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be unreasonably
detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare:

GFTHCFE 15 « :;Tiu/#( ron PofRt sebool ] Sl A

Wil Daudde etadimc anol AdShe edveerr~ ke

0(9@"0}‘: )14 Q/'f AICV’I? é/;,'/d"«‘f'\ /n.(jv-cdz_f I<joqVe— -
a. bt ﬂ@@ A oy 4 s /

(_S‘ j J SO

Please state how the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for the purpose already permitted. nor substantially diminish and impair property values within the
neighborhood:
GUCF E s a busmess St tall Ause

popr okt 50 (hiden anol G edklfs. 7R
P st /me’ Scbhal s 72 P"Zu yole. SA e
al ﬁ&/p/blf /‘"ZZ/(/ / ﬂf’)u. fy"?d/‘qu/z'(//y / &"\0’{ /P://(S'Z?(‘C«—Z/t7 . P’Z) 9
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A HCEE ol Al (vt o . o rutle 2 © |
Vi g T2 Cone J///;%f ?é‘.—— (s SholeS gop/ Sl s S ym et

Please state how the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district:

At cse ot EHFE sl Y oveine o
' - et
witln St Striche Lf 7l é ,,
C(PZCFE, L (! PLE ’/éé /7&/%1 Srde ‘c_’ ’/‘C,
P”Zf[)é?/vz? 7% /-'Q/‘“” = ('/62;4,@ U‘ﬂj%/’yz’ﬁ/q .

I
=~

Please state how adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities have been or are being
provided:

. i)
ﬂw’/z (S (’u//ﬁn/f/c/ o ﬁ&ngﬁ/@ o0 (){/z,/ ¢ Z{/
19540es . The secesS rocoll()eS (oo Sw
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Application For Special Use

Special Use Standards

Please state how adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress or egress so designed as to
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets:

uom5/;/¢mfwn/¢n (ol Gocd fpped 7/-,4@; towdt”
At aplit s A Sy 31948 s oplice ga bt Lerts

Aoy 21) eoel 7 e p locqtes &, [oF Sy
7‘? /71 P tmjllf A/ ; /f—jﬂfé&j &?644'/‘6’// *ﬁ/&c—;ﬂﬁ/
[ A Se) s o b P08 %%a- Leies

Please state how the special use shall in all other respects conform to the applicable regulations of the district in
which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the City Council pursuant
to the recommendations of the Plan Commission:

(CPUEE  Cotrns o oufprbee pples e
o @ lotomas of fle Disto o

I verify that all the intformation in this application is true to the best of my knowledge. 1 understand and accept
all requirements and fees as outlined as well as any incurred administrative and planning consultant fees which
must be current before this project can proceed to the next scheduled committee meeting.

[ understand all of the information presented in this document and understand that if an application becomes
dormant it is through my own fault and | must therefore follow the requirements outlined above.

Applicant Signature Date

= u‘@/"%‘l[ e~ 3/(’

Owner hereby authorizes the applicant to persue the appropiate entitlements on the property.

Owner Signature Date

THIS APPLICATION MUST BE NOTARIZED
PLEASE NOTARIZE IN THE SPACE BELOW:




United City of Yorkville

CouEsenl oF Kenga) Colinty Petitioner Deposit Account /

800 Game Farm Road

Yorkville, Illinois, 60560 Ackn ow|edg ment of Financial

Telephone: 630-553-4350

Fax: 630-553-7575 S
Website: www.yorkville.il.us Res po nsi bl I Ity
Development/Property Address: Project No.: FOR CITY USE ONLY Fund Account No.: FOR CITY USE ONLY

(9 & UVan 2—1”?"‘7##’)

Petition/Approval Type; check appropriate box(es) of approval requested

O Concept Plan Review Amendment (Text) (Annexation) (Plat) O Annexation

O Rezoning O Special Use O Mile and % Review
O Zoning Variance 0O Preliminary Plan Q Final Plans
QP.UD. Q Final Plat

Petitioner Deposit Account Fund:

It is the policy of the United City of Yorkville to require any petitioner seeking approval on a project or entitlement request to
establish a Petitioner Deposit Account Fund to cover all actual expenses occurred as a result of processing such applications and
requests. Typical requests requiring the establishment of a Petitioner Deposit Account Fund include, but are not limited to, plan
review of development approvals/engineering permits. Deposit account funds may also be used to cover costs for services related to
legal fees, engineering and other plan reviews, processing of other governmental applications, recording fees and other outside
coordination and consulting fees. Each fund account is established with an initial deposit based upon the estimated cost for services
provided in the INVOICE & WORKSHEET PETITION APPLICATION. This initial deposit is drawn against to pay for these
services related to the project or request. Periodicallv throughout the project review/approval process, the Financially Responsible
Party will receive an invoice reflecting the charges made against the account. At any time the balance of the fund account fall below
ten percent (10%) of the original deposit amount, the Financially Responsible Party will receive an invoice requesting additional
funds equal to one-hundred percent (100%) of the initial deposit if subsequent reviews/fees related to the project are required. In the
event that a deposit account is not immediately replenished, review by the administrative staff, consultants, boards and commissions
may be suspended until the account is fully replenished. If additional funds remain in the deposit account at the completion of the
project, the city will refund the balance to the Financially Responsible Party. A written request must be submitted by the Financially
Responsible Party to the city by the 15 of the month in order for the refund check to be processed and distributed by the 15 of the
following month. All refund checks will be made payvable to the Financially Responsible Party and mailed to the address provided
when the account was established.

ACENOWLEDGMENT OF FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Name/Company Name: _ ?g'efss ‘ City: ) State: Zip_Cnde’:_H_a
/4., (Phec Livieanin (g Attt &2, (<P
Telephone:, _ . . Mobile: 7 Fax: .o E-mail
(220 BT (ot 1Y Fb,. P SISO A i
-

Financially Responsible Party:

I acknowledge and understand that as the Financially Responsible Party, expenses may exceed the estimated initial deposit and,
when requested by the United City of Yorkville, I will provide additional funds to maintain the required account balance. Further,
the sale or other disposition of the property does not relieve the individual or Company/Corporation of their obligation to maintain a
positive balance in the fund account, unless the United City of Yorkville approves a Change of Responsible Party and transfer of
funds. Should the account go into deficit, all City work may stop until the requested replenishment deposit is received.

Print Name: //_‘2’-’ ! éc‘fz"‘*{ Title: {{ﬂ(p ;{a Dr “Cc WZ,
Signature*: (ﬂ:’ﬂ/[ Date: =, / /G
:/ “//

*The name of the individual and the person who signs this declaration must be the same. If a corporation is listed, a
corporate officer musi sign the declaration (President, Vice-President, Chairman, Seeretary or Treasurer)

FOR CITY USE ONLY
ACCOUNT CLOSURE AUTHORIZATION:
Date Requested: J Completed L Inactive
Print Name: : (J Withdrawn [ Collections
Signature: J Other

DEPARTMENT ROUNTING FOR AUTHORIZATION: [ Comm Dev. [ Building [ Engineering [ Finance [ Admin.

10



CERTIFIED MAILING

AFFIDAVIT
STATE OF ILLINOIS )
} 55
COUNTY OF KENDALL)
L ey SHFE
1/We, /‘f’ aild . petitioner, being first duly sworn, do hereby state under oath that to the

best of my knowledge the attached list is a true. correct and complete List of all permanent parcel numbers, and
names and addresses of owners. of all lots and parts of lots located within 500 feet (exclusively of any public
streets and alleys) of the property legally described on the attached application for annexation. rezoning, spe-
cial use permit. planned unit development. variation. or other zoning amendment. [ further state that said list
was obtained from the current tax rolls of the Kendall County Treasurer’s Office. 1 further state that I mailed by
U.S. Certified Mail. Return Receipt Requested, a copy of the Public Notice of Public Hearing before the United

City of Yorkville Plan Commission for the Public Hearing held on Wednesday,

at the United City of City Council Chambers, Yorkville, lllinois. The notice was mailed to the attached

list of all of the permanent parcel numbers and names and addresses of owners at the U.S. Post office on

e

ignature of Petitioner(s)

Subscribed and sworn to before me this

day of , 20

Notary Public



United City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, Illinois 60560
Telephone:  630-353-4350

Fax: 630-553-7575
INVOICE & WORKSHEET
PETITION APPLICATION
CC@CT: DEVELOPMENT/ PROPERTY:
_law ( Trel.
155 /o Ev YA Acreage:
V’Y/"W\/-—f L (g oSO  pae
Concept Plan Review: ] Yes [ 1 Neo S
Engineering Plan Review Deposit of $500 due
Amendment: || Yes |1 Neo $
$500.00 Fee due for each: (Annexation) (Plan) (Plat) (PUD)
Annexation: |] Yes | ] No )
$250.00. plus $10/acre for each acre over 5.
# of acres: -5= x$10= + $250
Rezoning: [] Yes [ ] No S
$200.00, plus $10/acre for each acre over 3
# of acres: -5= x%l0= +$200

[fannexing and rezoning, charge only I per acre fee.
It rezoning to a PUD. charge PUD Development Fee- not Rezoning Fee.

/\’es

Special Use: K || No )
25000, plus $10/acre for each acre over 3.
# of acres: -5= x§10= + $250
Zoning Variance: $85.00 []Yes []No S

Outside Consultants deposit of $300.00 due

Preliminary Plan Fee: $3500.00 |]Yes []No S
P.U.D. Fee: $500.00 [] Yes [ No $
Final Plat Fee: $500.00 || Yes [ No §
Engineering Plan Review Deposit: [ ] Yes [ No $

[ ] Less than 1 acre = $1.000 due

[ ] Over | acre and less than 10 acres = $2,500 due

[ ] Over 10 acres and less than 40 acres = $3,000 due

| ] Over 40 acres and less than 100 acres = $10,000 due
[ | Over 100 acres = $20,000 due

Outside Consultants Deposit: Yes [ ] No S

Legal. Land Planner, Zoning Coordinatod, Kavironmental Services

Annexation, Subdivision, Rezoning, and Special Use:

| | Less than 2 acres = $1,000 due

| | Over 2 acres and less than 10 acres = $2,500 due

| ] Over 10 acres = $5.000 due oD

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: S ’ Lbo

Word/ O Drive/ Dev. Dep. ARODY Fee Sheet Whst

Lh



PIN

02-33-177-001

02-33-177-005

02-33-177-006

02-33-153-009

02-33-307-012

02-33-307-022

02-33-178-004

02-33-178-003

02-33-307-020

02-33-307-004

02-33-307-003

02-33-307-002

02-33-307-011

02-33-307-010

02-33-307-009

02-33-307-008

mailto_name

EJ INVESTMENTS LLC

OLSON ROGER D & JOYCE M

COMMONWEALTH EDISON

UNITED CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF YORKVILLE

(CENTENNIAL PARK)

YUNDT BARBARA G REV TR

PATTERSON STEWART W & PAMELA

CHRISTOFFERSON JAMES F

SCHWARZ JENNIFER

HARVEST PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

SCHMIDT WM & KATHRYN

PACKER JAMES K

PACKER JAMES K

WARNER, JOSHUA & LEWIS, AUBREY

CREMENS JOHN F & KATHRYN M

HARDING KIRK A [l & CHRISTY R

SIMMONS ROBBIE A & MICHELE

Gy oIS

mailto_addressl

674 ANDREA CT

325 E VAN EMMON ST

THREE LINCOLN CENTRE 4TH FL

800 GAME FARM RD

2524 CREEK RD

%LEGACY REALTY

329 GREGORY ST

28 W 015 87TH ST

PO BOX 51

310 E VAN EMMON ST

308 E VAN EMMON ST

808 W JACKSON AVE

311 E RIDGE ST

309 E RIDGE ST

307 E RIDGE ST

305 E RIDGE ST

mailto_address2

8641 WALKER RD

mailto_csz

YORKVILLE IL 60560
YORKVILLE IL 60560

OAK BROOK TERRACE IL 60181

YORKVILLE IL 60560
PLANO IL 60545
YORKVILLE IL 60560
AURORA IL 60504
NAPERVILLE IL 60564
YORKVILLE IL 60560
YORKVILLE IL 60560
YORKVILLE IL 60560
NAPERVILLE IL 60540
YORKVILLE IL 60560
YORKVILLE IL 60560
YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560



02-33-307-007

02-33-307-018

02-33-307-021

02-33-177-008

02-33-177-013

02-33-156-009

02-33-156-008

02-33-156-006

02-33-156-005

02-33-177-017

02-33-156-004

02-33-156-016

02-33-156-015

02-33-156-014

02-33-156-017

02-33-156-018

02-33-178-001

CHMELIR ROBERT J

CALVERT JUDITH A

WILLMAN FRANK R & LAUREL L

SONKIN LAMBKE SUSAN L

EJ INVESTMENTS LLC

SAVAGE LARRY

HAWKINSON MICHAEL R SR & CAROL L

HARD GORDON D & KATHLEEN M

HALTCLUB INC

SONKIN LAMBKE SUSAN L

SAVAGE LARRY

ZIVKOVIC LJUBISA & MARA

ZIVKOVIC LUUBISA & MARA

ZIVKOVIC LJUBISA & MARA

ZIVKOVIC LJUBISA & MARA

BURD PAUL E & VALERIE L

JOHNSON GARY A & MARY D

303 E RIDGE ST

306 MILL ST

% PAMELA MALLETTE

310 MILL ST

339 E VAN EMMON ST

674 ANDREA CT

311 E VAN EMMON ST

307 EVAN EMMON ST

8820 MILLBROOK RD

P O BOX 615

339 E VAN EMMON RD

311 E VAN EMMON ST

62 TIMBER VIEW LN

62 TIMBER VIEW LN

62 TIMBERVIEW LN

62 TIMBER VIEW LN

300 E HYDRAULIC AVE

4225 E 2551TH RD

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

NEWARK IL 60541

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

SHERIDAN IL 60551



02-33-176-007

02-33-177-012

02-33-177-002

02-33-178-002

02-33-307-005

02-33-177-016

02-33-153-008

02-33-156-007

02-33-176-001

02-33-326-008

02-33-326-004

02-33-502-001

GENEVA KAYAK CENTER

CINNAMON JULI M

EJ INVESTMENTS LLC

CHRISTOFFERSON JAMES F

OSWEGO COMMUNITY BANK % PAUL &

D K LANDSCAPE & DESIGN INC

UNITED CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF YORKVILLE
HAWKINSON MICHAEL R SR & CAROL L

UNITED CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF YORKVILLE
(CENTENNIAL PARK)

KUCZKOWSKI KEITH & BONNIE

COMMONWEALTH EDISON

301 E HYDRAULIC AVE

315 E VAN EMMON ST

674 ANDREA CT

329 GREGORY ST

81 COUNTRY DR

4747 WAA-KEE-SHA DR.

800 GAME FARM RD

307 E VAN EMMON ST

800 GAME FARM RD

328 E VAN EMMON ST

THREE LINCOLN CENTRE 4TH FL

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

AURORA IL 60504

YORKVILLE IL 60560

OSWEGO IL 60543

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

YORKVILLE IL 60560

OAK BROOK TERRACE IL 60181
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WARRANTY DEED

CORPORATION TO CORPORATION

THIS INDENTURE WITNESSETH,
That the Grantor, TKK
INVESTMENTS, LLC, an lhnois
Limited Liabihity Company created and
existing under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of Ilinois and duly

b

‘-”f ) “‘.\.
o {{ ifP A \\
NN / ,f‘ } il
'O NERYA,
N k !
_%,‘\ Sk
- 2 -
LOONOS
AN

authonized to transact business n the ~ | & W
State of Illinois, of 319 E Van meovs N7a _\ b o
Street, Yorkwville, Ilhnois for and,\h\\ \>\ .

consideration of Ten and no/lOM
Dollars ($10 00), and other good>an
valuable consideration 1n hand paid, 4 ahd

\\\ \/
D

pursuant to authonty gwcn/ by me AP

Members of said company, wnvr;ys an
warrants to EJ INVESTMENS, L1,
an llhnots Limited LBty Cmpany,
of 674 Andrea C‘suft\ \bqr ey dlhnoss,
Grantee, the,. Iollowm& desgnbed real
estate loc{%ed\ m ‘(enda}l County,
Ilhinots ) /

SEE ATTACHED EXHIB]T o

33-177-004-0000, 02-33-177-013-0000

FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE

AR

2014086085058

GI

DEBERIE
TE

LLET
KENDALL COUNTY, IL
" RECORDED: 4/17/2814 3:37

K, L}m 1024, aamsﬂsps FEE: 18.89

Permanent Real Estate Index Number: 02-33-177-001-0000, 02-33-177-002-0000, 02-

Address of Real Estate 319 E Van Emmon Road, Yorkwille, [lhnois 60560

In Witness Whereof, Grantor has caused 1ts name o be signed to these presents

by 1ts Managing Member

Ak
’I'h:s\i_ day of ﬂprﬂ( ,2014

TKK Investments, LLC

BY (s Brnega s

THOMAS BAUMGARTNER, MANAGING MEMBER

COUNTY OF KENDALL
REAL ESTATE TRANSFER %
1._12359.00

STATE TAX

STATE OF ILLINOIS

201400005058 1/4

# 0000021305

>

REAL ESTATE
TRANSFER TAX

0065000

FP 103035
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o o %Y.
S (SIAS
STATE OF ILLINOCIS ) WM E () ;«/

N

) 58 W
COUNTY OF _Kardaad ) (f( >\\)

N \ 50
The undersigned, a Notary Pubhc 1n und ;E’?;(Q&@Ctmﬁl},/ and State aforesaid, do hereby
certify that THOMAS BAUMGARTNER” pérsonally known to me to be the Managing
Member of TKK Investments, LL(, &;@; ersonilly known to me to be the same person
whose name 15 subscribed to the Roregoin ipstrument as having executed the same,
appeared before me this day n person 'aQ&\@cknowlcdged that he as Managing Member
signed, sealed and delivered llu/s/ wistzurheny, pursuant to the authonty given by the Board
of Directors of said corpor§£10§~;, as his  free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes

set forth R
J{\\

Given under my haﬁ&»%&ﬁ‘ma?tﬁl Seal on {afgx A {3 2014
e N \\ \ \\‘v}

Notary Péblic ~ ~—"

OFFICIAL SEAL
KRISTINE LARSEN
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS ¢
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 0813115

Prepared by Attorney Kristine Larsen, 22 W Van Buren, Oswego, Illinois 60543

Return to Grantee's Address and Send tax bills to
Atttorney Thomas Grant EJ Investments, LLC

200 Hillcrest Avenue 674 Andrea Court

P O Box 326 Yorkville, IL 60560

Yorkville, IL 60560

201400005058  2/4
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EXHIBIT “A”

THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIR. 37 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLONS _CORMENGING AT A POINT ON THE
NORTH LINE OF VAN EMMON STREET AT THE SOUTHEAST CONNER OF BLOCK 5 OF BLACK'S
ADDITION TO YORKVILLE, THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SA1D NSRTH LVNE, 170 O FEET FOR A
POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE NORTHERLY, PARALLEL #ITH (ms/ AST LINE OF SAID BLOCK
5. A DISTANCE OF 120 O FEET, THENCE WESTERLY-ALONG ACLINE DRAWN PARALLEL WITH
SAID NORTH LINE, 53 67 FEET TO A POINT, mm%u(is wsx@ FEET WESTERLY, AS MEASURED
ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, OF THE EASTLLINE \OR.LOT 13 OF SAID SECTION, AS SAID LOT
IS DEPICTED ON A PLAT OF SURVEY ﬂE(;f)ragEl [%°B00K.3 OF PLATS, PAGE 96 AND AS
OCCUPIED AND MONUMENTED, THENCE NORTHERLY: PARALLEL WITH SAID EAST LINE OF SAID
LOT, 84 87 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN wmfenx PARALLEL WITH THE MAIN TRACK TANGENT
CENTER LINE OF THE BURLINGTON NONTHERN RAI:ROAD FROM A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF
SAID LOT WHICH 1S 115 0 FEET SOUTHERLW.OF THE INTERSECTION OF SAID EAST LINE WITH
THE CENTER LINE OF SAID MAIN/TRACK) THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID LINE, PARALLEL TO
SAID MAIN TRACK, 32 52 FEET (TC THE $OUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED
TO ALLAN BRADY BY DOCUMENT-NQ_'77-4545, THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF
SAID BRADY TRACT, 76 57 FE ~THE NORTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, THENCE EASTERLY
ALONG THE NORTHEPLY LANE\OF\SA}D BRADY TRACT EXTENDED, 60 34 FEET TO A POINT
WHICH 1S 30 O FEET, mom ¥ ISTANT, SOUTHERLY OF THE CENTER LINE OF SAID MAIN
TRACK, THENCE FASTERLY MLLEL WITH SAID CENTER LINE 56 82 FEET TO A POINT OF
CURVATURE, THENCE EASTE 2LY, CONCENTRIC WITH SAID CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A
TANGENT |AL CURVE TO_THE/RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 5.699 65 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE
OF 41 45 FEET, TO“SAU EAST LINE OF LOT 13, THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST
LINE, 292 72 FEET TO SAID NORTH LINE OF VAN EMMON STREET, THENCE WESTERLY ALONG
SAID NORTH LINE, 126 52 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING LESS AND EXCEPT PART
CONVEYED BY DEED RECORDED JULY 3, 1990 AS DOCUMENT 904281, AND ALSO THAT PART OF
LOT 12 (SOMETIMES CALLED SUB LOT 12) ACCORDING TO 3 PLATS, PAGE 96 IN SECTION
33, TOWNSHIP 37 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, WHICH LIES
SOUTH OF THE CHICAGO, BURLINGTON AND QUINCY RAILROAD RIGHT OF WAY AND NORTH OF
VAN EMMON STREET, (N THE UNITED CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY,

ILLINOLS

Permanent Real Estate Index Number: 02-33-177-001-0000, 02-33-177-002-0000, 02-33-

177-004-0000, 02-33-177-013-0000
Address of Real Estate 319 E Van Emmon Road, Yorkville, Ilinos 60560
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Debbie Gillette
Kendall County Clerk & Recorder

PLAT ACT AFFIDAVIT OF METES AND BOUNDS

N
¢ N

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) "

.,

) S8 O\
COUNTY OF KENDALL ) I N

THAma s Ing. G)MW’ Qfﬁgnpg_dwiyfﬁgﬁi on oath, And further states
that- (please check the appropnate box) % ( Oy

p

A,@‘& That the attached deed 15 not in vialaizon of 765 ;1){:‘3’205/1(:1}, in that the sale or

exchange is of an entire tract of land not being % partofa large tract of land; or

B.[ } That the attached deed is not imviolation.0:765 ILCS 205/1(b) for one of the following

reasons (please circle the appropriate numbery >\ ™\ NS

ol N 2

1. The diviston or subdivision of fand iito parcels or racts of 5.0 acres or more in size which
does not involve any new stfimgts‘t; ¢asements of access;

2. The division of lots or_,blﬁf;ﬁs\ ofl S}/ than on (1) acre n any recorded subdiviston which does
not mvolve any new strestsor easéments of access;

3. The sale or exchange of parce)s of land between owners of adjoining and contignous land;

4. The conveyance of parceis of land or interests theremn for use as right of way for railroads or
other publiv.utihty facihiies and other pipe lines which does not involve any new streets or
easemen@af\mggs%; /

5. The conveyance of iand owned by a railroad or other public utility which does not involve any
new streets or easements of access;

6. The conveyance of land for haighway or other public purposes or grants or CONveyances
relating to the dedication of land for public use or instruments relating to the vacation of land
mmpressed with a public use;

Conveyances madé to correct descriptions 1n prior conveyances,

The sale or exchange of parcels or tracts of land following the division into not more than two

(2) parts of a particular parcel or tract of land existing on July 17, 1959 and not involving any

new streets or easements of access;

9. The sale of a single lot of 1ess than 5 0 acres from a larger tract when a survey 18 made by an
Illinois Regstered Lane Surveyor; provided, that this cxemption shall not apply to the sale of
any subsequent lots from the same larger tract of land, as determined by the dimensions and
configuration of the larger tract on October 1, 1973, and provided also that this exemption
does not validate any local requirements applicable to the subdivision of land;

10. The conveyance is of land described in the same marmer as title was taken by grantor(s).

b

09

AFFIANT further states that __ he makes this affidavit for the purpogoﬂ;nld/u; of Deeds
of Kendall County, Ihinois, to accept the attached deed for W

SUBSCRIBZD AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME ;
: \.
Tus gi%dz;;:imd 0t

Signature of Notary Public

CFFICIAL SEAL

o [BISTINE LARSEN

! SIARY PUBLIC - STATE ¢F ILLINGIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 0813118

111'W Fox Street Yorkwlle, L 60560 - 149¢

Tal LA KK 41171 Ouw £777Y £7a mans
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Grace Holistic Center for Education

“Open Minds-Open Hearts”

Business Plan

319 East Van Emmon Street
Yorkville, Ilinois 60560
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Mission Statement

The mission of Grace Holistic Center for Education (GHCFE) is to provide a
learning environment in which teaching modalities encompass mind, body, spirit, and
academics. Education occurs by awakening free thinking, intrapersonal relationships,
self-awareness, and holistic health.

Executive Summary

Each child has something special and something unique to give to the world.
GHCEFE will help children and parents discover students’ natural tendencies and foster
its growth. We believe this is what education encompasses. Children that matriculate
from this program will have “learned how to learn,” and will be able to apply,
integrate, and move forward in life in a mentally, emotionally, physically, and
spiritually healthy way. This school is not only going to focus on academics but will
also prepare these children to be self- actualized adults. Life skills, holistic health,
mindfulness, and self-awareness will be a part of every day’s curriculum at GHCFE.

Description of GHCFE

Grace Holistic Center for Education, is a private not-for-profit school for special
and regular education students, in Kendall County, pending Illinois State Board of
Education approval. Our proposed curriculum and policies will establish a unique
experience and education for each specific student, differentiating from the standard
schooling typical operations.

o Educational Philosophy

GHCEE seeks to further the illumination of the human spirit. This endeavor is
pursued by encompassing mind, body, spirit, and academics. We offer integrative
education that provides a wide range of curriculum. One of the ways we achieve this
objective is by cultivating active parent involvement, along with expanding global
citizenship through service. We believe that ingenuity and creativity should be allowed
to thrive. Our offerings include daily yoga/meditation which encourages intuitive
problem solving and critical thinking skills. We also extend Immersion Spanish as a
way to enhance memory and academic performance overall. Additionally, various
programs are offered in the Arts such as: music, dance, art and culinary.
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e Programs

The school occupancy is composed of 13 regular education grades, K-12, and
taught in four separate groups. The groups will be constructed by grades of
kindergarten thru second grade, third thru fifth grade, sixth thru eighth grade, and
ninth through twelfth. Approximately, there will be ten students in each group, totaling
an attendance of 40 students. This lower attendance allows a much stronger teacher to
student ratio that where more focus can be placed on one student.

There will be two special education classrooms grades first through fourth and
fifth through eighth. Each classroom will have five students.

Students will also have the opportunity to explore elements of music and art in a
semi-private group study. Classes take place once a week and are customized to fit each
age group and study level; instruction is provided by teachers through the Fox Kiver

Veademy of Music and Art, Music curriculum covers exposure to and application of
musu:al concepts (such as rhythm, pitch, phrase, dynamics, etc.), instruments and study
of sound production, music history/cultural music development, and other areas of
music. Visual art will involve introduction to various materials and media through
application of techniques and review of master artists. History, science/math, language,
and aural/physical skills are combined together in class to create an engaging and
exciting learning experience.

Along with the curriculum, we will also be allowing "Friday Classes". This is
open to children in the community within the area that are homeschooled and would
like to attend a classroom setting every Friday.

e Meals

GHCEFE has partnered with Cinger and soul Inc. to provide organic, non-GMO,
dye-free lunches to its students.

Genetically Modified Organisms (GMOs) are herbicide tolerant plants being
produced or sprayed with the herbicide which allows the plants to survive. A pesticide
is also inserted into every cell of the plant which comes from the soil to kill off insects.
The genetic engineering process creates massive collateral damage, causing mutations
in hundreds or thousands of locations throughout the plant’'s DNA. When humans
consume GMO'’s, there may be unintended and unknown effects.
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Artificial food dyes are made from petroleum and are used to enhance the color of
processed foods. Research indicates that when a significant amount of dyes are
consumed by humans, they can bind to the human tissue and form neoantigens and
result in bioaccumulation in the tissue. The antigens can then be attacked by the
immune system, resulting in autoimmune reactivity. Foods and additives are 2
environmental triggers that have been found to be associated with ADHD.

ADHD is characterized as excessive and impairing inattentive, hyperactive, and
impulsive behavior. In a study with 100 children with whom 50 were randomly
assigned 5 weeks of a restricted diet of additive containing foods and the other 50 to a
diet containing foods with additives. After 5 weeks, 78% of those in the diet group had
responded to the diet showing considerable beneficial effects (Vojdani A, Vojdani C,
2015).

When children eat breakfast and lunch, they are more successful, have improved
memory, problem-solving skills, and math and language skills. Students who eat
breakfast and lunch at school also have higher attendance rates and lower tardiness
which provides a more positive learning environment. Students who eat breakfast and
lunch are also less likely to get sick.

The breakfast and lunch food students eat need to be free of additives and GMOs
as stated above in order for these amazing benefits take place. There are benefits for all
students, however, for those who have ADHD and/or anxiety it can be crucial for their
learning experience.

o Policy for Monitoring and Evaluating Operations

Used by thousands of school districts around the country, Aimsweb is an
assessment, data management, and reporting system. Designed to universally screen
and monitor student progress for grades K-12, Aimsweb uses brief, valid, and reliable
measures to maximize time spent on instruction. It provides the framework, data, and
guidance to administrators and teachers to efficiently allocate and evaluate core
instruction and interventions to improve outcomes for all students—based on accurate,
continual and direct student assessment. Aimsweb offers high quality, valid, and
reliable assessment content that is easy to administer and score, produces consistent
results across time or testing conditions, supports the Illinois Academic Standards, and
can be used with any standards-based curriculum.
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o Friday Program Information Sheet
8:30 School starts

8:45 Yoga/Meditation

9:30 K-2 Music /Art (A), 3-5th (B), 6-8th (C)

10:30 3-5th grade Music/ Art (A), K-2 (C), 6-8th (B)
12:00 Lunch/Structured Play/Selected School Task (20 min ea.)
1:00 6-8th grade Music/Art (A), K-2 (B), 3-5th (C)
2:30 Dismissal

Rotation A- Music/Art

Rotation B —(one of the following)

1. Reading extension games

2. Spanish language education

3. Social / Life Skills Activities

o Rotation C- Community Service Project/Field Trip

Management Team:

e Directors

Tairi Grace, LCSW, ERYT - Executive Director & Therapist

Tairi Grace is a Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW), who has owned a
private practice since 2009. The owner of Sense of Samadhi Yoga Studio, she is also a
500-hour Registered Yoga Teacher and 200-hour Educator. Operating out of this
location is a holistic healing market offering a variety of healing services as well as
items from local artisans. Tairi Grace leads an annual 200-hour yoga teacher training
program and is the founder of Metaphysically Fit Fest, which is a festival celebrating
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diversity, spirituality, wellness, and self-expression. Tairi Grace actively supports the
community and is member of the National Association of Social Workers, Yoga
Alliance, and the Yorkville Chamber of Commerce. Tairi Grace has lived in Yorkville
for over 13 years and has four children, ages 12, 10, 7, and 6.

Jennifer L. Saad, MA, MS - Program Director & Teacher

Jennifer has been working in the education field with children exhibiting a wide range
of abilities since 1998. She received her undergraduate degree from Dominican
University, double majoring in Education and American Studies. Working with grade
school students in an urban setting, influenced her to pursue a graduate degree in
Special Education, also from Dominican. To enhance her worldview, she obtained
certification in School Counseling, along with a Masters in Administration from Lewis
University. Her professional background includes supervising staff, case management,
diagnostic testing, along with writing and implementing FBP’s. Jennifer has also
facilitated meetings between staff, students, and parents. She is a lifelong learner,
currently pursuing a wellness certification. Jennifer resides in Joliet and has two
children, ages 22 and 18.

e Educational Board
TBD- Creations Program Teacher (K-2 grades)

Jennifer L. Saad, MA, MS - Transitions Program Teacher (3-5 grades)

Jennifer has been working in the education field with children exhibiting a wide range
of abilities since 1998. She received her undergraduate degree from Dominican
University, double majoring in Education and American Studies. Working with grade
school students in an urban setting influenced her to pursue a graduate degree in
Special Education, also from Dominican. To enhance her worldview, she obtained
certification in School Counseling along with a Masters in Administration from Lewis
University. Her professional background includes supervising staff, case management,
diagnostic testing, as well as writing and implementing FBPs. She has also facilitated
meetings between staff, students and parents. She is a lifelong learner, currently
pursuing a wellness certification. Jennifer resides in Joliet and has two children ages 22
and 18.

Danielle Reuterskiold, Evolutions Program Teacher (6-8 grades)
Danielle Reuterskiold graduated with honors from Western lllinois University with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in English Education. She taught 7th grade Language Arts in
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Woodridge, IL for three years. She has since been raising her children, as well as caring
for other children in the community. Danielle's philosophy for teaching stems from
her personal conviction and love for reading. She was the child who checked out twenty
books from the library, and read through them all in a few days’ time.
Danielle enjoys cooking, gardening, and camping with her husband and three children.

Dawn Aulet, Expansions Teacher (9-12 grades)

Dawn Aulet began her career in the secondary education field when she guest directed
a play in 2010 at her alma mater. Her passion for learning, though spans the scope of
the written word and performance as well as teaching. Dawn received her
undergraduate degree from Northern Illinois University in 2000, where she majored in
Journalism and minored in Theater. Following a successful career in Journalism, in
2014, she added a masters in teaching from Olivet Nazarene University.

A Lifelong Learning instructor at Joliet Junior College since 2009, for the past year, she
has been enriching her classroom experience on the southside of Chicago, teaching
drama, writing and American Literature at Del.aSalle Institute. Her favorite part of the
job is getting to know the students and meeting them where they are at when they enter

her classroom ~ academically and emotionally.

Dawn is moved by the stories of everyone she meets. In her varied career, she has
carried the responsibility of hearing, telling and teaching people how to tell their story.

She is excited to bring a more holistic approach to the classroom

She currently lives in the Western suburbs and is raising two amazing boys who are 14
and 11.

Amanda Rediger, Special Education Teacher

Amanda Reveter is a certified special education teacher with several years experience in
both private therapeutic and pubic school settings. She earned her Masters Degree in
Education (LBS1) in 2007 from Northern [llinois University. While working at Edward
Academy she helped research and design curriculums to provide ditferentiated
instruction to students with various abilities and learning styles. Her background
includes experience writing, implementing, and monitoring progress of IEP goals as
well as utilizing functional behavioral assessments to develop plans to help students



achieve success in academic settings.

Amanda is a 200 hr registered yoga teacher as well as a level 3 certified swimming
coach. She believes that the key to academic success is through developing a healthy
mind, body, and spirit by providing a setting that is nurturing.

Patricia Kinnavy - Activities Director

Patricia Kinnavy is a registered Illinois High School Association (IHSA) coach. Prior to
joining GHCFE, she worked at Mooseheart Child City as a coordinator for the
recreation department, helping children ages 5 to 18 with personal growth and team-
building skills. She also served as Mooseheart’s head High School volleyball coach and
assistant Junior High basketball coach. She is currently in the process of earning her
Associates Degree to become a paraprofessional. Ms. Kinnavy is very passionate about
nature, the environment and has a natural gift with children of all ages.

Karen Kulzer ,Executive Director, Fox River Academy of Music and Art, Inc.

In August 2003, Ms. Kulzer co-founded /incorporated Fox River Academy of Music and
Art, Inc. (a community music and art school) with musician Ron Stark, opening its
doors with three employees and 40 students. Since then, Fox River Academy has grown
to 400 enrolled students and 30+ full- and part-time employees, with members
participating in student recitals, charitable fundraisers, art exhibits, and numerous
other community art and music activities. Karen received her Bachelor of Music from
DePaul University’s School of Music (Chicago, Illinois) in 1996; she has studied piano
performance and composition studies with Dr. Michael Fritsch, Dr. Melody Lord, Dr.
Janice Misurell-Mitchell, Alan Swain, Jim Trompeter, and Dr. Kurt Westerberg. In
addition to 20+ years of private piano teaching experience, Karen has been involved
with many local organizations and community outreach associations.

Tairi Grace, LCSW, ERYT - Therapist

Tairi Grace is a Licensed Clinical Social Worker who has owned a private practice since
2009. She is also a 500-hour Registered Yoga Teacher/200 hour Educator and owns
Sense of Samadhi Yoga Studio. Operating out of this location is a holistic healing
market offering a variety of healing services as well as items from local artisans. Tairi
Grace leads an annual 200-hour yoga teacher training program and is the founder of
Metaphysically Fit Fest, which is a festival celebrating diversity, spirituality, wellness,
and self-expression. Tairi Grace actively supports community and is member of
National Association of Social Workers, Yoga Alliance, and the Yorkville Chamber of
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Commerce. Tairi Grace has lived in Yorkville for over 13 years and has four children
ages 12,10, 7 and 6.

Jamee Adkins Kerkman, LCPC - Therapist

Jamee Adkins Kerkman is a Licensed Clinical Professional Counselor (LCPC) with the
State of Illinois, Certified Hypnotherapist, and a 200-hour Certified Yoga Teacher. She
holds a Masters Degree in Clinical Psychology and owns a private practice, Trinity
Wellness Counseling & Yoga. Jamee has been counseling clients since 2008, providing
children and adolescents, individuals, couples, families and groups with holistic
therapeutic interventions. Her experience includes teaching at the college level. She is
passionate about helping others. Jamee is a member of the Illinois Mental Health
Counseling Association.

Chris McKinley - Administrative Assistant

Chris McKinley is an office professional with a passion for education. She has worked
in a variety of office settings, including four years as the office manager at Peaceful
Pathways Montessori Academy. She was blessed to have her passion for alternative
education and the pursuit of a complete education for all children revealed with the
birth of and through the raising of her daughter.

Board Members

Kristen Accardo, DC

Dr. Accardo has been a practicing chiropractor since 1997. She received her Bachelor’s
degree from the University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee and her Doctor of Chiropractic
from Northwestern College of Chiropractic. She has taken over 100 hours of training in
acupuncture from the International Academy of Medical Acupuncture and received her
Fellowship (FIAMA) in 2006 as well as training and certification in Health and Wellness
Coaching from the American College of Sports Medicine. Dr. Accardo enjoys yoga,
running, organic gardening, and watercolor painting. She is a member of the Oswego
Chamber of Commerce and the Rotary Club of Oswego.

Salvador A. Godinez

S.A. “Tony” Godinez is a 42 year Criminal Justice veteran with past assignments in over
20 states. His most recent appointments have been as Director of the Illinois
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Department of Corrections under Governor Pat Quinn and as the Executive Director of
the Cook County Jail for Sheriff Tom Dart. Mr. Godinez has also taught Criminal Justice
classes in three different states and is certified as a court expert on Prison Gangs. He
views his most valuable experience as the volunteer work he has performed with
different juvenile delinquency and crime prevention community groups in different
states. He has been appointed and co- chaired over forty boards and commissions in
recent years. Mr. Godinez received his Bachelors Degree in Criminal Justice from the
University of Ill-Chicago and his Masters Degree in Corrections from Chicago State
University. He is presently involved as a Consultant/Advisor on several court cases in
Cook County and on Criminal Justice initiatives as well. Mr. Godinez continues to
provide assistance and direction to groups interested in the welfare of our youths and
contribute to the efforts of early intervention.

Joel Frieders

Husband to one, father to three, Joel Frieders is a current alderman for the United City
of Yorkville, the Vice President of the The Compounder Pharmacy, and the
owner/operator of the Aurora Bee Company. Joel is also active in the annual Summer
Solstice craft beer and music festival in Yorkville and the Yorkville Park Board. After a
health scare in 2009 forced him to reevaluate and take ownership of his own well being,
Joel is fully invested in the health of his self, family, and community.

Brian R. King

Brian King is a resilience Coach who has been inspiring audiences for over 20 years
with his story of resilience in the face of growing up with ADHD and Dyslexia,
surviving cancer at age 18, and now suffering from Ehlers-Danlos Syndrome. He is the
father of three sons with ADHD and Asperger's. Brian is one of the most positive
people you'll ever meet. He teaches entrepreneurs how to turn their failures into fuel by
building their capacity for resilience.

Robyn Sutcliff

Robyn Sutcliff is the owner of Foxy’s Ice Cream in Yorkville, established in 2011. Robyn
believes in creating community through business. Robyn served for 10 years as a
substitute teacher for The Kendall County Cooperative for Special Education in types of
special education classrooms: ISP, LSP, STARS, BD, Diagnostic and ED. As an
Alderman of the City of Yorkville, Robyn was proud to be a servant to the community
and work within a political system to represent Yorkville’s residence and facilitate
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policies that would increase everyone’s quality of life. Being a part of the Board of Grace
Holistic school is an honor. Robyn looks forward to serving the students and
participating in a program that will enrich students’ lives while helping them to become
outstanding human beings.

Marketing Strategy

GHCEFE has a marketing strategy that will send a message to our audience of the
unique skills learned through our programs and why GHCFE will not only be
educational, but a learning experience beyond formal education. We will express the
benefits of the school and how it will positively affect our customers and their children.
Marketing strategy formulation to implementation is composed of both traditional and
digital, by reaching our audience through a variance of channels of promotions,
advertising, public relations and sales. Naturally like any business, we plan to utilize
the impact of local buzz and word of mouth referral advertising. This is one of the
strongest methods of advertising yet we know we need to create reputation before this
works so we will place our efforts to alternative marketing methods. Our traditional
marketing plan is made up of printed collateral such as business cards, brochures,
flyers, information packets, promotional items etc. This print will be used at any
possible networking event, meeting or seminars attended by staff to inform the
customer of the product offered and promotional items will be given as a thank you gift
for the opportunity. Additionally, we may include newspaper advertisements such as
ribbon cutting and radio broadcasting at a local radio station. Digitally, we will market
our school with multiple platforms as well. Our root of our digital footprint is our
currently operating website with call to actions for enrollment and informative
information on the school itself. We plan to draw people to our site using social media
such as our Facebook page with regular posts on school activity, email marketing
campaigns containing promotions or informative information. We will also explore the
possibility of search engine optimization through natural content SEO, blogging and
PPC (Pay-Per-Click Google Adwords). We understand our niche is a smaller market
and our marketing plan will be tailored as time continues, budget restraints and initial

enrollment develops.

Our SWOT (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats) analysis on our
market has a currently strong hold on our industry foundation and competition within
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our county. Further analysis will be continued and researched as we continue to grow
and pricing will be reflected as needed.

Strengths

Unique curriculum

Education for all types of students
Experienced multi business owner
and operator

Limited competition
geographically

Limited start up risk

Marketing campaigns and
visibility

Weaknesses

Limited start-up costs
Limited flexibility in pricing

Opportunities

Affiliate relations with related
vendors and supporting
businesses

Development of proprietary
products

Develop new methods of
curriculum and teaching standards

Threats

Competitors marketing initiatives
Changes in regulations that can
impact the business

Competitors develop or already
have services

Insurance and liability rising costs
Increasing cost to do business in
industry




Our market share analysis is generated within Kendall County. This
geographical location was chosen due to the amount of competition compared to
surrounding areas. There are currently five private schools in Kendall County, IL,
serving 967 students. The low amount of private schooling leaves room for market
share to be competitive. Realizing our competitors have been around for awhile, we
plan to take our market share through our experienced business partners and

Competitor Analysis

# of Religious  Yoga/ Organic Special Orpanic food  Tuition Teacher/student Foreign Therapeutic  Aquaponics Athletic/ Academic/
Students  Affiliation  Meditation  Lunches/Snacks  Pducation growing/ex-  peryear ratio language  services Arts
penental (counseling,

learming ete.) (Insert
detmis)
Cross b, B Ni N i 115 Refers out N Young Rembrandts
Evangelica Over 15 | for soctal Soccer

1 students a work Volleyball
teacher aide is services and Cross Country
i | | added Speech. 5 Basketball
Parkview PK-12 319 Tes No : No No No 5.995 123 Spamush  No No 4:h-121 grade
Christian Cheerleading
Academy Basketball
Soccer
Volleyball
St.Luke’s PK4 187 Yes No No No No - - No -
Lutheran {
Scheol | i
5 Mar's | K8 205 Yes  No No No No P . No
School |
Peaceful K-8 a8 Yes No No | Ne No 1,600 i1 After ' No Ne 4184 joins St.
Tathwavs | school Paul's for sports
Montessori | Spanish 1
GHCFE K-12 50 Ne Yes Yes Yes ves T .500 Groupand | Yes Yoga
i Individual
Sacial Work
Therapy,
Occupationa
| Therapy,
Speech
Therapv
and
Physical
Therapy

aggressive marketing plan to contain a recipe for success. Our Friday classes available
to the homeschooled and our curriculum for students with disabilities will also gain
market share. Some competitors do not have these options established that will enforce
our public relations marketing and produce customer base. This will place a positive
light and solution for schooling for some parents. With our school only containing
approximately thirty out of the current 967 market of students, we can hold roughly 3-
4% of the market share within Kendall County. This places our institution as smaller
school compared to competitors but our specific niche will sustain market share while
growth and demand rises.

Cash Flows and Financial Analysis.

The start- up costs are approximately $62,826 to furnish the school and have it
ready for students. This is followed up by approximate annual need of $510,440 per
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year for operating expenses covering all fees, salary etc. These numbers were generated
from an accounting department with realistic figures. This demonstrates what is needed
for the school to function with expected costs.

GHCFE has expectations of generating cash flow of $204,600 ($6,500 tuition +700
supply fee + 250 deposit x 30 students) on an annual income from regular enrolled
students, assuming a minimum of thirty students attend per year. Also, assuming ten
children will be enrolled in the special education component, $500,000 will be generated
from these students, paid per district at 50K per student.

Additionally, Friday Program is expected to generate annual revenue of $11,850.
Suggested pricing for the HS student programs follow three different packages: 4 weeks
of all day Fridays will cost $150 a student at $37.50 per day and $2,250 in revenue, a 8
week plan of $280 at $35 per day and $4,200 in revenue and lastly a 12 week program at
$360 holding 30 per diem with a total of $5,400 in projected revenue.

In running total, using start up and yr. 1 operating costs of $573,266 and
tuition/district and Friday program fee collection totaling $716,450, by year two
GHCEFE should have a positive cash flow of $143,184 to sustain and expand services as
well as begin to pay Executive Director and Program Director salaries. $270,000 in
which grants must exceed this figure. Refer to the cost and budget projections for

details.

For start-up and year one operating expensed, GHCFE will look for grants and
donations to help with rent and utilities for the building, starting salaries, student
lunches, supplies and student tuition scholarships. GHCFE’s campaign includes, first
involving getting significant gifts from the board, from friends, and from generous
donors in our community. The kickoff campaign event is scheduled for March 17, 2016.

Per Regular Education Student Yearly tuition: $6,500.00
Supply fee: $700.00
Non-refundable deposit: $250.00

Per Special Education Student Yearly $50,0000

First Year Cost Analysis:
Start up costs $62,826
+Annual needs $510,440
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First year Expense $573,266

Annual projected income at the end of year one $716,450




PUBLIC NOTICE
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
BEFORE
THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
PLAN COMMISSION
PC 2016-08

NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN THAT Tairi Grace, petitioner, has filed an
application with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting
special use permit approval for a Commercial/Trade School for a private, non-
profit school with an emphasis on holistic health education within the M-1,
Limited Manufacturing District pursuant to Chapter 6, Table 10.06.02 of the
Yorkville Zoning Ordinance. The real property is located at 319 E. Van Emmon
Road, in Yorkville, Illinois.

The legal description is as follows:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 37
NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE NORTH
LINE OF VAN EMMON STREET AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF
BLOCK 5 OF BLACK’S ADDITION TO YORKVILLE, THENCE EASTERLY
ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, 170.0 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING,
THENCE NORTHERLY, PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF SAID
BLOCK 5, A DISTANCE OF 120.0 FEET, THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A
LINE DRAWN PARALLEL WITH SAID NORTH LINE, 53.67 FEET TO A
POINT WHICH IS 185.0 FEET WESTERLY, AS MEASURED ALONG SAID
PARALLEL LINE, OF THE EAST LINE OF LOT 13 OF SAID SECTION, AS
SAID LOT IS DEPICTED ON A PLAT OF SURVEY RECORDED IN BOOK 3
OF PLATS, PAGE 96 AND AS OCCUPIED AND MONUMENTED, THENCE
NORTHERLY, PARALLEL WITH SAID EAST LINE OF SAID LOT, 84.87
FEET TO A LINE DRAWN WESTERLY, PARALLEL WITH THE MAIN
TRACK TANGENT CENTER LINE OF THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN
RAILROAD FROM A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT WHICH IS
115.0 FEET SOUTHERLY OF THE INTERSECTION OF SAID EAST LINE
WITH THE CENTER LINE OF SAID MAIN TRACK, THENCE EASTERLY
ALONG SAID LINE, PARALLEL TO SAID MAIN TRACK, 32.52 FEET TO
THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO
ALLEN BRADY BY DOCUMENT NO. 77-4545, THENCE NORTHERLY
ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID BRADY TRACT, 76.52 FEET TO THE
NORTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE
NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID BRADY TRACT EXTENDED, 60.34 FEET TO



A POINT WHICH IS 30.0 FEET, NORMALLY DISTANT, SOUTHERLY OF
THE CENTER LINE OF SAID MAIN TRACK, THENCE EASTERLY
PARALLEL WITH SAID CENTER LINE 56.82 FEET TO A POINT OF
CURVATURE, THENCE EASTERLY, CONCENTRIC WITH SAID CENTER
LINE, BEING ALONG A TANGENTIAL CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A
RADIUS OF 5,699.65 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 41.45 FEET, TO SAID
EAST LINE OF LOT 13, THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST LINE,
292.72 FEET TO SAID NORTH LINE OF VAN EMMON STREET, THENCE
WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, 126.52 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING LESS AND EXCEPT PART CONVEYED BY DEED RECORDED
JULY 3, 1990 AS DOCUMENT 904281, AND ALSO THAT PART OF LOT 12
(SOMETIMES CALLED SUB LOT 12) ACCORDING TO 3 PLATS, PAGE 96
IN SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 37 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, WHICH LIES SOUTH OF CHICAGO,
BURLINGTON AND QUINCY RAILROAD RIGHT OF WAY AND NORTH
OF VAN EMMON STREET, IN THE UNITED CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF
YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

The application materials for the proposed Special Use are on file with the City
Clerk.

NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN THAT the Plan Commission for the United City
of Yorkville will conduct a public hearing on said application on Wednesday, April
13, 2016 at 7 p.m. at the United City of Yorkville, City Hall, located at 800 Game
Farm Road, Yorkville, Illinois 60560.

The public hearing may be continued from time to time to dates certain without
further notice being published.

All interested parties are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an
opportunity to be heard. Any written comments should be addressed to the United
City of Yorkville City Clerk, City Hall, 800 Game Farm Road, Yorkville, Illinois,
and will be accepted up to the date of the public hearing.

By order of the Corporate Authorities of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall
County, Illinois.

BETH WARREN
City Clerk

BY: Lisa Pickering
Deputy Clerk



Memorandum

To: Plan Commission
From:  Krysti J. Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director
CC: Bart Olson, City Administrator

Chris Heinen, Planner
Date: March 29, 2016
Subject: City Council Action Updates

Purpose

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide the Plan Commission with an update on the
action taken by the City Council on the items previously presented to and recommended by the Plan
Commission at a prior meeting.

City Council Action:

The City Council reviewed the Plan Commission’s recommendation regarding the following
items during their meeting held on February 23, 2016 and made the following final determination as
indicated in their vote below:

1. PC 2016-02 The Law Office Corporation, petitioner, has filed applications with the United
City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting special use permit approval for a
proposed tavern — nightclub or lounge in an existing building zoned within the B-2 Retail
Commerce Business District pursuant to Chapter 6, Table 10.06.03 of the Yorkville Zoning
Ordinance. The real property is located at 226 South Bridge Street in Yorkville, Illinois.

Colosimo-aye; Koch-aye; Kot-aye: Milschewski-aye; Funkhouser-aye;
Frieders-aye; Tarulis-aye.

7 ayes; 0 nays.

2. PC 2016-03 Unified Faith in Christ Church, petitioner, has filed an application with the
United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting special use permit approval for
a Small Religious Institution that is defined in Section 10-2-3 of the Yorkville Zoning
Ordinance as having less than 400 seats and 8,000 square feet of floor area in an existing
building zoned within the M-1, Limited Manufacturing District pursuant to Chapter 6, Table
10.06.02 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance. The real property is located at 210 Beaver Street,
Unit A in Yorkville, lllinois.

Colosimo-aye; Koch-aye; Kot-aye: Milschewski-aye; Funkhouser-aye;
Frieders-aye; Tarulis-aye.

7 ayes; 0 nays.
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